
AGENDA 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING 

TUESDAY, APRIL 11, 2023 – 10:00 AM 
BECAUSE OF THE CONTINUED CLOSURE OF LAND BANK OFFICES TO THE PUBLIC  

DUE TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC, THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD REMOTELY ON ZOOM.  

THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR REGISTERING FOR PUBLIC ACCESS TO THIS MEETING  

AND FOR SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE LOCATED ON THE PAGE 

FOLLOWING THE AGENDA 

AGENDA 

I. Roll Call

II. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of March 14, 2023

III. Executive Director’s Report

IV. Administrative Matters

A. Amendment, Assignment and Assumption of Developer Obligations under Purchase and
Development Agreement, and Amendment of Declaration of Restrictive Covenants
Resolution authorizing HACE to (1) assign its responsibilities and rights under the Purchase
and Development Agreement and under the Declaration of Restrictive Covenants pertaining
to 19, 21, 23, 25 and 27 E. Somerset Street and 3022 and 3026 N. American Street (the
“Premises”) to Goods Land Trust (the “GLT”); (2) to convey title to the Premises to the GLT
and sell only the improvements to purchasers, and (3) to amend the Declaration of Restrictive
Covenants for the Premises accordingly.

B. Interagency Transfers
(1) The properties below are proposed for transfer to the Philadelphia Housing Authority for

disposition, reuse and/or management by the Philadelphia Housing Authority, specifically
affordable housing development:

• 3230-38 Diamond Street; 3010, 3012, 3013, 3014, 3015, 3108, 3110*, 3112*, 3200,
3202, 3204, 3206, 3214, 3222 W. York Street; 2338, 2340, 2408, 2410, 2412, 2500 N.
31st Street; 2401 and 2549 ½ aka 2551 N. 32nd Street (CD5)
(*denotes property already owed by the Land Bank. All other properties are being
transferred by the Department of Public Property or Philadelphia Redevelopment
Authority to PHA via the Land Bank.)

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 1 of 179



 

 

 
(2) The properties below are proposed for transfer to the Philadelphia Housing Development 

Corporation for disposition, reuse and/or management by the Philadelphia Housing 
Development Corporation, specifically affordable housing development and community 
garden preservation. 

• 2268 Cadwallader Street; 3104, 3106, 3107, 3108, 3110, 3115 Cecil B. Moore Avenue; 
3003, 3009, 3011, 3029*, 3100 Clifford Street; 926*, 928, 932* W. Dakota Street;  
902, 903*, 907*, 909*, 925* W. Dauphin Street; 2203, 2248 N. Delhi Street;  
2232, 2235, 2245, 2248 N. Franklin Street;  
2253, 2257, 2259*, 2261*, 2263*, 2332 Germantown Avenue;  
2312, 2314 N. Marshall Street; 3109 Morse Street;  
911, 913, 915* W. Susquehanna Avenue;  
2224, 2301, 2303, 2305, 2234, 2236*, 2238 N. 7th Street;  
1709-11, 1713, 1717, 1719, 1721, 1727, 1729, 1731, 1717-31 Rear, 1741, 1748,  
1749-51, 1750, 1752, 1753, 1754-56, 1755, 1757, 1759, 1801, 1802-10, 1814-22, 1819, 
1821, 1825, 1827, 1829-37, 1841-43 N. 31st Street (CD5) 

• 1934 N. Lawrence Street* (CD7) 
(*denotes property already owed by the Land Bank. All other properties are being 
transferred by the Department of Public Property or Philadelphia Redevelopment 
Authority to PHDC via the Land Bank.) 

 
C. Amendments to Approved Dispositions 

(1) Amendment to Resolution No. 2022-14, adopted by the Board on July 12, 2022, to revise 
the maximum sales price and AMI level for eight (8) affordable homeownership units from 
$254,999 at 80% AMI to $274,999 at 100% AMI, due to increased development costs in 
response to unfavorable geotechnical conditions. 

 
(2) Amendment to Resolution No. 2022-15, adopted by the Board on July 12, 2022, to revise 

the maximum sales price and AMI level for twelve (12) affordable homeownership units 
from $254,999 at 80% AMI to $264,999 at 90% AMI, due to increased development costs 
in response to unfavorable geotechnical conditions. 
 

(3) Amendment to Resolution No. 2022-30, adopted by the Board on September 13, 2022, to 
revise the maximum sales price for seven (7) 80% AMI rehabbed units from $195,000 to 
$215,000 (remaining at 80% AMI), due to increased development costs to address 
structural issues, and to extend the minimum affordability compliance period to fifteen 
(15) years from the originally approved ten (10) years, to make the units eligible for the 
Turn The Key program. 

 
D. Revision to Compliance Period for Unsolicited Affordable or Mixed-Income Rental Projects  

Resolution authorizing the adoption of a policy requiring a thirty (30) year affordability 
compliance period during which affordable rental units in unsolicited unsubsidized affordable 
or mixed-income rental and mixed homeownership/rental projects must remain affordable at 
the designated Area Median Income (AMI) level.  The policy will apply to future unsolicited, 
unsubsidized affordable or mixed-income rental and mixed homeownership/rental projects 
approved by the Land Bank Board.   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 2 of 179



 

 

 
V. Property Dispositions  

 
A. Development – Affordable Housing (Request for Proposals) 

The properties below are proposed for disposition to Civetta Property Group, LLC to develop 
seventy (70) single-family affordable homeownership units that will be sold to households 
with incomes at or below 100% AMI.  Each unit will contain three (3) bedrooms and two (2) 
bathrooms.  Applications were solicited via a Request for Proposals for affordable housing 
development at or below 100% AMI, and the applicant was the most qualified bidder for the 
properties. 

• 621*, 623*, 625*, 637*, 917* Diamond Street;  
924*, 927*, 928*, 936* Edgley Street; 926, 928* French Street;  
2106*, 2112*, 2140*, 2141*, 2142*, 2143*, 2151*, 2166, 2170, 2172, 2215, 2217*, 
2219* N. Franklin Street; 2112*, 2130*, 2144* and 2214* N. Marshall Street;  
2105, 2107*, 2109*, 2110*, 2111*, 2112*, 2113, 2119*, 2121*, 2133, 2140*, 2143*, 
2146*, 2150 N. Percy Street; 904*, 910, 912 W. Susquehanna Avenue;  
2102*, 2109*, 2114*, 2126*, 2128*, 2130*, 2131, 2134*, 2135*, 2136*, 2150*, 2210* N. 
7th Street; 2101*, 2113, 2121*, 2155*, 2167-69*, 2201 N. 8th Street;  
2124*, 2126, 2132*, 2150*, 2165* N. 9th Street; 2121* N. 10th Street (CD5)  
(*denotes properties being transferred by the Department of Public Property or the 
Philadelphia Housing Development Corporation to the Land Bank.) 

 
B. Side/Rear Yards 

The property below is proposed for conveyance to individual applicant as a side or rear yard; 
the applicant must reside in and own the adjacent home.  The property will be subject to a 
30-year mortgage and permanently restricted for use as a side or rear yard. 

• 815 W. Firth Street (CD5 – Carmen Gomez) (Property will be transferred by the 
Department of Public Property to the Land Bank.) 

 
VI. New Business – Garden Mortgage Discussion 

 
VII. Public Comment (Old & New Business) 
 
VIII. Adjournment      

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 3 of 179



 

 

 

phdcphila.org 

FROM:  Andrea Imredy Saah, Esq., Senior Counsel 

RE:  Philadelphia Land Bank April 11, 2023 Board Meeting  

Remote Board Meeting Notice, Public Attendance, and Comment Procedures 

DATE:   March 31, 2023 

 

A meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Land Bank”) is currently 

scheduled for Tuesday, April 11, 2023, with the executive session to begin at 9:30 A.M. and the 

meeting to begin at 10:00 A.M or as soon as the Executive Session has ended.  Because of the continued 

closure of Land Bank offices to the public due to health concerns, this meeting will be held remotely using 

Zoom webinar.  The meeting is open to public attendees and for public comments and questions. 

PLEASE NOTE: To participate in the meeting on your computer, you must register in advance. This 

requirement is necessary to allow us to collect the names of participants as required by law.  Using a 

computer, tablet or smartphone, use the following link: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_6hBlBusqQlKRWAUv3al23g. 

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar.  

Members of the public who join before 10 A.M. will be given access when the meeting begins.   

To join the meeting by calling in, dial one of the following numbers:  

+1 267 831 0333 or +1 301 715 8592 or +1 312 626 6799 or +1 929 205 6099 or +1 346 248 7799  

Webinar ID: 825 0608 2170; Passcode: 732993 

The Board agenda and package will be available to view no later than five (5) days prior to the Board 

meeting at https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/. 

Public comment and questions regarding the matters that are posted on the agenda may be submitted prior to 

and during the Board meeting.   

To speak during the Board meeting when public comment on the agenda item is requested by the 

Board Chair, use raise the “Raise Hand” function at the bottom of the screen.  You may also enter 

your questions/comment in the “Q&A” function. Do not use the Chat function for questions or comments.  

The Board Chair may limit repetitious questions/comments. Q&A submissions will be attached to the 

minutes of the meeting. 

To submit questions or comments prior to the Board meeting, you must email the following 

information to andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov by 3:00 p.m. on Monday, April 10, 2022: 

• Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable; 

• Contact information (your email address or phone number); 

• Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and  

• State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner. 

Questions/comments submitted via email will be summarized at the Board meeting, answered or addressed 

to the extent possible, and attached to the minutes of the meeting.   

If possible, the Board meeting will be recorded and made publicly available within thirty (30) days.  If you 

have a question or comment about an agenda item after the meeting concludes, please submit it as described 

above.  It will be addressed to the extent possible by Land Bank staff or at the next Board meeting. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 4 of 179

https://us02web.zoom.us/webinar/register/WN_6hBlBusqQlKRWAUv3al23g
https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/
mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov


 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 1 of 120 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 

 

MARCH 14, 2023 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT) 

 

 

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank was held on Tuesday, March 14, 

2023 via Zoom webinar, of which proper notices were given.  A condensed certified transcript of this 

meeting is attached to these minutes as Exhibit A. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

The meeting was called to order at 10:04 a.m.  

 

Andrea Imredy Saah, Senior Counsel, made the following announcements:   

 

Today’s Board meeting is being held via an authorized communication device because of the continued 

closure of Land Bank offices to the public due to public health concerns.  This meeting is being recorded. 

Questions and comments may be made using the Q&A or raised hand button at the bottom of the screen. If 

you are calling in and not using the Zoom webinar link, you may ask questions or make comments by 

pressing *9 on your phone or using the “raise hand” function at the bottom of the screen.  Please do not use 

the chat function. If any member of the public has any issues submitting questions or comments, please send 

an email to Andrea.Saah@phdc.phila.gov.  Please note all questions and comments received by email prior to 

this meeting or through the Q&A section will be included in the minutes.   

  

Prior to today’s Public Session, the Board held an Executive Session at which the meeting agenda was 

reviewed.  

 

Item I 

Roll Call 

 

The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Anne Fadullon, Majeedah Rashid, 

Rick Sauer, Andrew Goodman, Richard DeMarco, Maria Gonzalez, Michael Koonce and Rebecca Lopez 

Kriss.   

 

The following Board members were absent: Alexander Balloon and Michael Johns.   

 

The following Land Management staff members were present: Angel Rodriguez, Jessie Lawrence, 

Andrea Imredy Saah, Esq., Jamila Davis, Todd Hestand, Cristina Martinez, Tracy Pinson-Reviere, 

Mathen Pullukattu, Brian Romano, Ashley Stukes-Martin, and Carolyn Terry.  

 

Public Attendees: The list of public attendees follows these minutes. 

 

A quorum of Directors was present, and the meeting, having been duly convened, proceeded with 

business.   

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 5 of 179

mailto:Andrea.Saah@phdc.phila.gov


 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 2 of 120 

Item II 

Approval of Board Minutes 

 

Ms. Fadullon called for questions or comments regarding the minutes of the Board meeting of February 

14, 2023.  There were none.  

 

Ms. Fadullon called for a motion regarding approval of the minutes.   

 

Mr. Goodman moved to approve the minutes. Ms. Gonzalez seconded the motion.   

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the February 14, 2023 Board 

Meeting minutes.    

 

Item III 

Executive Director’s Report 

 

Mr. Rodriguez called the Board’s attention to the charts included in the Board package that summarized 

the RFPs that have been issued and are being processed and approved and the unsolicited project 

applications that have been approved, as well as progress towards the Land Bank’s disposition targets in 

various categories of dispositions. 

 

Item IV 

Administrative Matters 

 

Ms. Imredy Saah announced that Board member Maria Gonzalez, as President of HACE Affordable 

Housing Corporation, the subject of the next three agenda items, had submitted a recusal letter (attached 

to these minutes as Exhibit B) and would leave the meeting during consideration of and voting on the 

administrative resolutions.   

 

Ms. Gonzalez left the meeting at this time. 

 

A. Termination of Declaration of Restrictive Covenants  

Ms. Imredy Saah presented HACE’s request to terminate the Declaration of Restrictive Covenants 

(the “DORC”) pertaining to 3028 N. American Street following the default of HACE Affordable 

Housing Corporation (“HACE”) under the provisions of the Purchase and Development Agreement 

(the “PDA”) and the DORC, and to release HACE from the penalty for such default under the PDA. 

 

Ms. Imredy Saah presented a history of the project as originally approved and HACE’s subsequent 

actions that resulted in an incurable default under the PDA’s and the DORC’s provisions, along with 

the possible penalties the Land Bank could impose for the incurable default. The staff recommends 

that HACE’s requests be granted.   

 

Ms. Fadullon asked if any questions or comments were received from the public on this item prior to 

the Board meeting.  Ms. Imredy Saah stated that none were received, but that HACE did submit a 

memo pertaining to this and the next two agenda items (attached to these minutes as Exhibit C). 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 6 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 3 of 120 

Ms. Fadullon called for question or comments from the public.  Harry Tapia, Director of Operations 

at HACE, apologized for the organization’s actions and expressed the organization’s appreciation for 

the staff’s recommendation to approve this request. 

 

Carlos Rendon from Councilwoman Lozada’s office expressed the Councilwoman’s support for the 

Board’s adoption of this resolution.     

 

Ms. Fadullon called for a motion regarding the resolution to terminate the DORC pertaining to 3028 

N. American Street and to consent to releasing HACE from the penalties for its default under the 

PDA.    

 

Ms. Lopez Kriss asked questions about the difference between HACE’s original project as approved 

by the Board and the proposed modified project, as well as about the timeline of HACE’s actions and 

whether the sale of 3028 N. American Street was approved by the Land Bank.  The attached transcript 

contains the full discussion on pages 12 to 21.   

 

Following the extended discussion, Ms. Fadullon again asked for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Mr. Sauer moved to approve the resolution.  Mr. Goodman seconded the motion.   

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution Authorizing 

the Non-Imposition of Penalties for an Incurable Default under the Purchase and Development 

Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants Governing 3028 N. American Street and the 

Termination of the Declaration of Restrictive Covenants with Respect to 3028 N. American Street 

(attached to these minutes as Exhibit D). 

 

B. Issuance of Consent to Sell Letters  

Mr. Lawrence requested the Board’s approval allowing the staff to issue Consent to Sell letters to 

HACE for homes constructed on 3022, 3024 and 3026 N. American Street and 19, 21, 23, 25 and 27 

E. Somerset Street. He provided a history of HACE’s lack of compliance with requirements for the 

approval of the sale of 3028 N. American Street and income certification of the buyer of the home and 

explained HACE’s inability to comply with the requirements of the Economic Opportunity Plan.  He 

also described the steps taken since the sale of 3028 N. American Street to bring HACE into 

compliance for the remaining homes in the project.   

 

Ms. Fadullon called for questions or comments from the Board.   There were none. 

 

Ms. Fadullon called for questions or comments from the public.  Carlos Rendon expressed 

Councilwoman Lozada’s support for the approval of this agenda item.  Harry Tapia explained why 

HACE was unable to meet the targets under the EOP.   

 

Following the public comment, Ms. Fadullon asked for a motion on the resolution. 

 

Mr. Koonce moved to approve the resolution.  Mr. DeMarco seconded the motion.   

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution Authorizing 

Issuance of Consent to Sell Letters and a Certificate of Completion for the Homes Located at 19, 21, 

23, 25 and 27 E. Somerset Street and 3022, 3024 and 3026 N. American Street, Subject to the 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 7 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 4 of 120 

Developer’s Compliance with its Obligations under the Purchase and Development Agreement 

(attached to these minutes as Exhibit E).   

 

C. Amendment, Assignment and Assumption of Developer Obligations under Purchase and 

Development Agreement, and Amendment of Declaration of Restrictive Covenants 

 

Ms. Imredy Saah presented HACE’s request to change the approved affordable homeownership 

project to allow the land and improvements at 19, 21, 23, 25 and 27 E. Somerset Street and 3022 and 

3026 N. American Street to be transferred to Good Lands Trust (“GLT”), to allow GLT to assume 

HACE’s obligations under the PDA and the DORC, and to allow GLT to sell only the improvements 

and lease the land to the buyers of the homes under the provisions of GLT’s documents, which 

conflict with the PDA and the DORC on numerous issues.  This would require an Amendment, 

Assignment and Assumption Agreement and an amended DORC to be recorded.  Ms. Imredy Saah 

then presented a summary of the main differences between the Land Bank’s model and GLT’s model, 

as presented in the Board package, finishing with the staff’s recommendation that HACE’s request 

not be granted due to the described major differences between the two models of homeownership, as 

outlined on pages 30 to 35 of the attached transcript. 

 

Ms. Fadullon asked if any questions or comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  Ms. 

Imredy Saah stated that none were received from the public but that HACE submitted documentation 

documenting the receipt of public financing based on these properties being transferred into and 

retained in the land trust (see documentation attached to these minutes as Exhibit F).    

 

Ms. Fadullon called for questions or comments from the Board.  Mr. Sauer asked for the rationale for 

the Land Bank’s imposition of its minimum and maximum affordability period for affordable homes. 

Mr. Rodriguez explained that the policy changed from requiring a 10-year period to now requiring a 

15-year period, which resets for another 15 years if the home is sold in the first 15 years, in order for 

these affordable homes to be eligible for a Turn The Key program second mortgage.  In the Land 

Bank model, compliance with the resale restrictions is the homeowner’s responsibility, not the 

developer’s, whereas in the land trust model, the developer owns the land and can enforce 

compliance.   

 

Ms. Fadullon called for questions or comments from the public.  Harry Tapia from HACE 

emphasized how important it was for the Board to approve HACE’s request to change the project to a 

land trust model, as otherwise it would have to return the public financing it received conditioned on 

the land trust model being implemented. HACE believes that the land trust model is one of only a few 

models to ensure long-term affordability and prevent displacement.   

 

Carlos Rendon followed up to express Councilwoman Lozada’s support for the Board’s approval of 

the changes to the project. 

 

Ms. Lopez Kriss, Mr. Goodman and Mr. Sauer asked questions pertaining to the staff’s analysis of the 

differences between the approved project model and the GLT (land trust) model. The attached 

transcript contains the full discussion on pages 42 to 47.  

 

Seeing no further questions or comments from the Board and the public, Ms. Fadullon summarized 

the relative merits of each model and stated her hope that the Land Bank and HACE could reach a 

negotiated solution that would address some of the Land Bank’s concerns while also permitting the 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 8 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 5 of 120 

land to be transferred to and held in the land trust. She then called for a motion pertaining to this 

agenda item and explained the various types of motions Board members could make.     

 

Mr. Sauer moved to approve the resolution with the caveat that the Land Bank staff and HACE 

negotiate to resolve the differences so that the modification can move forward.  Mr. DeMarco 

seconded the motion.  Ms. Lopez Kriss asked what would happen if the negotiations did not result in 

an acceptable resolution and stated that she was not comfortable with the motion as presented.  Mr. 

Rodriguez asked if the Board would consider tabling the item if the Land Bank could commit to 

negotiating a resolution quickly given the burden on HACE.  Following further discussion, Mr. Sauer 

withdrew his motion.  Ms. Lopez Kriss then moved to table the item until the Land Bank and HACE 

negotiate an acceptable modification to the project in a timely manner, allowing the resolution to be 

brought back to the Board at the April Board meeting.   

 

Mr. Goodman seconded Ms. Lopez Kriss’s motion.  Ms. Fadullon then recognized Mr. Tapia, who 

emphasized the urgency of approving HACE’s request as soon as possible.  
 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the motion to table the item 

for negotiation of the issues and for reconsideration at the April Board meeting.    

 

Ms. Gonzalez rejoined the meeting at this time. 

 

Item V 

Property Dispositions  

 

A. Development – Affordable Housing (Request for Proposals) 

 

Mr. Lawrence asked the Board to authorize the disposition of the following properties located in the 

5th Council District to Civetta Property Group, LLC for the development of seventy (70) single-

family homeownership units to be sold to households with incomes at or below 100% of AMI:   

621, 623, 625, 637 and 917 Diamond Street; 924, 927, 928 and 936 Edgley Street; 926 and 928 

French Street; 2106, 2112, 2140, 2141, 2142, 2143, 2151, 2166, 2170, 2172, 2215, 2217 and 

2219 N. Franklin Street; 2112, 2130, 2144 and 2214 N. Marshall Street; 2105, 2107, 2109, 

2110, 2111, 2112, 2113, 2119, 2121, 2133, 2140, 2143, 2146 and 2150 N. Percy Street; 904, 

910 and 912 W. Susquehanna Avenue; 2102, 2109, 2114, 2126, 2128, 2130, 2131, 2134, 2135, 

2136, 2150 and 2210 N. 7th Street; 2101, 2113, 2121, 2155, 2167-69 and 2201 N. 8th Street; 

2124, 2126, 2132, 2150 and 2165 N. 9th Street; and 2121 N. 10th Street.  

 

Applications were solicited via a Request for Proposals for affordable housing development at or 

below 100% AMI, and the applicant was the most qualified bidder for all of the properties in the RFP.  

The developer will purchase the properties for a total of $7,000.  Evidence of project financing was 

provided.  The applicant is compliant and in good standing with the City of Philadelphia.  The project 

will be subject to an Economic Opportunity Plan and an irrevocable power of attorney and right of 

reverter.  The units will be subject to use and resale restrictions and a minimum 15-year term of 

affordability, and purchasers will be income-certified.   

 

Ms. Fadullon asked for questions and comments from the Board.  Mr. Goodman asked if there were 

any other qualified applicants, and Mr. Lawrence explained that Civetta Property Group LLC was the 

most qualified applicant for the entire RFP.  The other qualified applicants who scored lower will be 

posted on the website once the Board has made a decision regarding this disposition.   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 9 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 6 of 120 

 

Ms. Fadullon asked if any public comment on this item was received prior to the Board meeting.  Ms. 

Imredy Saah summarized a letter received from Shirley Kitchen, the leader of North Central East 

RCO, which stated the community’s concerns that arose at the developer’s community outreach 

meeting, as well as two other emails criticizing the project (attached to these minutes as Exhibit G).  

 

Ms. Fadullon then recognized various members of the public, who stated a variety of different 

questions and concerns.  The people recognized were Sabina Bellinger, Shirley Kitchen, Jihad Ali, 

Christopher Miano, Kevin Brockenbrough, Andrew Zeygel, PerrellJerae Simmons, Charles Dyches 

and Adam Butler.  The issues raised included opportunities for minority developer participation, 

concerns about the number of people who will move into the neighborhood, the inability of residents 

to acquire lots they have maintained for years, the marketing and pricing of the homes, timing of 

community outreach, the developer’s compliance with EOP targets and ability to complete awarded 

projects, the differences in lot sizes, and how the RFP was organized.  The attached transcript 

contains all public questions and comments and subsequent discussion at pages 62 to 85. 

 

Mr. Sauer then asked whether the developer had made any changes to the project in response to the 

feedback from the community.  Brennan Tomasetti (representing the developer) indicated that 

outdoor space is planned for each of the homes, homes are being adjusted to match the streetscape but 

maintain similar home sizes, and they are working with PHS to plant more trees in the neighborhood. 

Ms. Gonzalez stated that she wanted residents with lower incomes than city employees to be eligible 

to purchase these homes.  Ms. Fadullon responded that the preference for city employees was 

legislated by Council and is not something the Land Bank can change; Mr. Rodriguez explained that 

the public union employees who are applying for these homes and qualifying for Turn The Key 

participation have salaries well below 80% of AMI, usually below $50,000.  Mr. Goodman then made 

several comments about issues that had ben raised, asking for involvement by staff in the community 

meetings before dispositions are brought to the Board. 

 

Seeing no further comments from the Board, Ms. Fadullon called for a motion regarding this 

disposition.   

 

Ms. Lopez Kriss moved to approve the disposition to Civetta Property Group LLC, and Mr. DeMarco 

seconded.  Five Board members (Ms. Lopez Kriss, Mr. Koonce, Mr. DeMarco, Ms. Rashid, Ms. 

Fadullon) voted to approve the disposition, while three Board members (Mr. Sauer, Mr. Goodman, 

Ms. Gonzalez) voted against the disposition.  Since a vote on any disposition for property exceeding 

$50,000 in value requires at least six votes either in favor or opposed, this disposition was tabled to 

the April Board meeting.     

 

B.  Development – Gardens/Open Space  

 

Mr. Lawrence asked the Board to authorize the disposition of 1901 N. Ringgold Street and 1910 N. 

24th Street in the 5th Council District to Sanctuary Farm Phila., a nonprofit organization, to be 

stabilized as a community garden.  The organization has been farming on 1906 and 1908 N. 24th 

Street and wishes to expand its capacity to grow produce and fruit for the community.   

 

The applicant is compliant and in good standing with the City of Philadelphia.  The project will not be 

subject to an Economic Opportunity Plan but will be subject to an irrevocable power of attorney and 

right of reverter.  The property will be subject to a 30-year mortgage and permanently restricted for 

use as a community garden.   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 10 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 7 of 120 

 

Ms. Imredy Saah indicated that no public comment regarding this item was received prior to the 

Board meeting. 

 

Ruth Birchett asked whether the Land Bank monitors how the garden organization distributes 

produce.  She volunteered at a garden at 24th Street and Berks Street, and the community was 

unhappy that they had to purchase the produce from the garden.  Mr. Rodriguez stated that if a garden 

wants to run a business selling the produce, they must register as a business with the city, and that is 

considered an urban farm rather than a community garden.  Andrea Vettori, executive director of 

Sanctuary Farm Phila., stated that all of their produce is given away for free – they have never sold 

any of their produce.  Ms. Birchett then requested that the Land Bank require any applicant that 

receives property from the Land Bank to engage the community in their planning. 

 

Seeing no further public comment or comments from the Board, Ms. Fadullon called for a motion on 

the disposition. 

 

Ms. Gonzalez moved to approve the disposition to Sanctuary Farm Phila.  Mr. Koonce seconded the 

motion.   

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution Authorizing 

Conveyance of 1901 North Ringgold Street and 1910 North 24th Street to Sanctuary Farm Phila. 

(attached to these minutes as Exhibit H). 

 

C. Development – Side/Rear Yards 

 

Ms. Fadullon referenced a comment made by Ms. Lopez Kriss earlier in the meeting, in which she 

stated she did not think it was appropriate to convey valuable vacant lots as side yards when the need 

for affordable housing is so great.   

 

Mr. Lawrence then asked the Board to authorize the disposition of the following properties for side or 

rear yards: 1217 Pennock Street in the 5th Council District to Jonathan D’Alba and Lianne Earley, 

2032 E. Boston Street in the 7th Council District to Charles J. Kessler and Colleen Foster, and 2410 

and 2412 N. Orianna Street in the 7tth Council District to Daniel McShane and Victoria Noll.  The 

applicants reside in and own their adjacent home, and all applicants are compliant and in good 

standing with the City of Philadelphia.  The projects will not be subject to an Economic Opportunity 

Plan but will be subject to an irrevocable power of attorney and a right of reverter.  The properties 

will also be subject to a 30-year mortgage for the appraised value and permanently restricted for use 

as side/rear yards. 

 

Ms. Fadullon called for questions or comments from the Board.   There were none. 

 

Ms. Fadullon asked if any public comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  Ms. Imredy 

Saah indicated that Ashley Rivera, the homeowner at 1215 Pennock Street, emailed asking the Board 

to place an easement on 1217 Pennock Street so that she could gain access to the lot once it was sold 

as a side yard if and when she needed to maintain or repair the exterior of her home.  Ms. Fadullon 

stated that the Philadelphia Code requires neighbors to give access to their property when 

maintenance is required on a neighbor’s property, and that obligation can be legally enforced.   

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 11 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 8 of 120 

Ms. Fadullon called for questions or comments from the public.  Jacqueline Wiggins asked for 

information about the Land Bank’s policy regarding community gardens and how residents can 

advocate more effectively for such land use. Ms. Fadullon directed her to the website. 

 

Seeing no further comments or questions from the Board or the public, Ms. Fadullon called for a 

motion regarding these dispositions.  

 

Mr. Sauer moved to approve all three side/rear yard dispositions.  Ms. Gonzalez seconded the motion.    

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the following resolutions: 

Resolution Authorizing Conveyance of 1217 Pennock Streeet to Jonathan D’Alba and Lianne Earley, 

Resolution Authorizing Conveyance of 2032 East Boston Street to Charles J. Kessler and Colleen 

Foster, and Resolution Authorizing Conveyance of 2410 and 2412 North Orianna Street to Daniel 

McShane and Victoria Noll (all attached to these minutes as Exhibit I). 

 

Item VI 

Public Comment (Old & New Business)  

 

Ms. Fadullon announced that the Board had received many comments by email prior to the Board meeting 

about the disposition policy for community gardens (attached to these minutes as Exhibit J).  She asked 

that the policy committee schedule a meeting with community garden representatives to discuss the issues 

and then have the staff bring back recommendations to the Board at a future date.  Mr. Goodman stated 

that the policy committee had already discussed this issue in a general way last year and that it should be 

brought to the Board as an agenda item at the April Board meeting. Mr. Sauer raised concerns about 

gardens that were facing a decision-making deadline prior to the Board meeting.  Mr. Rodriguez clarified 

that those were PRA dispositions, and that any Land Bank policy change would not change the PRA’s or 

the Department of Public Property’s policy.  Ms. Gonzalez asked that the staff provide a summary of the 

issues to the Board for the Board meeting.   

 

Mr. DeMarco left the meeting at this time. 

 

Ms. Fadullon then recognized the following public commenters: Elizabeth Waring of Holly Street 

Neighbors Community Garden, Mimi McKenzie of the Public Interest Law Center, Joshua Warner of 

Urban Creators and Life Do Grow Farm, Jenny Greenberg of Neighborhood Gardens Trust, Madeline 

Ahola of The People’s Kitchen, Jeff Carpenter of Arcadia Commons, Amy Gottsegen of Iglesias Gardens, 

Sonia Galiber of Soil Generation, Elizabeth Way of Hawthorn Community Garden, Alexander Miller of 

Farm on Florence, Jovian Patterson of Original American Foundation, Jeff Carpineta of the East 

Kensington Neighbors Association, and Oranica Fields of the More To Love Garden.  The commenters 

uniformly stated their request for the Land Bank to remove the 30-year self-amortizing mortgage 

requirement, stating that it placed an undue burden on their organizations, and for the Land Bank to 

clarify the circumstances under which the City or the Land Bank could take the property back for lack of 

maintenance.  The full statements are on pages 106 to 127 of the attached transcript. 

 

Item VII 

Adjournment 

 

There being no further business to address, Ms. Fadullon called for a motion to adjourn the meeting.   

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 12 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 9 of 120 

Mr. Sauer moved to adjourn the meeting.  Ms. Gonzalez seconded the motion.  

 

Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously voted to adjourn at 1:10 pm.   

 

NOTE:  All comments and questions submitted via the Q&A function follow the list of attendees 

attached to these minutes. 

 

 

      

SECRETARY TO THE BOARD 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 13 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 10 of 120 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING  

Tuesday, March 14, 2023, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar.  
 

User Name Email 

Amy Gottsegen a.m.gottsegen@gmail.com 

Phyllis Hayes PRH602@aol.com 

Rebecca Fruehwald rebecca@urbantreeconnection.org 

Alison Stohr alison.stohr@phila.gov 

Joshua Warner josh@phillyurbancreators.org 

NBC10 NEWS wcaumediaspecialist@nbcuni.com 

Ryan Gittler-Muniz rgittm@gmail.com 

Jose Figueiredo Josefiggy@gmail.com 

Bonita Cummings SHL851@aol.com 

Jacob Golden jacob.golden@phila.gov 

Marcos Lomeli marcos.lomeli@ceibaphiladelphia.org 

Randy Washington (LSN Contractors) Randy@lsn.construction 

Russell Hicks Rhicks@ebonysuns.com 

Doris Aldridge aldridgedj@verizon.net 

Lauren Shifman laurenshifman@gmail.com 

Dimka Braswell dimbras@outlook.com 

Jose Hiraldo jhiraldo@nscaphila.org 

Amanda Garayua agarayua@hacecdc.org 

Benito Martinez Martinbean@comcast.net 

Cesali Morales cesali@myneighborhoodproject.org 

Kermit O hello@kermito.com 

Erica Mines erica.mines@phila.gov 

Jessica Albright jessica.albright@phila.gov 

Elizabeth Waring Elizabethwaring@gmail.com 

Moussa Doumbouya Mdoumbouya@yahoo.com 

Bob Jobin jrjobin@gmail.com 

Annette Alvarez annettey215@gmail.com 

Kim Jordan kim@phillyorchards.org 

Chinita Bradshaw c.bradshaw1958@gmail.com 

Bridget Palombo bridget.palombo@gmail.com 

Jasmine Wallack jwallack@williampennfoundation.org 

Peleg Kremer peleg.kremer@villanova.edu 

Selah Lynch selahlynch@gmail.com 

Regina Robinson reginarobin@hotmail.com 

Indy Shome indyshome@gmail.com 

Nefertiti Stanford area.llc.7@gmail.com 

Tonya Davis Carpenter tcarpenter222@gmail.com 

Sonia Sonialgaliber@gmail.com 

Crystal Geraldo cgerakdo@thefoodtrust.org 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 14 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 11 of 120 

User Name Email 

Shirley Kitchen shirleykitchen03@gmail.com 

Amanda Bock amanda.bock@gmail.com 

Amanda Soskin amandasoskin@gmail.com 

J Fields Jettie.fields@gmail.com 

Oronica Fields Oronicaf@aol.com 

Michael Holland michaeltholland@gmail.com 

Nancy Ash nancyeash@gmail.com 

Alex Epstein aepstein1990@gmail.com 

Ruth I Birchett heritagecdcorp@gmail.com 

Donnel Brown# Farm Philly donnel.brown@phila.gov 

Jane Landis jlandishome@aol.com 

Elizabeth Way way.betsy@gmail.com 

Eloise Young weezee2003@gmail.com 

Justin Forte homesbyjforte@gmail.com 

Jethro Heiko Jethroheiko@gmail.com 

CJ Kessler cj.kessler16@gmail.com 

Sharon Hildebrand shildebrand@mac.com 

Makhari Dysart mdysart@temple.edu 

Ashley Rivera ashleyrrivera@gmail.com 

Malaika Gilpin Malaika@oneartcommunitycenter.com 

Leah Clouden proquietstorm@yahoo.com 

horace clouden hrclouden@gmail.com 

Lt Pyatt Ltpyatt@yahoo.com 

Carla Puppin cmpuppin@aol.com 

Mimi McKenzie mmckenzie@pubintlaw.org 

Sophia Schmidt sschmidt@whyy.org 

Valerie russ vruss@inquirer.com 

Zakia Elliott zakiamelliott@gmail.com 

Andrew Zeygel GCGOFNY@GMAIL.COM 

Angel Gutierrez gabeg@sas.upenn.edu 

PerrellJerae Simmons Perrelljeraesimmons@gmail.com 

Charles Dyches Cdyches23@gmail.com 

Andrea Vettori avettori@sanctuaryfarmphila.org 

Jenny Greenberg jgreenberg@pennhort.org 

Diane Banks jamesbanks11db@gmail.com 

Adam Butler A_butler@pobox.com 

Mandy Katz ranmapushkin@yahoo.com 

Michaelle Bond mbond@inquirer.com 

Madeline Ahola maddiea@sas.upenn.edu 

Jeff Carpenter jeff@arcadiacommons.us 

Lisa D lkdavis19@yahoo.com 

Jeff Carpineta jeffcarpineta@gmail.com 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 15 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 12 of 120 

User Name Email 

Teresa Elliott teresa@myneighborhoodproject.org 

Wayne T waynebtjr@gmail.com 

jihad ali jali@theenterprisecenter.com 

Carlos Rendon carlos.rendon@phila.gov 

Frank Kummer fkummer@inquirer.com 

Chamor Thomas cthomas@pennhort.org 

Andria Bibiloni abibiloni@philalegal.org 

Mel Oliver Melofavors@gmail.com 

Andy Denison ajdenison@me.com 

Kenneth Johnson johnsonken626@yahoo.com 

Mike Tomasetti Mike@civettapropertygroup.com 

Harry Tapia htapia@hacecdc.org 

Jacob Kleyman Jacobymott@Gmail.com 

a weiss/SoLo awfromhh6@gmail.com 

David Fecteau David.Fecteau@phila.gov 

Brennan Tomasetti brennan@civettapropertygroup.com 

Jovian Patterson Originalamericanfoundation@protonmail.com 

Kevin Brockenbrough bishop2108@gmail.com 

A Z global.consulting.group.ny@gmail.com 

Jackson Plumlee Jplumlee@design.UPenn.edu 

wesley corbin wcorbin19122@yahoo.com 

Tracy Savage Tsava2@yahoo.com 

Elizabeth Okero operations@phillyurbancreators.org 

Alexander Miller AlexanderJacobMiller@gmail.com 

Melvin Seawright SeawrightPropertiesllc@gmail.com 

Ben Miller Benpeopleskitchenphilly@gmail.com 

Christopher Miano cmiano@gmail.com 

Brenda Hall-Busch brenda.hallbusch@gmail.com 

Ashley Gripper ashleybgripper@gmail.com 

joanne Dorman dormanjoanne58@yahoo.com 

Nala Bloom Nalabloom@phillyurbancreators.org 

Farmer shawn lifedogrow@phillyurbancreators.org 

Mara Henao marahenao02@gmail.com 

Jacqueline Wiggins undergroundrr5@verizon.net 

Wadia Gardiner wagards@yahoo.com 

bernard brown billysbrown@gmail.com 

People's Kitchen peopleskitchenphilly@gmail.com 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 16 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 13 of 120 

PUBLIC COMMENTS SUBMITTED IN Q&A 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING  

Tuesday, March 14, 2023, at 10:00 AM, held remotely using Zoom Webinar 
 

Question Asker Name Answer 

What is the processing time once an application is 
submitted? 

L Elaine 
Johnson 

Per our disposition policy, we have 120 
days to review but we tend to wrap up our 
reviews in much less. 

Where are the representatives from the communities 
where they are placing the properties Lisa D  

These properties are on Somerset and 
American Street in the 7th Councilmatic 
District, they are vacant at this time with 
hoembuyers waiting to purchase. 

Will the recording of this meeting be made available to 
the public? And if so, where would someone go to access 
it? Kermit O 

Yes it will. It is accessible at the link below: 
https://phdcphila.org/who-we-
are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/ 

Are we going to have time in this meeting to talk about 
the 30-Year Amoritized Mortgages being placed on 
community garden parcels? Kermit O 

New business will be discussed at the end 
of the regular agenda 

I am extremely concerned about developers being able to 
purchase LAND for $7,000. My next issue is why 30-year 
leases to uban gardens, farms, and sidelot caretakers is 
even being considered by the Land Bank. These gardens 
and farms are bein used and cared for by THE PEOPLE--
the residnet taxpayers. 

Jacqueline 
Wiggins 

Thank you for your comment it will be 
included in the record. We will be 
discussing the mortgage issue in new 
business. 

Yes to gardens. I was a community development 
professional for close to a decade (Massachustts 
Association of CDCs named me community development 
professional of the year in 2001) so I appreciate the 
discussions and efforts around affordable housing, anti-
displacement, etc. I also submitted written testimony 
with my concerns related to the urgent need to protect 
current critical infrastructure of community farms and 
netighborhood gardens. I’d like to know how this board 
will specifically addres and prioritze the need to protect 
and expand urban agricluture in accordance with the 
urban ag. and tree plans of the City? Feeding and housing 
Philadelphia residents are both critical and the Land Bank 
should be addressing these intersecting needs. Further, 
community farms, gardens and food forests and orchards 
also address a number of public health including mental 
health and anti-violence needs facing all too many of our 
city’s families and the city overall. I realize the scheduled 
meeting is coming to an end. 

Jethro 
Heiko 
  

This is heartbreaking to hear and I thank you for sharing 
your story. We should not be pitting community gardens 
and green space access against affordable housing. I hope 
the Land Bank board is listening. Kim Jordan 

THank you for your comment it will be 
included in the record. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 17 of 179



 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 14 of 120 

Question Asker Name Answer 

Why is the above--[$7,000 leases to developers and 30-
year leases to gardens and farms] occurring? The gardens 
and farms are being used to feed THE PEOPLE as FOOD is 
MEDICINE. Your policy(ies) in these matters and those of 
all who represent the concerns of  THE PEOPLE 
cannot be ignored. 

Jacqueline 
Wiggins  

Follow-up to current speaker. Who at PHS are you 
working with? 

Jethro 
Heiko We will follow up and ask. 

Ms. Tomasetti’s comment here is a cop out. Planting a 
few trees and having *private* greenspace is not 
equivalent to the social and ecological value of 
*community* green space, such as community gardens. Kermit O  

Why is this the only project targeting city workers? 
PerrellJera
e Simmons   

All approved RFPs are eligible for the turn 
the key program 
https://phdcphila.org/residents-and-
landlords/homebuyers-and-renters/turn-
the-key/ 

About the preferential purchase by City employees for 
these properties: what is the transparency around who 
purchases them and which city department (or Council 
office) they work in? Kim Jordan 

You can learn about turn the key here: 
https://phdcphila.org/residents-and-
landlords/homebuyers-and-renters/turn-
the-key/ 

Mrs. Tomasetti was not at meeting only her husband and 
daughter. Her husband could not answer any of our 
questions. 280.000 is very high not to have a basement 

Charles 
Dyches  

The RCO  
IS NOT from our COMMUNITY!  
Why are we not using the RCO from 8th & Diamond? 

PerrellJera
e Simmons   
  

Mr Rodriguez what the best way to reach for 
communication 

Andrew 
Zeygel angel.b.rodriguez@phdc.phila.gov 

sorry missed the part you 
Andrew 
Zeygel  

All of the food is free 
Andrea 
Vettori  

Thank you 
Andrew 
Zeygel  

Is there a stipulation requiring community gardens to give 
free produce to people in the community who are not 
members? J Fields No 

this is ridiculous! these meetings over zoom are 
unconstituional! we have to right to speak up and be 
heard. your meetings can wait 

Mara 
henao 
Henao  

If the garden conversation is tabled, will there be any way 
to hold off sherrif sales of the properties in duration? J Fields 

Sheriff sales that are occuring now are US 
Bank lien properties. The land bank cannot 
stop those sales. The City Treasury 
department is negotiating with US Bank to 
address this issue. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 18 of 179



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 15 of 120 

 

Condensed full transcript follows 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 19 of 179



Board of Directors Meeting 1 (1) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

                    CITY OF PHILADELPHIA

                   PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK

                          - - - - -

                 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

DATE:          Tuesday, March 14, 2023

LOCATION:      Zoom Teleconference

REPORTED BY:   John Kelly, Court Reporter

BOARD MEMBERS: ANNE FADULLON, Chairperson
               MARIA GONZALEZ, Secretary
               REBECCA LOPEZ KRISS, Treasurer
               MICHAEL KOONCE, Board Member
               MAJEEDAH RASHID, Board Member
               RICK SAUER, Board Member
               ANDREW GOODMAN, Board Member
               RICHARD DeMARCO, Board Member

ALSO PRESENT:  ANDREA IMREADY SAAH, Esquire, Board Counsel
               JESSIE LAWRENCE
               ANGEL RODRIGUEZ

                     Pages 1 through 128

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 20 of 179



Board of Directors Meeting 2 (2) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

                           AGENDA

                                                        PAGE

I. Roll Call                                               3

II. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting                     4
    of February 14, 2023

III. Executive Director's Report                           5

IV. Administrative Matters

  A. Termination of Declaration                            7
     of Restrictive Covenants

  B. Issuance of Consent to Sell Letters                  22

  C. Amendment, Assignment and Assumption                 29
     of Developer Obligations under Purchase
     and Development Agreement, and Amendment
     of Declaration of Restrictive Covenants

V. Property Dispositions

  A. Development - Affordable Housing                     57
     (Request for Proposals)

  B. Development - Gardens/Open Space                     92

  C. Development - Side/Rear Yards                        99

VI. Public Comment (Old & New Business)                  103

VII. Adjournment                                         127

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 21 of 179



Page 3
 1                     P R O C E E D I N G S

 2       CHAIR FADULLON:  Good morning, everybody, and welcome

 3 to the March meeting of the Philadelphia Land Bank Board.

 4 We will start with an announcement from our attorney about

 5 holding virtual meetings.

 6       MS. SAAH:  Good morning, everyone.  Today's Board

 7 meeting is being held via an authorized communication device

 8 because of the continued closure of Land Bank offices to the

 9 public due to public health concerns.  This meeting is being

10 recorded.  Questions and comments may be made using the Q&A

11 or raised hand button at the bottom of your screen.  If you

12 are calling in and not using the Zoom webinar link, you may

13 ask questions or make comments by pressing star 9 on your

14 phone or the "raise hand" function at the bottom of your

15 phone screen.  Please do not use the chat function. If any

16 member of the public has issues submitting questions or

17 comments, please send an email to Andrea.Saah@phdc.phila.gov

18 and that will be placed in the chat.  Please note all

19 questions and comments received by email prior to this

20 meeting or through the Q&A function will be included in

21 today's meeting minutes.  Also, prior to today's Public

22 Session, the Board held an Executive Session at which it

23 reviewed today's meeting agenda.  Thank you.

24       CHAIRPERSON FADULLON:  Thank you, and now roll call.

Page 4
 1       MS. SAAH:  Anne Fadullon?

 2       CHAIR FADULLON:  Here.

 3       MS. SAAH:  Majeedah Rashid?

 4       MS. RASHID:  Here.

 5       MS. SAAH:  Rick Sauer?

 6       MR. SAUER:  Here.

 7       MS. SAAH:  Andrew Goodman?

 8       MR. GOODMAN:  Here.

 9       MS. SAAH:  Rich DeMarco?

10       MR. DeMARCO:  Here.  Good morning.

11       MS. SAAH:  Good morning.  Maria Gonzalez?

12       MS. GONZALEZ:  Here.

13       MS. SAAH:  Michael Koonce?

14       MR. KOONCE:  Here.

15       MS. SAAH:  Michael Johns?

16       (No response.)

17       MS. SAAH:  Rebecca Lopez Kriss?

18       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  I'm here.

19       MS. SAAH:  Alexander Balloon?

20       (No response.)

21       MS. SAAH:  Okay.  So we have two absent, one vacancy,

22 so we have eight members present.  We have a quorum.

23       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  Thank you.  All right.  We'll

24 start with approval of the minutes from the February 14th

Page 5
 1 Land Bank Board meeting.  Hopefully the Board has had a

 2 chance to review those minutes.  If there's no questions or

 3 comments or edits, I will entertain a motion.

 4       MR. GOODMAN:  Motion to approve February meeting

 5 minutes.

 6       MS. GONZALEZ:  I second.

 7       CHAIR FADULLON:  Motion has been made and properly

 8 seconded to approve the minutes of the February 14, 2023

 9 Land Bank Board meeting.  All in favor?

10       (Chorus of ayes.)

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any opposed?

12       (No response.)

13       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Motion carries.

14 Executive Director's report?

15       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Good morning, everybody.  Today I'd

16 like to call your attention to the package, just in terms of

17 talking about progress that the Land Bank has made.

18       You'll see in the first chart that was provided, we

19 have issued and approved 14 RFPs across the city in the 1st,

20 2nd and 4th, also 5th districts.  Of those, we've approved

21 about 516 units of affordable housing.

22       Currently what we are doing is focusing on, obviously

23 the Land Bank has to go through a process of consolidating

24 deeds into the Land Bank to then go to settlement, so we're

Page 6
 1 doing that.  We have some that will be going into closing in

 2 April.  Others we have closed and are in the process of

 3 being developed as we speak.

 4       The second half, the lower portion of that chart in

 5 the first chart of the first page, you will see unsolicited

 6 affordable applications.  Now, these are not RFPs.  These

 7 are applications that were submitted to us by developers.

 8 These are in the 1st, 7th and 5th districts, and 2nd.  These

 9 are following the disposition policy of the mixed income.

10 We that, we've approved 116 units of affordable housing.  At

11 this point, here we have two that have settled and are under

12 construction.  And then we are moving towards three that are

13 under construction and others we're moving towards

14 settlement this month and next month.

15       So before I move on to the next one, does anybody have

16 any questions?

17       (No response.)

18       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  So the second chart that was placed in

19 the package for everybody to consider is an overall view.

20 This chart, as you've seen before, really talks about the

21 progress that the Land Bank has made across our goals for

22 the year.

23       You'll see that the strategic plan disposition targets

24 are at the top, and then what we're showing is because we

Board of Directors Meeting 3 (3 - 6) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 22 of 179



Page 7
 1 have to move everything into Land Bank, there are things at

 2 different various stages, but you'll note that we are, in

 3 terms of housing unit production and approval, we're 300

 4 times higher than what we had projected.  Again, it's just a

 5 real administrative issue of getting the deeds legally

 6 transferred and conveying a free and clear title.  Also

 7 we're moving towards closing on side yards and there are

 8 other items like business expansion as well as gardens and

 9 open space.

10       Any questions from the Board?

11       (No response.)

12       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  So that concludes my report.

13       CHAIR FADULLON:  Great.  Thank you.  Thank you, Angel.

14 All right.  We'll go on to the next section of the agenda,

15 which are a series of administrative matters.

16       MS. SAAH:  Yes.  So we received a letter of recusal

17 from Board Member Maria Gonzalez because these next three

18 resolutions pertain to HACE affordable housing corporation,

19 of which she is the president, so she will be turning off

20 her audio and video during these resolutions.

21       The first resolution under Agenda Item IV.A pertains

22 to the sale of a property that the Land Bank conveyed to

23 HACE in July of 2021.  The developer is asking the Board to

24 approve the termination of the declaration of restrictive

Page 8
 1 covenants with respect to that property which was 3028 North

 2 American Street, and to not impose any of the penalties

 3 provided in the purchase and development agreement for

 4 HACE's default under the purchase and development agreement

 5 and the declaration of restrictive covenants pertaining to

 6 that property.

 7       Just by way of a quick background, the Board approved

 8 the conveyance of nine properties including 3028 North

 9 American Street to HACE for the development of the

10 properties for affordable homeownership and the sale of the

11 land and improvements to income-qualified purchasers making

12 not more than 80 percent of AMI, Area Median Income, with a

13 minimum affordability period of 10 years and a maximum

14 affordability period of 30 years.

15       That application was unsolicited at the time,

16 evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy, and the

17 properties were sold to the developer for $1.00 each.  A

18 year after the properties were conveyed, HACE notified the

19 Land Bank that it wished to transfer the properties and the

20 homes built on them to Good Lands Trust, which is a

21 non-profit corporation that is wholly owned by HACE, and

22 also that they wished to sell only the homes to purchasers,

23 retaining ownership of the land in the Land Trust, to ensure

24 permanent affordability.

Page 9
 1       Four months after that initial inquiry, the developer

 2 conveyed 3028 North American Street to its Land Trust, and

 3 the Land Trust then sold the home built on the land to a

 4 purchaser and leased the land to the buyer instead of

 5 selling it.  These actions occurred without the Land Bank's

 6 knowledge and consent and without complying with obligations

 7 under the Purchase and Development Agreement and the

 8 Declaration of Restrictive Covenants that was recorded

 9 against all nine properties.

10       As a result, the PDA, HACE and the Land Trust are now

11 in default under the Purchase and Development Agreement and

12 the Declaration of Restrictive Covenants, and this is

13 considered an incurable default.  Furthermore, the

14 provisions of the sales agreement and lease used by the Land

15 Trust are not compatible with the provisions of the

16 Declaration of Restrictive Covenants.

17       Now, under the provisions of the PDA, the penalty for

18 an unauthorized transfer is the payment of 50 percent of

19 the sales price to the Land Bank.  In addition, the Land

20 Bank has the right to revert title to the premises back to

21 the Land Bank and to take possession of it.

22       The Board package contained a much more detailed

23 description of the events and the individual violations,

24 which the Board has hopefully reviewed.

Page 10
 1       The staff's recommendation is that given that the Land

 2 Bank does not wish to penalize the buyer as a result

 3 of HACE's and the Land Trust's actions, and given that the

 4 imposition of the financial penalty would present a hardship

 5 to HACE and the Land Trust, the staff recommends that the

 6 Board approve the termination of the Declaration of

 7 Restrictive Covenants with respect to the premises, with

 8 respect to 3028 North American Street, and that the Board

 9 agree to not impose the penalties for the default that are

10 provided in the PDA.  Thank you.

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Andrea.  And did we

12 receive any email comments about this item prior to the

13 meeting?

14       MS. SAAH:  We received a memo from Harry Tapia, who is

15 the director of operations for HACE, pertaining to -- I'm

16 sorry, I'm just trying to look for it -- pertaining to all

17 three resolutions.

18       And HACE's comment with respect to this one was, HACE

19 is in agreement with the staff recommendation.  The economic

20 hardship to HACE is further reason for the Board to also

21 approve one of the other resolutions, but they had no

22 comment to this and there were no other public comments.

23       CHAIR FADULLON:  Great.  Thank you.  Are there any

24 questions or comments from the Board on this item?

Board of Directors Meeting 4 (7 - 10) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 23 of 179



Page 11
 1       (No response.)

 2       CHAIR FADULLON:  Seeing none, do we have any members

 3 of the public that wish to speak to this item?  We do have

 4 one hand raised.  Can we un-mute Harry Tapia, please?

 5       MR. TAPIA:  Hey, good morning, Board of Directors.

 6 Again, my name is Harry Tapia, director of operations at

 7 HACE.  You know, we definitely welcome the recommendation of

 8 the Board.

 9       We do apologize, you know, regarding this, you know,

10 default.  It's never happened to us before.  We were, you

11 know, this was in the middle of COVID.  We were really

12 ambitious, trying to get this project, you know, completed

13 and sold, and you know, sort of, you know, got a little bit

14 ahead of ourselves.

15       So again, we wanted to apologize regarding this

16 default, and again, HACE has never had any issue like this

17 before and we will definitely, you know, take the

18 recommendation of the staff when it comes to Item A, so

19 thank you.

20       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you.  Next we have Carlos

21 Rendon.

22       MR. RENDON:  Good morning, everyone.  My name is

23 Carlos Rendon.  I am a staffer here with Council Member

24 Lozada's office and I am speaking on behalf of the office.

Page 12
 1 The Council Member is supportive of this resolution.

 2       CHAIR FADULLON:  Great.  Thank you, Mr. Rendon.  And

 3 next we have Nefertiti Stanford.  Go ahead, Ms. Stanford.

 4 You are un-muted.

 5       (No response.)

 6       CHAIR FADULLON:  Ms. Stanford no longer has her hand

 7 up.  Ms. Stanford, do you have a comment for the Board on

 8 this item?

 9       (No response.)

10       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right, doesn't look like it, so

11 I'm going to ask for a motion from the Board.

12       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  I have a question for Harry.

13       CHAIR FADULLON:  Sure.

14       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Harry, for the sake of the public,

15 are you able to articulate the difference between what

16 you're proposing and what you originally proposed?

17       (No response.)

18       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Is he there?

19       CHAIR FADULLON:  Are we able to get Harry back?  There

20 we go.

21       MR. TAPIA:  Hey.  So originally we, you know, again,

22 proposed to develop these with restrictions, resale

23 restrictions, right.  We were challenged in order to try,

24 you know, something innovative which is a Land Trust.

Page 13
 1       The difference between having just regular

 2 restrictions would be that, you know, you can have a home

 3 that would have a 10-year restriction that then could be

 4 sold, you know, to another market rate buyer.

 5       Under our Good Lands Trust, we would have restrictions

 6 where that home would stay low-income into perpetuity, which

 7 means that, you know, that first home buyer, once they are

 8 ready to move on to their second home, then they would have

 9 to sell that home to another buyer that's at 80 percent or

10 less of area median income.

11       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Okay.  So what are the risks to the

12 home buyer in this situation?

13       MR. TAPIA:  So the home buyer really doesn't have a

14 risk.  What, you know, they take a chance, again, at the

15 market, right, and you know, they're trying to generate

16 wealth, right, through purchasing a home.

17       This model allows them to generate wealth because

18 there is a resale formula where they're able to resell.

19 After 10 years, there's a resale formula where they can sell

20 the property up to four percent, four times 60 percent of

21 AMI.  So they're still able to generate wealth.  The only

22 restriction would be that they need to sell it to another,

23 you know, low-income family.

24       CHAIR FADULLON:  Harry, can you explain what you just

Page 14
 1 said?  They can sell it at four percent, up to four times,

 2 60 percent of median?

 3       MR. TAPIA:  Correct.  So --

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  What does that mean?

 5       MR. TAPIA:  Yeah, all right.  So we have a resale

 6 formula, right, and there's two aspects of it.  The first 10

 7 years, they accumulate very little wealth because we want

 8 them to, you know, be in the community and be part of the

 9 community and take part in the revitalization of the

10 community.

11       So for the first 10 years, they are able to appreciate

12 to five percent of purchase price.  After year 11, then

13 they're able, there's a resale formula where they can sell

14 the property, right.  If you take 60 percent of AMI for a

15 family of four, that annual amount, you times it by four,

16 then that is what they can sell the property for.

17       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  So I just want to make an

18 example, all right.  So the first 10 years they can only

19 increase it by a certain percent, the value by a certain

20 percent, but in year 11, let's say a house affordable to 60

21 percent of median was $100,000, just to make the math easy.

22 They could potentially sell the house at $400,000, is that

23 what you're saying?

24       MR. TAPIA:  Correct, yes, up to $400,000, but they

Board of Directors Meeting 5 (11 - 14) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 24 of 179



Page 15
 1 need to sell it to somebody that's at 80 percent of AMI.

 2       CHAIR FADULLON:  Right.  So the reality is they can

 3 only sell it at, it's not really capped at four times 60

 4 percent.  It's really capped at whatever is affordable to

 5 somebody who could pay at 80 percent.

 6       So for example, four times 60 could be 400, but the 80

 7 percent price could be 250, and what they can really sell it

 8 at would be the 250.  Correct?

 9       MR. TAPIA:  That is correct.  And then the main thing

10 about this, right, we are building these at $340,000.  We're

11 selling these, with the first one that we sold, we sold it

12 at 160.  So that 250 is still double the amount of equity

13 that you earn, right.

14       So when I think about a homeowner, right, you're able

15 to go into a new construction property at a really minimum

16 mortgage, anywhere from 160 to 180, and year 11 be able to

17 double the amount of equity that you build.

18       So it's a win-win for the buyer, right, because you're

19 not walking into a property that needs repair.  It's a

20 property that's brand new, brand new construction, so you

21 mitigate your risk up front.  You're buying a property

22 that's 100 percent new.

23       And so that's, you know, again, that's also the value

24 that we're adding, you know, through the Land Trust, because

Page 16
 1 you can go down the block.  The houses on Kensington Courts,

 2 they're up for $450,000, the same model that we're selling.

 3       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Mr. Tapia, your description of the

 4 resell price isn't consistent with my understanding of how

 5 this all goes down.

 6       Andrea, is it possible for you to go through this

 7 again, and can we figure out where the discrepancy is?

 8       MS. SAAH:  Yes, sure.  So Exhibit B of the Board

 9 packet pertaining to this resolution, there's a table

10 telling how the resale price is calculated.

11       And Harry, if I may call you that --

12       MR. TAPIA:  Yes.

13       MS. SAAH:  -- can you just clarify?  My understanding

14 was that the lease provides that it's three times the income

15 of a family of four at 60 percent of AMI, not four times.

16 Is that a misunderstanding on my part?

17       MR. TAPIA:  Sorry, it's three times.  Correct.  Three

18 times.

19       MS. SAAH:  Three times, okay.  And so that is one type

20 of calculation that is used after the first ten years.

21 That's called the formula price.  And then the other way,

22 the other calculation is the purchaser's ownership interest

23 at resale which is basically a complicated calculation based

24 on what the purchase price was originally compared to the

Page 17
 1 appraised value of the land and the home, and then that's

 2 multiplied times the market value at the time or the

 3 appraised value at the time of resale, and the Land Trust

 4 chooses, basically it's the lower of those two prices,

 5 correct?

 6       MR. TAPIA:  Correct.

 7       MS. SAAH:  Okay.  So there are examples in that table

 8 of what it would be after at $160,000 sale price and the

 9 $200,000 appraised value at the time it was sold, what the

10 resale price would be after three years and then after 10

11 years, and that's making, of course, certain assumptions

12 about the increase in value, things like that.

13       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any other --

14       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Thank you, Andrea.

15       MS. SAAH:  It's --

16       CHAIR FADULLON:  Go ahead.  I'm sorry.

17       MS. SAAH:  Sorry, I just was wondering if there were

18 any -- I mean, it's a complicated formula.

19       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any other questions?  And just to

20 remind the Board that this one is about the consent to sell

21 the one property.  Is that right?

22       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  The default.

23       CHAIR FADULLON:  No, it's the termination of the

24 Declaration of Restrictive Covenants on the one property.

Page 18
 1       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Just that one property and then the

 2 rest are the original deal.

 3       CHAIR FADULLON:  And then we'll get to the rest of it.

 4       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  So I know that HACE has provided a

 5 number of documents.  I mean, I'm looking at the timeline

 6 how this all went down, and like, they made a request for us

 7 to change it.  There was a slow response and then they just

 8 sold it anyway.  Is that correct?  I'm looking at page 19 of

 9 the Board packet.

10       MS. SAAH:  Are you asking me?  Sorry.

11       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Yes.

12       MS. SAAH:  Oh, I'm sorry.  Okay.

13       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  I wasn't clear.  On my side, I'm

14 looking at you.

15       (Laughter.)

16       MS. SAAH:  I can't see that.  Yes.  So there was a

17 request to commit assignment to the Land Trust of all the

18 properties in July of last year, and then we started

19 reviewing all the documents to see what that would entail.

20       And then as we were going through that and receiving

21 drafts and final versions and things like that, then 3028

22 was sold.  Actually, the agreement of sale was signed before

23 the request was made to us, but then it was sold in October

24 of last year.

Board of Directors Meeting 6 (15 - 18) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 25 of 179



Page 19
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  Harry, do you want to make a quick

 2 comment on that?

 3       MR. TAPIA:  Yes, I do.

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  I see your hand up.  Go ahead.

 5       MR. TAPIA:  Yeah, yeah.  So we've been providing

 6 information on our Land Trust going back into the summer.

 7 We were, as Andrea mentioned, right, so we were drafting and

 8 putting together our stewardship plan.

 9       So they requested information.  As we were going back

10 and working with our consultants to finalize it and working

11 with regional legal housing services, we were providing

12 information.

13       So it wasn't as if we were not sort of front-coming

14 with what we had is, as Andrea asked for revisions, then we

15 went back, met with our consultants, met with our legal

16 attorneys to make sure that we provided the correct answers.

17       But it was way before the summer that we had the

18 intention to notify the Land Bank that we were building a

19 Land Trust.

20       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Harry, could you just be very clear,

21 at the time of the sale we did not provide authority for you

22 to assign it to the Land Trust.

23       MR. TAPIA:  That is correct, and again, I started off

24 this meeting apologizing.  We got ahead of ourselves.  We've

Page 20
 1 been working at this from, you know from the beginning.

 2       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  You requested a change.  We were

 3 working on it, we were requesting issues.  That was an

 4 ongoing process.  And during that time, the decision on the

 5 part of HACE was to proceed with the sale under a format

 6 that hadn't been approved, correct?

 7       MR. TAPIA:  That is correct.  But again, if the Land

 8 Bank would have said, hey, this is definitely not going to

 9 fly, then it would have been different.  We thought we were

10 working at it.  And yes, again, I apologize.  We got ahead

11 of ourselves and we were moving very quickly.  It was, you

12 know --

13       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  So I think --

14       MR. TAPIA:  -- we were under the sort of a frame that

15 we were working to get this done and that it would be

16 something achievable.

17       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  So I guess, I mean, I think no one

18 wants to get in the way or penalize the purchaser of the

19 building.  However, how does HACE intend to prevent this

20 type of oversight from happening again?

21       MR. TAPIA:  Well, you know, very quickly, we've lost,

22 I want to say four buyers since, you know, we notified the

23 Land Bank of selling the first home.

24       So we take this very serious.  Again, we've been

Page 21
 1 around since 1982.  We've never been in default in any of

 2 the funding or the city programs that we've dealt with.  So

 3 we take this very serious.  And again, that's why I started

 4 off apologizing, because this was uncharacteristic.  We were

 5 dealing in the pandemic.  We were, you know, really moving

 6 to get this done.

 7       We built five houses.  We had three break-ins, so we

 8 were really motivated to get somebody in there in order to

 9 stop the, sort of stop the bleeding and stop the houses from

10 getting robbed.

11       We had three break-ins, you know.  That was another

12 $80,000 that we had to pay in additional to building these.

13 So you know, we went in defensive mode, like, all right, we

14 have a buyer.  Let's hurry up and get them in there so that

15 we can protect the homes.

16       We completed all nine now.  We've really been waiting

17 and trying to work with the Land Bank to make sure that we

18 do get the approval to put them in the Land Trust, so to

19 make sure that this doesn't happen again.

20       Again, we were dealing during COVID, and you know, our

21 project was getting broken into.  We were trying to hurry up

22 and get, you know, somebody in there to prevent that from

23 continuing to happen.

24       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Thank you.

Page 22
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Harry.  Any other

 2 questions or comments from the Board?

 3       (No response.)

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Seeing none, I'll call

 5 the question.  Can I get a motion on Item IV.A, which is the

 6 termination of Declaration of Restrictive Covenants for 3028

 7 North American Street?

 8       MR. SAUER:  I'll make a motion to approve the

 9 resolution.

10       MR. GOODMAN:  Second.

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Motion has been made and

12 properly seconded to terminate the Declaration of

13 Restrictive Covenants for 3028 North American Street.  All

14 in favor?

15       (Chorus of ayes.)

16       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any opposed?

17       (No response.)

18       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Motion carries.  That

19 brings us to Item IV.B, which is the issuance of consent to

20 sell letters.

21       MR. LAWRENCE:  Thank you, Chair.  Today the request

22 comes again from HACE.  The Board's requested to authorize

23 the issuance of consent to sell letters to HACE for homes

24 constructed on 19, 21, 23, 25 and 27 E. Somerset Street and

Board of Directors Meeting 7 (19 - 22) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 26 of 179



Page 23
 1 also on 3022, 3024 and 3026 North American Street,

 2 collectively referred to in this package as the premises.

 3 Looking to get both authorizations for the consent to sell

 4 and the authorization for the issuance of a certificate of

 5 completion upon completion of the entire project.

 6       Just a bit of background, The Land Bank entered into a

 7 purchase and development agreement with HACE dated July of

 8 2021 specifically for the development of nine affordable

 9 homeownership units that were located on 3022, 3024, 3026

10 and 3028 North American Street, as well as 19, 21, 23, 25

11 and 27 East Somerset Street, referred to as the project in

12 this package.

13       Pursuant to the Agreement, HACE was required to, among

14 other things, adhere to the following requirements with

15 regard to the project itself:

16       An Economic Opportunity Plan requirements, also

17 referred to as EOP; permission to proceed with the sale of

18 the units in the project; marketing requirements; income

19 certification requirements; and inspection requirements.

20       On October 31, 2022, HACE requested the Land Bank's

21 consent to sell the unit located and completed at 3024 North

22 American Street.  They were provided with the checklist of

23 items, as the aforementioned items.

24       It was then brought to the Land Bank's attention on

Page 24
 1 December 5, 2022 that HACE had already sold the unit

 2 completed at 3028 North American Street on October 11, 2022

 3 without adhering to any of the requirements in the

 4 agreement.  This ultimately placed HACE in default of the

 5 executed agreement.  To address HACE's request to sell 3024

 6 and the unauthorized sale of 3028, the Land Bank took the

 7 following steps and corrective actions to bring the

 8 developer back into compliance to the extent possible.

 9       The first step was regarding EOP.  The staff reached

10 out to the city's Compliance Unit to confirm if these

11 requirements were met and determined that the EOP was not

12 monitored due to an oversight.  Because of this, the

13 department tasked with monitoring the economic opportunity

14 plan cannot sign off on the project.

15       HACE was then contacted to ascertain if documentation

16 was available to evidence the efforts made to hire

17 minority-owned business enterprises and women-owned business

18 enterprises as well.

19       In response, HACE provided the information that would

20 allow the Compliance Unit to assess HACE's economic

21 opportunity plan performance.  Upon Compliance's review, it

22 determined that HACE met the requirement for hiring

23 women-owned business enterprises but did not meet the

24 requirement for hiring minority-owned business enterprises.

Page 25
 1 The project's current near-completion status minimizes the

 2 likelihood of meeting this requirement overall.

 3       The second step we took were regarding income

 4 certifications.  HACE submitted income certification

 5 packages to the Land Bank for the homebuyers of 3024 and

 6 3028 on December 7, 2022.  Staff approved each homebuyer as

 7 compliant with the income requirements of the project on

 8 December 15, 2022.

 9       We then took inspections as the next step.  The Land

10 Bank received certificates of occupancy for all four of the

11 units built on American Street, and these units were

12 inspected on December 9, 2022.  Land Bank confirmed that the

13 development of these units adhered to approved plans set

14 forth in the purchase agreement.

15       So today, should the Board approve the issuance of the

16 consent to sell letters for HACE for the affordable

17 homes and the issuance of a certificate of completion upon

18 completion of the project, HACE must comply with all its

19 obligations and requirements under the agreement in order to

20 receive a consent to sell for affordable homes and receive

21 the certificate of completion following the completion of

22 the project, including, but not limited to, the following

23 items.

24       HACE may not market or enter into an agreement of sale

Page 26
 1 for a unit without first allowing PHA to market the unit for

 2 the 30 days, with the Land Bank determining the beginning of

 3 that marketing period.

 4       The Land Bank must also be notified of the completion

 5 of the unit and receive certificates of occupancy from HACE.

 6       The Land Bank must also inspect any completed unit to

 7 ensure adherence to plans and may then issue a consent to

 8 sell letter to HACE.

 9       HACE must also notify the Land Bank of a prospective

10 buyer by submitting documentation to the Land Bank for

11 the buyer's income certification, along with a required Land

12 Bank rider to the agreement of sale signed by the

13 prospective buyer.

14       So today, the staff recommendation is that the Board

15 approve this resolution to permit the issuance of consent to

16 sell letters for the homes constructed on 3022, 3024 and

17 3026 North American Street and on 19, 21, 23, 25 and 27 East

18 Somerset Street and ultimately also the issuance of a

19 certificate of completion for the project, subject to the

20 developer's full compliance with the terms of the agreement.

21 Thank you.

22       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Jessie.  Any questions or

23 comments from the Board on this item?

24       (No response.)

Board of Directors Meeting 8 (23 - 26) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 27 of 179



Page 27
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  Seeing none, do we have any members

 2 -- oh, I'm sorry.  Someone have a question?  All of a

 3 sudden, I heard something.

 4       Any members of the public that wish to speak to this

 5 item?  Can we un-mute Carlos Rendon, please?

 6       MR. RENDON:  Hello, this is Carlos Rendon again on

 7 behalf of Council Member Lozada.  She is in support of this

 8 resolution for Item IV.B.  Thank you.

 9       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you.  And Harry Tapia?

10       MR. TAPIA:  Hey, good afternoon again.  So just wanted

11 to sort of go over what HACE did, and again, sort of

12 apologize for, you know, this project not going sort of, you

13 know, as planned.

14       Usually what happens is, we had a kickoff meeting when

15 we have a city-funded project where we go over every single

16 item.  And because of COVID, we really didn't get a chance

17 to go over this one in detail, and again, you know, some

18 steps were missed.

19       Also wanted to reiterate, we were working under COVID

20 so it really, really was challenging for us to find

21 minorities that we can have participate in this project.  We

22 did these modular, so that really reduced the amount of

23 opportunities that we can have.

24       We did do our best efforts.  We did reach out to the

Page 28
 1 ones -- you know, we have three minority contractors that we

 2 felt could handle this type of work, and unfortunately,

 3 because they were working on other projects, they didn't

 4 have the capacity to also bid on this work because all of

 5 their projects were delayed.

 6       So we end up still, you know, just about meeting our

 7 obligations.  It was just inverted, right?  So we were at 25

 8 percent for WBE and we were at six percent for MBE, and

 9 we're still working to get -- we did have a security company

10 because, again, once we didn't get the consent to sell, we

11 had to get a security company doctor to monitor these

12 properties to make sure that they weren't broken into.

13       So we're working with the Enterprise Center right now

14 to get them certified, and that should definitely boost us

15 up to at least 10 percent MBE, and then 25 percent WBE,

16 which would be 35 percent combined.

17       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Harry.

18       I don't see any other members of the public with their

19 hand raised, so if there's no other questions or comments

20 from the Board, I'll entertain a motion on this item.

21       MR. KOONCE:  Motion to approve.

22       MR. GOODMAN:  Second.

23       CHAIR FADULLON:  Motion has been made and properly

24 seconded to approve the issuance of consent to sell letters

Page 29
 1 for properties on North American Street and East Somerset

 2 Street.  All in favor?

 3       (Chorus of ayes.)

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any opposed?

 5       (No response.)

 6       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Motion carries, and that

 7 brings us to Item IV.C, which is -- this is a mouthful --

 8 Amendment, Assignment and Assumption of Developer

 9 Obligations under Purchase and Development Agreement and

10 Amendment of Declaration of Restrictive Covenants for

11 Properties on East Somerset Street and North American

12 Street.

13       And Andrea, I'm sorry.  That last item, I forgot if

14 there was public comment.  I assume there was nothing too

15 relevant that came in, even though I did write that notice

16 to myself, but let's hear this one and then I'm definitely

17 going to remember to refer to you.

18       MS. SAAH:  Thank you.  I appreciate it.  Good morning,

19 Board.  So this Item IV.C is HACE's request to approve,

20 number one, a modification in the use of the premises,

21 meaning the land, allowing the developer to retain title to

22 the premises indefinitely and to sell only the improvements

23 erected on the land and to lease the land to qualified

24 purchasers, under different provisions than those contained

Page 30
 1 in the Purchase and Development Agreement and the

 2 Declaration of Restrictive Covenants;

 3       Number two, to convey the premises with all the homes

 4 constructed on the land, to Good Lands Trust, its assignee;

 5       And number three, to assign the HACE's rights and

 6 responsibilities under the Purchase and Development

 7 Agreement and the Declaration of Restrictive Covenants, as

 8 amended for the modified use, to Good Lands Trust.

 9       So by way of background, again, this is very similar

10 to what I described, this is the same as what I described in

11 the first, with respect to the first resolution.  The homes

12 were to be sold to purchasers with a household income at or

13 below 80 percent of AMI with a minimum and maximum

14 affordability period of 10 years up to 30 years.

15       The resale provisions during that affordability period

16 would allow for a modest increase in equity during that

17 compliance period while ensuring that the home would be

18 sold, home and land, to a future homebuyer who is

19 income-qualified at or below 80 percent of area median

20 income.

21       Again, we went through the sequence that HACE

22 requested we transfer the properties and the homes to Good

23 Lands Trust.  Subsequently, HACE has indicated that it

24 wishes to sell 3024 North American Street under the original

Board of Directors Meeting 9 (27 - 30) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 28 of 179



Page 31
 1 provisions of the project, meaning home and land would be

 2 sold outright to the buyer.

 3       So this request pertains only to the remaining seven

 4 properties in the project which are 19, 21, 23, 25 and 27

 5 East Somerset Street, and 3022 and 3026 North American

 6 Street.

 7       So I just wanted to briefly provide a summary, because

 8 this is very relevant here, comparison of the Land Bank and

 9 Land Trust sale, resale and lease provisions, and these are

10 in written form in Exhibit B to this fact sheet.

11       Both the Land Bank and the Land Trust have a residency

12 requirement that this be the primary residence of the

13 purchaser.  Renting of the home is not permitted under Land

14 Bank regulations.  Under the Land Trust, it is permitted

15 with the consent, but the rent amount is restricted.

16       The income level restrictions are the same.  It's up

17 to 80 percent of AMI, although the Land Trust is trying to

18 lower that to homeowners with a lower area median income.

19       The affordability period restrictions are minimum ten

20 years, maximum of 30 year for the Land Bank.  For the Land

21 Trust, it is a 99 year lease to the homeowner which can be

22 renewed by their heirs, I suppose.

23       The sale price permitted under the Declaration of

24 Restrictive Covenants in the Land Bank is $195,000, no more

Page 32
 1 than $195,000.  The Land Trust sold its first home at

 2 $160,000 and intends to sell the remaining seven homes at

 3 $190,000.

 4       Ownership under the Land Bank's model is land and

 5 improvements, and under the Land Trust model it is the

 6 improvements, the home.

 7       There are lease payments for the lease of the land for

 8 a homeowner in the Land Trust, none for the Land Bank.

 9       The responsibility for payment of property taxes, in

10 the Land Bank's model, the homeowner is responsible for

11 paying taxes on land and the home, and under the Land Trust

12 model, the homeowner is also responsible for paying taxes on

13 the land and the home.

14       Utilities are both always the owner's responsibility.

15 Maintenance and repair of both the land and the home are the

16 owner's responsibility in both models.

17       Under the Land Bank's model, the Land Bank retains the

18 right of first refusal, meaning it can purchase the property

19 back at the set price.  Under the Land Trust model, it's the

20 Land Trust that has that right of first refusal.

21       The resale price, as I mentioned earlier, in the Land

22 Trust model is the lower of two calculations.  It's too

23 complicated for me to describe, but if anyone is really

24 interested, please go to Exhibit B.

Page 33
 1       Under the Land Bank model, it is the original price

 2 paid by the owner plus closing costs paid at purchase and

 3 closing costs, estimated closing costs to be paid at resale

 4 by the homebuyer, all adjusted for inflation.

 5       I also gave in the table examples of what the resale

 6 price would be, making certain assumptions about inflation

 7 rate and appraised value of the land.  In the Land Bank's

 8 model, the resale price is higher for the homeowner.  The

 9 Land Trust resale price is lower.

10       And on the other hand, the Land Trust, home can never

11 be sold at the market value, whereas under the Land Bank's

12 model, the home can be sold at market value no more than 30

13 years after the original purchase.

14       Capital improvements, there's no provision in the Land

15 Bank's resale calculation because there's a limited

16 affordability period, so if an owner makes a capital

17 improvement to the home, that is not included in the resale

18 price.  Under the Land Trust's model, if the capital

19 improvement occurs with their consent, then 50 percent of

20 that cost is added to the resale cost calculation but

21 depreciated over ten years.

22       Insurance, the Land Bank doesn't have any homeowner's

23 insurance requirements.  That's usually the mortgage

24 lender's requirement.  And under the Land Trust model, both

Page 34
 1 replacement and liability insurance are required.

 2       And then the proceeds of a mortgage foreclosure, under

 3 the Land Bank model, the resale and purchaser restrictions

 4 end when the mortgage company forecloses upon the mortgage,

 5 and the proceeds from the sale, if there are any after

 6 satisfaction of the mortgage are paid to the other.  Under

 7 the Land Bank model, the Land Trust has a right to purchase

 8 the mortgage for the amount owed to the lender.  If the home

 9 is sold by the lender to another party, then after the

10 mortgage is paid off, the homeowner receives a restricted

11 amount, what they would have received had they sold it as

12 under the Land Trust calculation and then the Land Trust

13 receives the excess.

14       There also is a summary of the relative advantages and

15 disadvantages of each.  I don't think I will read them here

16 because it's quite lengthy, but basically the basic summary

17 is, the Land Trust model is heavily weighted in favor of

18 long-term or permanent affordability, whereas the Land Bank

19 provisions are shorter term affordability but a higher, more

20 wealth creation for the homeowner, whereas under the Land

21 Trust model, the homeowner has a lower increase in equity

22 after ten years.

23       I hope that summarizes everything fairly clearly.  The

24 staff's recommendation for this particular resolution, based

Board of Directors Meeting 10 (31 - 34) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 29 of 179



Page 35
 1 on the current provisions of the Land Trust, is that the

 2 Board reject this request based on the current structure of

 3 the Land Trust model, and maintain the project as originally

 4 approved, requiring the homes to be sold at a maximum price

 5 of $195,000 to purchasers at or below 80 percent of AMI,

 6 with the Land Bank's recorded Declaration of Restrictive

 7 Covenants governing the sale and resale of the homes as well

 8 as the affordability period.

 9       And just to expand upon that, the reason the staff

10 reached that recommendation was because this was originally

11 a homeownership project, and the Land Bank felt strongly

12 that the concerns of wealth creation were an important part

13 of that disposition and that the Land Trust model as

14 currently structured in this case does not provide that

15 sufficiently, and also that the financial burden of paying

16 the property taxes for both land and home is unfair to a

17 homeowner who only owns the home.

18       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Andrea.

19       And did we receive any comment on this item prior to

20 the meeting?

21       MS. SAAH:  None from members of the public, but

22 subsequently to the Board package being posted and sent to

23 the Board, HACE did submit documentation indicating two

24 things: one, that they received $300,000 in state funding,

Page 36
 1 PHARE, for the construction of the homes on these properties

 2 based on their being in the Land Trust;

 3       And secondly, that they were awarded $750,000 from

 4 Federal Home Loan Bank for another project that was for five

 5 PHA properties HACE was going to renovate or build new on.

 6 It did not come to fruition, and therefore HACE submitted a

 7 request to Federal Home Loan Bank to change their award to

 8 apply to the five properties on East Somerset Street, for

 9 the five of the nine it received from the Land Bank for the

10 80 percent AMI project, and also based upon assurance that

11 HACE would place them in the Land Trust and apparently

12 approval of this change or modification in the Federal Home

13 Loan Bank's award requires a modified Purchase and

14 Development Agreement and I would assume a Declaration of

15 Restrictive Covenants as well since ours is currently not

16 what the Land Trust wants.

17       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  Thank you, Andrea.

18       Do we have any questions or comments about this item

19 from the Board?

20       MR. SAUER:  Just one question.  You had mentioned in

21 the Land Bank's, I don't know if it's official dispositions

22 policies or just in the PDA, but the maximum affordability

23 period the Land Bank allows for homeownership projects is

24 only 30 years.  Did I hear that correct?  And what's the

Page 37
 1 rationale for that?

 2       MS. SAAH:  So the disposition policy provides for a 30

 3 year mortgage for side yards and gardens.  We don't place a

 4 mortgage on affordable homes because we don't provide the

 5 mortgage to the homeowner.  That's the --

 6       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Andrea, the confusion is, there's the

 7 disposition policy of disposing land and the terms on

 8 disposing land for affordable development, and then there's

 9 housing terms where originally the legislation was 10 years

10 and if the first homebuyer then sold the property in the

11 first 10 years, there would be a calculation and then the 10

12 years would reset up to 30 years.

13       With the advent of Turn the Key, that has been

14 extended to 15 years.  So the first homebuyer would be

15 responsible.  So a way to think about this, in a typical

16 development that the Land Bank approves, the resale

17 restriction and affordability restriction falls to the first

18 homebuyer, not -- the developer develops the property.  The

19 developer is required to make sure that -- and so is the

20 Land Bank -- make sure that the homebuyer, the initial

21 homebuyer is income qualified, meaning they meet the AMI

22 requirements.  That homebuyer --

23       (Pause.)

24       MR. SAUER:  Did Angel just freeze?  He's back.

Page 38
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  We lost you there for a second,

 2 Angel.

 3       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Oh, sorry.  Where did you lose me?

 4 So, can you hear me now?

 5       CHAIR FADULLON:  Yes.

 6       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  The restrictions fall to the homebuyer

 7 on the affordability and resale, and that's 15 years, all

 8 right, with the advent of Turn the Key which provides that

 9 soft second mortgage.

10       So I don't want to confuse the issue of disposing of

11 land to a developer to develop affordable housing, that of

12 course the initial homebuyer has to meet the income

13 requirement, all right.

14       What this fundamentally is saying is that because --

15 in essence, because of the way this is structured with a

16 long-term lease and with the improvement on top, the

17 involvement of the developers is a longer period of time.

18       MR. SAUER:  Okay.  So under Turn the Key, we have sort

19 of a maximum affordability period, but in general, the

20 disposition policies does not cap the length of the

21 affordability period for homeownership projects; is that

22 correct?

23       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  It doesn't cap it.  It sets it, and it

24 also sets the recourse and responsibilities.

Board of Directors Meeting 11 (35 - 38) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 30 of 179



Page 39
 1       MR. SAUER:  Thank you.

 2       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any other questions on this item from

 3 the Board?

 4       (No response.)

 5       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Seeing none, do we have

 6 any members of the public that wish to speak to this item?

 7 Mr. Tapia?

 8       MR. TAPIA:  Hey, again, thank you for all your time,

 9 the Board.  I know that we've been taking up a lot of time

10 on your Board meeting today.

11       But you know, it is very important that, you know,

12 that you guys really approve our recommendation.  This is

13 going to be a real hardship on our organization, as you can,

14 you know, as Andrea mentioned.  This is a million dollars

15 worth of funding that we would have to reject and send back

16 to PHARE and the Federal Home Loan Bank. If you take that

17 million dollars, right, in comparison to HACE's annual

18 budget, our annual budget is about $1.5 million.

19       And the reason, again, we applied, we really try to

20 use some city funding.  We try to use the Turn the Key, but

21 having Turn the Key and the Federal Home Loan Bank would

22 have too many soft seconds on the mortgages.

23       So the reason we, you know, we really went through

24 this is because as we were working with the Land Bank, we

Page 40
 1 thought that we were able to get the Land Trust model, you

 2 know, amended and approved and that's why we continue to

 3 fundraise, you know, in order to develop these.

 4       Again, as I mentioned, it costs us about $350,000 to

 5 build these.  We're selling them, the first one we sold at

 6 160.  The rest, we're selling them at 185.  And the only way

 7 that we can do this is really through fundraising.

 8       Those fundraising dollars are very limited and very,

 9 very competitive.  So we really, really would like to ask

10 the Board to approve our model.  The reason we want, right,

11 so we're really trying to put the Land Trust model in in

12 order to prevent gentrification and displacement.

13       Gentrification and displacement, in ten years, you

14 know, you can sell this house, take all the equity out of

15 it, and then we've lost yet another low-income neighborhood

16 in Philadelphia, which is the same thing that we

17 experienced.

18       I'm a product of the neighborhood.  I grew up in the

19 Norris Square neighborhood.  A lot of the home projects

20 there that were done, unfortunately, the first low-income

21 family sold those, moved on, and that neighborhood has been

22 completely lost, and there's no opportunity even for me to

23 go back and try to purchase in that neighborhood.

24       We really, really are trying to stop, you know,

Page 41
 1 displacement.  And the Fairhill and St. Hugh neighborhood is

 2 one of the neighborhoods that are left that we still have

 3 time in order to do that.

 4       And the Land Trust model is the one way that we

 5 figured out that we can make this displacement and keep

 6 displacement into perpetuity.  And we're not the only ones.

 7 When you're thinking about other non-profits, you know, WCRP

 8 has a land trust model.  We have APM, Esperanza, Mount

 9 Vernon Manor.  They're all who are coming.  We're just the

10 first one that have been able to build units under this Land

11 Trust model.

12       So we really, really, it would be a detrimental, you

13 know, hardship not just for us, right, because, you know, we

14 have to give this money back.  Then the next time that we go

15 to apply to build homes in this manner, you know, we're not

16 going to be as lucky.  And then ultimately, you know, we

17 would not be able to offer these to the residents of the

18 Fairhill and St. Hugh neighborhood.

19       So we plead with the Board to approve this and, you

20 know, sort of allow us to really fight gentrification and

21 displacement.  Thank you.

22       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Harry.  Next we'll

23 recognize Carlos Rendon.

24       MR. RENDON:  Hello again, everyone.  This is Carlos

Page 42
 1 Rendon, hopefully for the last time this morning.  On behalf

 2 of Council Member Lozada, we are in support of this

 3 resolution for Item IV.C.  Thank you.

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you.  I don't see any other

 5 members of the public that wish to comment, so I'm going to

 6 throw it to Rebecca.

 7       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  I have a quick question for Mr.

 8 Tapia.  So I'm interested in understanding your take on the

 9 criticism that it's not fair to the homeowner that they pay

10 taxes completely on the land and on the value of the

11 improvement.  What's your thinking there?

12       MR. TAPIA:  The Good Lands Trust is a non-profit.  We

13 have submitted for an exemption on the taxes on the land, so

14 we're currently working through that.  If for some reason we

15 do not receive that, then as a non-profit we would have to

16 continue to fundraise to then be able to take on the taxes

17 on the land.

18       So we do understand, and that's why we set it up as a

19 non-profit, in order to really try to get the taxes to be

20 exempt.  And then we also apply for tax abatements on

21 improvements and we're also working through that.

22       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  I'm not an employee of the OPA, but

23 I am not sure that that use would qualify for a non-profit

24 exemption.

Board of Directors Meeting 12 (39 - 42) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 31 of 179



Page 43
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  I think it depends if the non-profit

 2 is -- I think the lease payment may be the trigger there.

 3       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Yeah, that --

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  I think the non-profit could get tax

 5 exemption if they weren't earning any money off of the land.

 6 So it's just something to look into the details about that.

 7       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Yeah, there's not a guarantee that

 8 you'll get that exemption, is my point.

 9       MR. TAPIA:  Yeah, no.  And again, as a non-profit -- I

10 mean, HACE, we've been here for 40 years.  We're going to be

11 here for the next hundred years.  We'll continue to

12 fundraise to make sure that this does not burden homeowners.

13 That is not our intent.  We really want homeowners to enjoy

14 our neighborhood as we continue to rebuild around them.

15       Knowing that, you know, again, out of pocket, this is

16 going to cost us about $200,000, so we are investing into

17 this Good Lands Trust model.  We do not want to burden

18 homeowners and we will fundraise.

19       If the tax on the land becomes burdensome, we will

20 continue to fundraise and continue to write applications to

21 make sure that, you know, we're here to, you know, promote

22 wealth building but also promote the long-term affordability

23 and displacement of our neighborhood.

24       MR. GOODMAN:  I guess keeping with this for a little

Page 44
 1 bit, so I guess, staff's analysis kind of separated into two

 2 different categories, I guess.  One category is the merit of

 3 permanent affordability versus wealth creation, right, and

 4 that's, you know, that's a big discussion and obviously the

 5 Land Bank, the disposition policy has routes for any of

 6 those, and put that to the side for now.

 7       We're looking at the second category, which is more

 8 structural, I guess, and some of the disagreements or issues

 9 about some of the terms and restrictions, so I guess I put

10 it back to you, Harry.  Is the trust model and structure as

11 it relates to taxes, maintenance responsibilities, that

12 level of thing, is that set in stone or could time help, you

13 know, figure out a compromise on some of these things as it

14 relates to these properties?

15       (No response.)

16       CHAIR FADULLON:  Go ahead, Harry.

17       MR. TAPIA:  Can you hear me?  Oh, perfect.

18       CHAIR FADULLON:  Yeah.

19       MR. TAPIA:  Yeah.  So there is a Board, right, that

20 will be part of HACE homeowners and stakeholders with the

21 Good Lands Trust, that we will continue to meet.  There's

22 bylaws.  So if there's any adjustments that need to be made

23 in the future, homeowners are part of the Board.  They have

24 a say in, you know, any changes that need to be made.

Page 45
 1       There is a provision, if for some reason it needs to

 2 dissolve, let's say we tried it, it didn't work, God forbid,

 3 then the land automatically goes to the homeowner.

 4       So if we need to dissolve it, it will, but it does

 5 have a working Board that we will be able to pivot if, for

 6 some reason, let's say like, hey, the improvement formula

 7 isn't working, right, it's not really providing equitable

 8 equity and improvements that need to be made, that we need

 9 to update the formula.  Then the Board has that option to

10 say, yes, we need to change it to be 75 percent rather than

11 50 percent of the improvements.  So you do have a working

12 Board, and as a homeowner you do have stake in the Board.

13 You will have a seat on the Board.

14       CHAIR FADULLON:  Go ahead, Rick.

15       MR. SAUER:  Yeah, just as a follow-up to Andrew's

16 question, I maybe took his question a little bit

17 differently, but there's some issues it seems like, back to

18 the chart that Andrea walked through, where there's

19 different goals or policies suggested by what the Good Lands

20 Trust is trying to accomplish and what the Land Bank current

21 documents require.

22       And so I took Andrew's question more, is there an

23 openness or willingness to go back and have conversations

24 with the Land Bank to look at like the recourse issue.  What

Page 46
 1 would happen if the Good Lands Trust were no longer around,

 2 you know.  Could the Land Bank still have recourse to the

 3 land portion of that situation, or things like that.

 4       So I guess the question is, is there an opportunity

 5 here, given the fact that we need to, as a Land Bank entity,

 6 be able to dispose of land to community land trusts, because

 7 it's not the only land trust property that's going to be

 8 coming forth, is there an opportunity to figure out, how do

 9 we address some of these apparent conflicts up front now,

10 not five, ten years down the road.

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  Harry, I think that's a question to

12 you.

13       MR. TAPIA:  Sorry, I was on mute.

14       CHAIR FADULLON:  That's okay.

15       MR. TAPIA:  Yes.  We're definitely willing.  We take

16 the restrictions that we had under the Land Bank as a

17 minimum, right, or minimum requirements.  We're definitely

18 open to exploring what happens if, God forbid, ten years

19 from now, yes, the Land Bank, you know, sort of goes out of

20 business and, you know, do we still have, you know, the

21 requirement to the Philadelphia Land Bank that we need to

22 revert the land back.  So we're definitely open to that, you

23 know.  We'll definitely, you know, work it out between us

24 and the Land Bank, definitely.

Board of Directors Meeting 13 (43 - 46) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 32 of 179



Page 47
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  Are there any other questions or

 2 comments from the Board?

 3       (No response.)

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  So before -- I'm sorry, I

 5 can't call the question yet.  Are there any other members of

 6 the public that wish to speak to this item?

 7       (No response.)

 8       CHAIR FADULLON:  Seeing none, before I call the

 9 question, just a couple of things, right.  I think this has

10 been pointed out a couple times, but the Land Trust model

11 definitely has a little more emphasis on long-term

12 affordability, a little bit less emphasis on wealth

13 creation.  However, it precludes neither, right.  You can

14 still have a little bit of wealth creation, longer

15 affordability term.  The typical Land Bank model has a

16 little bit more emphasis on wealth creation and a little bit

17 less emphasis on affordability, but again, it still has a

18 balance between both.  They're just a little bit skewed.

19       Looking through that table, it looks to me like

20 there's some sort of minor differences and then there's some

21 bigger things, and it seemed like if there was an ability to

22 negotiate, particularly on the recourse piece with what

23 happens, again, if the homeowner forecloses or if the Land

24 Trust goes out of business or fails to be around for

Page 48
 1 whatever reason, that we just work on that.  And then

 2 there's the question about the taxation.

 3       So if those things are willing to continue to be

 4 worked on, I think that's, you know, a different response

 5 than potentially a direct up or down vote.  And I do think

 6 that we are likely, as a Board, to see more of this Land

 7 Trust model going forward.

 8       With that, I am going to call the question and ask for

 9 a motion on this item.

10       MR. SAUER:  I'm a little confused, Anne.  Are we

11 calling a motion on the item as currently worded?  Are we

12 suggesting that there be further discussion or negotiation

13 to address some of the issues we just raised?

14       CHAIR FADULLON:  So I think what I'm saying is, the

15 Board has the ability to make whatever motion they want to

16 make on this item, that it's not restricted to just yes or

17 no.  You could make a modified motion if you so desire.  As

18 Chair, I can't make a motion, so I turn it over to the rest

19 of the Board.

20       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  I'd make a motion that we -- I don't

21 know if "table" is the right word, but that we work with

22 HACE to negotiate terms that we are happier with.

23       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  Let me clarify, right.

24       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Do you need me to --

Page 49
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  There are different types of motions

 2 that can be made, right.  There could be just a yes.  There

 3 could be just a no.  There could be a yes with provisions.

 4 There could be a table with provisions, right.  So there's a

 5 yes, there's a no, there's a yes with caveats, and there's a

 6 table with caveats.  So there's four potential types.

 7       So with that, how about a motion?

 8       MR. SAUER:  I --

 9       CHAIR FADULLON:  I'm sorry, hold on.  I have my

10 attorney, Andrea, saying wait a minute.

11       MS. SAAH:  For the benefit of the Land Bank staff, I

12 would appreciate any motion other than a straight up or down

13 motion to provide clear direction to the staff on how the

14 Board would like the staff to proceed.

15       MR. SAUER:  So I'll make a motion to approve the

16 residential as proposed with the caveat that the Land Bank

17 staff and HACE go back to negotiate any differences to

18 resolve this moving forward in an appropriate manner.

19       MR. DeMARCO:  I'll second --

20       CHAIR FADULLON:  There's a motion on the table --

21       MR. GOODMAN:  Just a --

22       CHAIR FADULLON:  -- that has been made and properly

23 seconded --

24       MR. GOODMAN:  Sorry, just to -- okay.  Sorry.  Never

Page 50
 1 mind.

 2       CHAIR FADULLON:  Go ahead, Andrew.

 3       MR. GOODMAN:  No, no, I got it.  I answered my own

 4 question in my head.  Thank you.  Sorry about that.

 5       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Okay.  Any discussion on

 6 the motion?

 7       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  So that being said, if we approve it

 8 even with caveats and we don't get to where we want to get

 9 to with negotiation, then where are we at?  Because we've

10 approved it.  What happens?

11       MR. GOODMAN:  Does it come back?

12       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  I think it depends on --

13       CHAIR FADULLON:  I believe you could probably add that

14 to the motion.

15       MR. GOODMAN:  But did it already get seconded?

16       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  You seconded it.

17       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  No, it was Richard.  Richard DeMarco

18 seconded it.

19       CHAIR FADULLON:  It did, but I mean, we can have -- I

20 don't have Robert's Rules of Order right in front of me,

21 right, but I believe we can probably say, "What I meant to

22 say was."

23       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  If I might make a suggestion, Madam

24 Chair, is just, looking at the Board's reticence to all jump

Board of Directors Meeting 14 (47 - 50) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 33 of 179



Page 51
 1 in, would the Board feel more comfortable with -- and I'll

 2 just throw this out and you can reject it, but I mean, there

 3 is a motion on the table that has been properly seconded.

 4 That would have to be withdrawn, but would the Board feel

 5 much more comfortable with tabling the item, asking us in a

 6 specific time frame to negotiate, right, because I think we

 7 need to be cognizant of the stressors on HACE which they've

 8 articulated very clearly, that we come to, you know, a

 9 negotiated resolution and then bring it right back to the

10 Board.

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  Yes.  I hear that, and I would say,

12 let me just add something else, is that if there was a

13 resolution that was achievable, it would be great to just

14 say, "Okay, you guys figured this out, go ahead," without

15 necessarily having to come back, but --

16       (Pause.)

17       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  So the next step is, we have to

18 decide whether or not we're going to vote on the motion

19 that's before us or if we're going to withdraw the motion.

20 Is that correct?

21       CHAIR FADULLON:  Correct.  And just to reiterate, the

22 motion is -- go ahead, Andrea, sorry.

23       MS. SAAH:  I just wanted to clarify that the

24 resolution to approve it is based on the Land Trust's

Page 52
 1 provisions as currently structured, so --

 2       CHAIR FADULLON:  Right, but we added the caveat

 3 saying, it would be only under the circumstance where

 4 discrepancies were negotiated.

 5       MS. SAAH:  So my question then is, who makes the

 6 decision about whether they're adequately --

 7       CHAIR FADULLON:  Right, and that's to Rebecca's point,

 8 like, does then it have to come back to the Board.

 9       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  I'm not comfortable approving the

10 resolution as written with the caveat that we'll negotiate

11 it later.  I think I'd rather submit a separate motion.

12       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Well, we have a motion

13 that's been on the floor that's been seconded.  The person

14 who made the motion, do you wish to amend your motion at

15 all?

16       MR. SAUER:  I will withdraw my motion to allow another

17 motion to be made.

18       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  So can I get an alternative

19 motion?

20       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Angel, what's a reasonable amount of

21 time to negotiate this, to not imperil HACE?

22       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  You know, I think it's -- I think

23 we're willing to meet in the next couple of weeks to get

24 this resolved, I mean, just so we get in a room with HACE

Page 53
 1 and HACE's attorney.  Really, the instrument in question is

 2 the long-term lease.  That's what has these terms.

 3       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  I guess I make a motion to table

 4 this resolution until the Land Bank and HACE have had a

 5 chance to negotiate and bring it back next month.

 6       MR. SAUER:  I think that last part is really the

 7 important part of the motion, to be honest.  I think we

 8 need, we can't let this linger out several months.

 9       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  I agree.  I think --

10       MR. SAUER:  This has been long enough as it is.

11       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  -- it should be back immediately to

12 the next, and that we schedule within this time period

13 before posting of the next -- like I would assume this is

14 going to be an agenda item for April, and that we would be

15 prepping this and we have a drop-dead date that we have to

16 come to to negotiate that.  I think we've been very specific

17 as to what the terms are, that we have concerns about, and I

18 think there, also, to Rick's larger issue about the policy

19 and how we address the Land Trust, it would also give us

20 time to reach out to Revenue and to --

21       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  OPA.

22       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  OPA, in terms of how taxes are

23 addressed.  I think that's something that kind of shifts how

24 we can get to an amicable agreement on this.

Page 54
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  So I just want to make

 2 sure I have a correct understanding of the motion.  The

 3 motion is on the table to -- on the floor to table this for

 4 the next 30 days or whatever is the number of days that is

 5 the April Land Bank Board meeting.  Is that accurate?

 6       MR. SAUER:  Correct.

 7       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  And has that motion been

 8 seconded?

 9       (No response.)

10       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  So motion is on the table to

11 -- I'm sorry, motion is on the floor to table this item

12 until the April Land Bank Board meeting and the expectation

13 of the Board is, at that time there would be a negotiated

14 agreement between the Land Bank and the Land Trust.  Can I

15 get a second on that motion?

16       MR. GOODMAN:  Second.

17       CHAIR FADULLON:  I have another question about order

18 here.  So the Board has been discussing the motion.  We have

19 a motion on the floor and seconded.  I do have Mr. Tapia's

20 hand raised.  Is it appropriate that we take comments on a

21 motion from the Board?  Does anybody know?

22       MR. DeMARCO:  I'd like to hear him, for what it's

23 worth.

24       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  All right.  Let's recognize --

Board of Directors Meeting 15 (51 - 54) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 34 of 179



Page 55
 1       MS. SAAH:  I think if it pertains to the motion and it

 2 is --

 3       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Let's recognize Harry.

 4 Just checking here.  Go ahead, Harry.

 5       MR. TAPIA:  Perfect.  Thank you.  I just want to

 6 reemphasize the urgency, right.  We built these and we've

 7 been carrying so much cost on security because of the

 8 neighborhood that we're building in, and you know, the

 9 security and break-ins that we've been having.

10       I mean, we've been at this for the past five months

11 already, you know, and really, you know, going back to last

12 summer.  So I really, really emphasize, you know, for us to

13 come to a resolution as soon as possible, especially since

14 I've had one buyer that's been with us since November.  He's

15 been account surfing because he's been waiting to get into

16 this Land Trust model.

17       So you know, that's my one urgency, is that, you know,

18 if we can please come to a solution as soon as possible in

19 order to, you know, be able to give these to homeowners that

20 have been waiting a long time.

21       MS. SAAH:  May I ask a clarifying question of Harry?

22       CHAIR FADULLON:  Go ahead, Andrea.

23       MS. SAAH:  Harry, is this a buyer for 3024 North

24 American Street?  Because my understanding was that was just

Page 56
 1 going to be sold under the usual, under the model as it

 2 currently --

 3       MR. TAPIA:  Correct, yes.

 4       MS. SAAH:  So as soon as --

 5       CHAIR FADULLON:  So that person can go ahead and

 6 purchase the property, right?

 7       MS. SAAH:  They're not in the Land Trust model,

 8 correct?

 9       MR. TAPIA:  Correct, yes, yeah.  But again, the other

10 seven units, we have the other seven units that --

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  And we get it.  I think the

12 Board understands, like this all needs to be resolved ASAP.

13 All right.  So just to clarify, motion on the floor is, we

14 table this item until the April Land Bank meeting with the

15 understanding that the Land Bank staff and the Land Trust

16 get in the room together and negotiate this until it works.

17 All right?  All in favor?

18       MR. KOONCE:  The other motion needs to be withdrawn.

19       MR. SAUER:  I did that.

20       CHAIR FADULLON:  The other motion was withdrawn.  All

21 right.  So, all in favor?

22       (Chorus of ayes.)

23       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any opposed?

24       (No response.)

Page 57
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  Great.  Thank you all.

 2       All right.  This moves us on to the next section of

 3 our agenda, which is property disposition.  We have one

 4 item, which is for affordable housing.

 5       MR. LAWRENCE:  Thank you, Madam Chair.  The first

 6 development item on the agenda regards V.A.1.  Today we're

 7 asking the Board to authorize the disposition of properties

 8 in the city's North Central Area to Civetta Property Group,

 9 specifically for the development of an affordable

10 homeownership project in the city's Fifth Council District.

11       The proposal calls for 70 single-family homeownership

12 units, all affordable, all of which are three stories

13 without basements, ranging between 1300 and 1400 square

14 feet, containing three bedrooms and two bathrooms, and also

15 to households with incomes at or below 100 percent of AMI.

16       Maximum sales price for these units are specified by

17 the RFP as capped at $280,000 per unit.  Applications were

18 solicited via a request for proposals for the properties and

19 the applicant was the most qualified bidder for the

20 properties.

21       The property list is extensive, and it includes the

22 following:  621, 623, 625, 637 and 917 Diamond Street; 924,

23 927, 928 and 936 Edgley Street; 926 and 928 French Street;

24 2106, 2112, 2140, 2141, 2142, 2143, 2151, 2166, 2170, 2172,

Page 58
 1 2215, 2217 and 2219 N. Franklin Street; on North Marshall

 2 Street, we have 2112, 2130, 2144 and 2214; also including

 3 2105, 2107, 2109, 2110, 2111, 2112, 2113, 2119, 2121, 2133,

 4 2140, 2143, 2146 and 2150 North Percy Street; next set of

 5 addresses we have is 904, 910 and 912 West Susquehanna

 6 Avenue; we also have 2102, 2109, 2114, 2126, 2128, 2130,

 7 2131, 2134, 2135, 2136, 2150 and 2210 North 7th Street;

 8 2101, 2113, 2121, 2155, 2167 through 69, and also 2201 North

 9 8th Street; 2124, 2126, 2132, 2150 and 2165 North 9th

10 Street; and finally, 2121 North 10th Street.

11       The developer will purchase these properties at its

12 bid price of $7,000.  Evidence of project financing has been

13 provided.  The applicant remains in compliance and good

14 standing with the City of Philadelphia.

15       The project will be subject to an economic opportunity

16 plan.  The project will be subject to an irrevocable power

17 of attorney and right of reentry/reverter.  And again, the

18 sale of all units will include a Declaration of Restrictive

19 Covenants and the units will be subject to use restrictions

20 and income verification as well.  Thank you.

21       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Jessie.  Any questions or

22 comments from the Board on this item?

23       MR. GOODMAN:  Yeah.  So the packet said, what was the

24 word, that it was the most qualified applicant.  That

Board of Directors Meeting 16 (55 - 58) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 35 of 179



Page 59
 1 implies there were others, so what information can you

 2 provide around, you know, if there were other qualified

 3 applicants, and if so, were they applying for the same whole

 4 disposition versus the sub-areas as in the original RFP?

 5       MR. LAWRENCE:  So all the responses that we did

 6 receive, Andrew, were for the entire project as presented,

 7 all the sub-areas.

 8       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any other questions or comments on

 9 this item from the Board?

10       (No response.)

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  Andrea, did we receive any comments

12 from members of the public prior to the meeting on this

13 item?

14       (No response.)

15       CHAIR FADULLON:  Andrea, you're muted.

16       MS. SAAH:  Apologies.  This is the Hartranft

17 disposition, correct?  So we received a letter from North

18 Central East RCO which was one of the registered community

19 organizations that was notified of the disposition and had

20 participated in the required meeting, community outreach

21 meeting by the developer.

22       And they stated the concerns that came out of that

23 meeting.  They wanted to make sure that the project was for

24 single-family homeownership and wouldn't convert to multi

Page 60
 1 family units or Airbnb rentals.

 2       They were concerned about the impact on existing homes

 3 during construction and whether the developer would be

 4 responsible to fix the damage.  They would want Civetta,

 5 LLC's assurance that they would fix that damage in writing.

 6       They felt that the hours of construction from 7 a.m.

 7 to 7 p.m. would be disruptive to their quality of life.

 8 They stated that several of the parcels, that residences

 9 have claimed that several of the parcels are secured in an

10 agreement with PHS and the City of Philadelphia for gardens

11 or side yards, and that they have not been able to acquire

12 those or preserve those gardens and side yards, and they did

13 list the properties.

14       They were surprised that residents would not be able

15 to purchase these homes until after the first group of

16 eligible for Turn the Key second mortgages would be

17 considered, which is city employees.

18       And they also felt that even with that second soft

19 mortgage, the price was out of reach of many of the

20 residents, local residents.  They say the project is too

21 dense and it eliminates many spaces that should be

22 maintained as open spaces.

23       They felt that there was not enough information on the

24 Turn the Key program and whether it would benefit the

Page 61
 1 community, and that they wanted to have these meetings,

 2 these informational meetings held before the RFP was

 3 released and that they also wanted a city representative, I

 4 assume a Land Bank representative, to meet with them about

 5 the process and the program.  And this is signed by Shirley

 6 Kitchen, who's president of the RCO.

 7       There was another email from Mr. Charles Dyches,

 8 asking about this community meeting and what the purpose of

 9 it was and whether the RCO's presence meant anything with

10 respect to approval or not of the property.

11       And then a third email from Global Consulting Group,

12 which basically proposed reorganizing the RFP differently

13 and reissuing it.  And all of those will be attached to the

14 minutes and were forwarded to the Board.

15       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Andrea.  And I see we have

16 some members of the public with their hand up, so we're

17 going to start with a call-in number we have which is 267

18 and it ends in 434.  Go ahead, caller.  You should be able

19 to un-mute yourself.

20       MS. BELLINGER:  Hi, yes.  Hi, my question pertains --

21       CHAIR FADULLON:  Can you state your name for the

22 record?  Excuse me.  Can you state your name for the record,

23 please?

24       MS. BELLINGER:  Sure.  Sabina Bellinger.

Page 62
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  Go ahead, please.

 2       MS. BELLINGER:  I just have a general question.  Did

 3 you want me to wait?

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  No, go ahead.

 5       MS. BELLINGER:  Oh, okay.  Thanks for allowing the

 6 public to participate.  I'm a homeowner and a resident of

 7 Philadelphia.  My question is, are Land Bank opportunities

 8 only available for developers?

 9       And I have a comment.  I heard one developer stating

10 that he doesn't have enough contractors.  I know a number of

11 insured minority contractors.  How can a contractor get in

12 touch with the developers of these, for these opportunities?

13 So I have some questions.

14       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  So I put in the chat two links to our

15 web site.  So the first one --

16       MS. BELLINGER:  I'm on the -- I see that information.

17       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Okay.  So if we can, I guess if you --

18 you could go --

19       CHAIR FADULLON:  Can you read the information that you

20 put in the chat, please?

21       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  So if you go to

22 phdcphila.org/land/buyland, you can see that there are

23 multiple opportunities for the public to acquire properties

24 from the Land Bank, whether it's a side or rear yard, a

Board of Directors Meeting 17 (59 - 62) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 36 of 179



Page 63
 1 community garden, affordable housing project, business

 2 expansion, etcetera.

 3       Through those portals, you can actually identify a

 4 parcel and you can submit an application.  If you have any

 5 questions, you are also able to reach us, either via Andrea

 6 Saah's email, I'll put my email in there which is angel,

 7 A-N-G-E-L, B, Rodriguez which is R-O-D-R-I-G-U-E-Z, at PHDC

 8 dot Phila dot gov, and we will be more than happy to sit

 9 down and meet with you to walk you through the process and

10 to discuss with you about opportunities that PHDC has for

11 contractors.

12       MS. BELLINGER:  Thank you.

13       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, caller.  And next we have

14 Shirley Kitchen.  Go ahead, please.  You should be able to

15 un-mute yourself.  There you go.

16       (Pause.)

17       CHAIR FADULLON:  We can hear you, if you go ahead with

18 your comment.

19       MS. KITCHEN:  Good morning.

20       CHAIR FADULLON:  Good morning.

21       MS. KITCHEN:  The concerns that was expressed in the

22 meetings, and this seemed to be a big problem, and that is

23 the way that the project was presented.

24       Most people feel as though the meeting should be held

Page 64
 1 before the RFP is issued where their comments would mean

 2 something, even if it meant the way that the houses would be

 3 constructed.

 4       This way, it's already done.  Most people were very

 5 disgusted.  They said they thought it was a done deal.  And

 6 also, the project, the density of the project, it was a

 7 concern for several people.

 8       And they looked at numbers like this.  If it's 71

 9 units, then we're talk about at least two adults per house,

10 perhaps two or three children with two or three bedrooms, so

11 we're talking about close to 300 people being moved on nine

12 blocks which has been vacant for years.

13       And I took a look at it.  I did not see any green.  I

14 think that that should be a big consideration.  And also,

15 the way the homes was marketed, people felt as though they

16 were left out and that they should have been considered

17 along with the other possible homebuyers.

18       And other issues were already mentioned.  But I am

19 going to mention about the lots, the vacant lots here.  I

20 think that it should be addressed.  I don't know what the

21 policy is.  I mean, I've been involved in it years ago, I

22 mean, and I was never a city official but it should be

23 looked at.

24       What happens to those lots that were maintained and

Page 65
 1 some people thought that it belonged to them.  Some people

 2 maybe had an agreement with Philly More Beautiful.  It

 3 seemed to be several to no agreement at all, and these

 4 people, not only did they maintain the lots, but it seemed

 5 to be emotional ties here too.

 6       We should be concerned about how we can get along with

 7 the city, how the city can serve people.  And to just walk

 8 up now and say, "Hey, I'm taking this back," when we didn't

 9 even look to the fact that they couldn't possibly have

10 enough barbecues or use to stay as equitable to the lots

11 because that part of the city, which I live a couple blocks

12 from, is not included, hasn't been included in the city

13 sweeps which is usually maybe four times a year, they do a

14 big sweep.

15       The sweep usually stopped at Susquehanna Avenue.  It

16 did not go to Mastry (phonetic) Street because it was always

17 stated that it was not enough trash.  The area was kept

18 clean for people, and I'm using the word "was" because now

19 it is dirt everywhere.

20       But from those years mentioned in the letter, they

21 were kept clean by residents with no assistance from the

22 city.  And I think that you should set aside a meeting, look

23 into it, and honestly see what policy can come of, what can

24 be done here for these owners -- I mean, I'm sorry, to the

Page 66
 1 people that use the lots and kept them clean.

 2       The use, as I said, could possibly match up to some

 3 kind of equity.  But this should be given some attention.

 4 It seemed to me an up-to-date policy should be developed.

 5 Thank you.

 6       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you.  Next we have Jihad Ali.

 7       MR. ALI:  Hello, Madam Chairperson, members of the

 8 Board.  Thank you for allowing me to speak.  I have a couple

 9 questions.  I'd really like to start -- my name is Jihad

10 Ali.  I'd like to -- may I proceed, Chairperson?

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  Yes, you can.  Go ahead.

12       MR. ALI:  I'd like to follow up on the question that

13 Andrew Goodman asked, because I didn't really hear Jessie

14 answer the question as I thought it was asked.  How many

15 other qualified developers were there?

16       MR. LAWRENCE:  I believe there were two other

17 qualifications that came out.  I can confirm that for you in

18 a second.  In addition to the awardee, there were two other

19 bidders here, and --

20       MR. ALI:  Not bidders, but qualified.

21       MR. LAWRENCE:  Well, two other qualified bidders.

22 That information is posted on our web site, on the

23 development RFPs section of the page that actually refers

24 you to previous opportunities.  We post award notification

Board of Directors Meeting 18 (63 - 66) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 37 of 179



Page 67
 1 information if and when we secure some sort of approval at

 2 this point.

 3       MR. ALI:  And what was the official name of the

 4 project?

 5       MR. LAWRENCE:  It is the Hartranft Ninth and Diamond

 6 RFP, I believe it is.

 7       MR. ALI:  And what is the total market value of the

 8 parcels?

 9       MR. LAWRENCE:  As specified in the fact sheet, the

10 appraised value was $6.69 million for everything

11 aggregately.

12       MR. ALI:  $6.69 million.  Let me ask you something

13 else.  How many other projects -- strike that.  When is the

14 EOP plan required to be submitted for this project?

15       MR. LAWRENCE:  It will be finalized, we tend to

16 finalize, we finalize it prior to our Board presentation of

17 the project, so we will have final numbers prior to

18 settlement.  There's a period where the developers can check

19 back in to finalize that plan before we kick off the

20 settlement and close on the property.

21       MR. ALI:  And what about the marketing plan?  When is

22 that required to be submitted?

23       MR. LAWRENCE:  That is prior to the completion of

24 construction.  We will welcome that plan and we will

Page 68
 1 evaluate it and it is not to be -- it's not to commence

 2 until we approve it.

 3       MR. ALI:  On the marketing plan, are the properties

 4 marketed to the fire department, the police department, and

 5 the School Board?  When will that happen?

 6       MR. LAWRENCE:  That is part of the process.  I believe

 7 this is a case where we do exclusively do the 30 day period

 8 to PHA until we follow up with the respective city agencies.

 9 Do I have that correctly?

10       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  If I could, all right, so this is

11 qualified for Turn the Key.  We have been doing outreach to

12 all, to city employees.  We do have a designated person who

13 has been working with DC33, 47, the other unions in the city

14 and with city employees.

15       Currently we have about, verified about 2,000 people

16 in Turn the Key data base, and we are qualifying them and

17 filtering them out as to which applicants or people who have

18 expressed interest are interested in this area, and then

19 we're taking them through housing counseling.  So that is

20 underway, and we do have somebody that clearly like is

21 targeting and working with the local unions and city

22 employees to inform them of the opportunity and to get them

23 to apply, and we also have housing counseling agencies that

24 are working with them.  So just --

Page 69
 1       MR. ALI:  I guess I'm confused --

 2       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  If I could finish, just to clarify

 3 what Jessie was saying, in this situation with these RFPs,

 4 we, for the first 30 days, once they're at a certain stage

 5 of construction, we refer to the developer qualified

 6 homebuyers that we've already identified.

 7       First 30 days are city employees, and then the second

 8 30 days are qualified homebuyers, income qualified

 9 homebuyers that have expressed interest.

10       After that point, should no one, none of those

11 referrals -- and we're really stacking the deck here so that

12 they are qualified and they can get senior debt and they

13 will come out with, you know, an award letter for Turn the

14 Key as a soft second mortgage, if by any chance, you know,

15 there are houses after that 60 days, then the proposed

16 marketing plan that the developer submits would go into

17 effect.  And in that situation, that's where we then would

18 qualify any prospective homebuyer.

19       MR. ALI:  You know, I can't be the only one that's

20 confused, because, you know, if a developer, then you get to

21 the timeline where the developer has a marketing plan that

22 has to occur within 30 days of him submitting that plan to

23 those pre -- to the preferred list, it's just confusing.

24       I don't want to waste too much more time, but that's

Page 70
 1 something that the Board really needs to get some clarity

 2 on, because --

 3       CHAIR FADULLON:  Yeah, and Mr. Ali, maybe you can

 4 reach to the staff after the meeting and try to have that

 5 conversation.  But yes, we will work also to make sure that

 6 there's more clear information that's provided to the public

 7 in general so it's clear.

 8       MR. ALI:  I just want to finish my other question.  So

 9 on this developer, this is one of the developers that I

10 heard his name numerous times.  I don't even know what his

11 total amount of award has been, but what has his

12 deliverables been to date?  How many projects has he

13 completed?  Because I've seen some projects that he was

14 awarded before.

15       So I guess my question is, how many outstanding

16 permits does he have that he was on the last award I think

17 in August of '22?  How many of those are outstanding?

18       And then my final question is, do you require him to

19 have a performance deposit?  And if not, why not?

20       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  So if you look at the report that was

21 included in the Board package, it does talk about where the

22 status is of RFPs.  I will say, for this developer, they've

23 had I believe two or three other RFPs awarded to them and

24 they are complete.

Board of Directors Meeting 19 (67 - 70) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 38 of 179



Page 71
 1       And with the one which was just settled, which is in

 2 South Philadelphia on Wharton Street, they already have, I

 3 believe the latest report, they have six properties where

 4 foundations are already set and they're already out of the

 5 ground, and that was for 26 affordable units at 80 percent

 6 of AMI, with an ultimate sales price of 250.

 7       And that was approved last year.  It took a second to

 8 get the settlement because of deed transfers, but that

 9 settled I believe last November or December, Andrea?

10       (Pause.)

11       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  You're muted.

12       MS. SAAH:  Are you talking about --

13       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Wharton Street --

14       MS. SAAH:  -- (inaudible) -- Street RFP?  I think that

15 settled, because of the transfer issues, in January, late

16 December or January.

17       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Okay.

18       MS. SAAH:  I have to look it up.  Sorry.  There's so

19 many.

20       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  I don't have -- I mean, the developer

21 is also on this call, so --

22       MR. ALI:  And one other thing, Angel.  You know, on

23 the EOP plan, this developer, to me, from my investigation,

24 for all his projects, for his last 25 or 30 units that he's

Page 72
 1 built, he's used the same plumber, the same sprinkler guy,

 2 the same electrician.

 3       So I'm really wondering, how is he achieving what he

 4 says and abilities that he achieves, you know, a high

 5 percentage of MBEs?  Where's the proof?  When do we get to

 6 see the documents on what he's able to achieve in terms of

 7 participation?

 8       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Madam Chair, I think we should

 9 recognize Brennan Tomasetti or Michael Tomasetti, which are

10 on the call.  They have their hands raised and I think they

11 can address how they identify subcontractors.

12       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  So I think there's a couple

13 things here.  So, Mr. Ali, thank you for your question.  I

14 think one of them is about the reporting and how to make

15 that accessible.  That piece of work does not lie with the

16 Land Bank.  That being said, it should definitely be

17 available, so that is something that another division of the

18 city is working very hard to get that, so that that will be

19 much more accessible, readily available and accessible to

20 the public.  That is a work in progress, but we are pushing

21 very hard to get the past reports that need to be updated

22 done.  Unfortunately, we lost all of the staff that did that

23 to another agency, so we have now staffed back up and we're

24 churning to get that information out, but we're also trying

Page 73
 1 to be more proactive in that so that in the future there

 2 will be easily accessible, readily accessible, transparent

 3 information available to the public.

 4       So we are working on that.  Mr. Ali, I know that's

 5 something that is near and dear to your heart.  You comment

 6 on it on a regular basis, and you are right, and we are

 7 listening to you.  I'm sorry that we don't have it done, but

 8 that is job number one for the new staff that we've hired to

 9 do the compliance piece.

10       I am willing to move on to the next commenter, because

11 we're almost at noon and I've got to make sure I've got a

12 quorum to vote these different items out, and we've got a

13 lot of hands up.

14       So I am going to recognize Mr. Tomasetti to respond to

15 some of the questions because he is the developer.

16       MS. TOMASETTI:  Hi.  Brennan Tomasetti here.

17       CHAIR FADULLON:  Hi.  Sorry, Ms. Tomasetti.

18       MS. TOMASETTI:  Thank you.  Just a few quick comments

19 to address some of the questions.  On our latest Cross

20 Street project RFP which we recently completed, our EOP

21 numbers were 23 percent MBE and 19 percent WBE for a total

22 of 42 percent, which we're super-excited about.  I know that

23 the target is 35, but we're happy to exceed that.

24       And on two one-off projects that we currently have

Page 74
 1 underway, we're trending over 50 percent for our EOP goals,

 2 so we're really pleased with that.  We're constantly looking

 3 for new partnerships in the community and we're all ears if

 4 folks have recommendations there.

 5       And then there was another comment about -- oh, just

 6 the program on Wharton Street.  I too would have to check on

 7 the settlement date, the exact settlement date, but we have

 8 broken ground there to the tune of, we have 16 foundations

 9 completed and seven of those homes are now being framed.

10       CHAIR FADULLON:  Great.  Thank you, appreciate that.

11       Next we have Christopher Miano.

12       MR. MIANO:  Hello.  My name is Christopher Miano.  I

13 live in the area this development is happening.  I just had

14 first just one comment.  Shirley Kitchen from the RCO made

15 several statements on feedback from the community, and I

16 didn't hear any response from the Board.  Does the community

17 feedback through the RCO not take any effect in this meeting

18 or, like, how is that usually responded to?

19       CHAIR FADULLON:  We hear the feedback and the Board

20 takes it into consideration when it makes its motion and

21 votes on the item.

22       MR. MIANO:  And then I guess just to sum up, my

23 comment question for myself is, many of the units that are

24 listed for this, there are many neighbors who live adjacent

Board of Directors Meeting 20 (71 - 74) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 39 of 179



Page 75
 1 to these lots who have, over the last several years, made

 2 requests for the lots to be side yards or to do their own

 3 type of development kind of thing.

 4       They've either been blocked or told that they can't

 5 have them or feel like they haven't had an opportunity to be

 6 able to put in their own kind of bid for these things.  You

 7 know, I really wish that in some way the Land Bank could

 8 take that into consideration.

 9       This is a lot of lots to be given to one developer for

10 a very low price.  I think right now it's almost $7,000 for

11 each lot that is being given to the developer, and I think

12 that there are several people in the community that could

13 come up with that same dollar value amount for a lot that

14 would be adjacent to a property that they own.

15       Has there been any consideration to try and give folks

16 who live next door to these lots first bid for this kind of

17 thing?

18       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Madam Chair, would you like me to

19 answer that?

20       CHAIR FADULLON:  Yes, please.

21       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  All right.  So in different areas, we

22 work closely with Council office to identify land strategy

23 and what priorities are in this area.  Affordable

24 homeownership development was to have priority, which is why

Page 76
 1 side yards and garden applications were not accepted, in

 2 which case we would be packaging and issuing an RFP and

 3 therefore anyone would be able to apply for that.

 4       I think affordable housing, and we've worked closely

 5 with the Council office and we've done that with other

 6 Council offices to really set priorities and make sure that

 7 we are able to work in tandem with Council to issue an

 8 opportunity so that we can start tackling the affordable

 9 housing issue across the city.  So that's the reason why

10 those properties would not be available for side yards or

11 gardens or one-off developments.

12       MR. MIANO:  For those kinds of decisions --

13       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you --

14       MR. MIANO:  -- was any consideration given for like

15 development that has already happened in even just like the

16 last two to three years?  There's several multi-unit

17 buildings that have been put on these exact blocks that,

18 multi-unit, multi-room units that I think really increase

19 the population of a block to the point where like there's

20 traffic issues or people being able to park or drive through

21 the neighborhood, and trying to keep that balance of, you

22 know, how dense the population is going to be of a

23 neighborhood, of a street.

24       Specifically I'm talking about Franklin Street which I

Page 77
 1 live on.  I'm a homeowner here, and in the last few years

 2 the population of the street has risen a lot, even since

 3 2020, and that building and filling in all of the lots might

 4 not always be in the best interests of these neighborhoods,

 5 especially in the way that they currently are, and I think

 6 that there's a lot of feedback from the neighbors here who

 7 thought that, you know, making those comments through the

 8 RCO might be heard that way, but that also, you know, if

 9 they should be coming and make those comments directly in

10 these meetings, maybe it should be done that way.  I'm not

11 sure.

12       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  So I just want to point out, all of

13 the RFPs that've issued are for single-family housing, not

14 for multi-family.  The second issue is that when we issue an

15 RFP, and we'll put this in the chat, we do have a mailing

16 list so whenever we post an RFP, we do have an opportunity

17 for questions and answers for an RFP that have been put out.

18       Anyone is welcome to attend and can raise these

19 questions.  There have been instances where very pertinent

20 questions have been asked while we had an RFP during the

21 solicitation period has been done and we have made

22 amendments to those, so that would be the appropriate time

23 to do that.

24       Again, I'll go back to, it's a very delicate balance

Page 78
 1 that we work with the Council office to look at what are

 2 developable opportunities for affordable housing, and we

 3 recognize it's a limited resource and that, you know,

 4 overall quality of life and opportunity to develop more

 5 affordable housing is a priority, and it's a difficult

 6 balancing act, and we do that as a team issue.

 7       But I would say at this point in time, for RFPs, we do

 8 have a Q and A position and you can actually submit your

 9 questions in writing.  We do respond to all questions and we

10 post all of those answers.

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Mr. Miano.  I have to move

12 on to the next commenter in the interest of time.  I still

13 have several hands up on this item, and we are coming on,

14 this meeting has already lasted a long time and I want to

15 make sure that we have a quorum in order to vote.

16       So for ongoing public comment here, I'm going to limit

17 everybody to three minutes, and if you've already provided

18 comment, I'm not going to call on you again because we

19 really need to be able to move through the agenda.

20       So the next hand up we have is Kevin Brockenbrough.

21       MR. BROCKENBROUGH:  Hello.  Can you hear me?

22       CHAIR FADULLON:  Hello there.  Yes, we can.  Go ahead,

23 please.

24       MR. BROCKENBROUGH:  Yes.  I'm the block captain of

Board of Directors Meeting 21 (75 - 78) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 40 of 179



Page 79
 1 2100 block of North Eighth Street.  And one of the

 2 properties on the list, 2113, I maintained 2111 and 2113 for

 3 over 29 years, just to be blindsided and have a developer

 4 come to me last year and say he bought one-half of the

 5 garden.

 6       We use the, we took these gardens over 29 years ago

 7 and provided green space.  We maintained these things.  And

 8 it's like we're being blindsided, and all of our efforts,

 9 all of our maintenance and all of our efforts to maintain

10 these things was not taken into account.

11       We should have been given first priority to any of

12 these gardens.  If you want to sell my garden from under me

13 for $7,000, I should have been given first crack at it, not

14 blindsided.

15       And then who's reimbursing me for all these years of

16 maintenance, all this materials that I bought, all these

17 tools and sweat equity I have invested?  We haven't had a

18 block party on my block in over ten years, but we used our

19 green space because we couldn't have block parties.

20       Our gardens are important to us because we utilize our

21 gardens.  Our gardens aren't just there.  That's why we

22 maintain them.  We have cookouts.  We have parties where we

23 can't have them in our homes because our homes aren't big

24 enough for them.

Page 80
 1       They provided safety because our gardens were fenced

 2 in until this developer tore my fence down.  And nobody's

 3 looking out for us.  City Council darn sure isn't looking

 4 out for us, and apparently it seems like all decisions are

 5 being made without us being taken into consideration.

 6       My block has been overcome with all these monstrous

 7 houses which block out the sun, all the dirt and trash.  I

 8 signed up with Philadelphia Beautiful and do the citywide

 9 cleanups.  I do regular cleanups on my block, but I haven't

10 been able to do none of this since these developers came in

11 here.

12       I track dirt in and out of my house.  I don't know

13 what's in this stuff.  I'm constantly cleaning up

14 construction materials that are all in front of my door and

15 tracking this crap into my house.  I don't know what's in

16 none of this crap.

17       There's no restitutions for the damages that are being

18 done to my house every time these vehicles come up and down

19 the street.  And it's not fair to us residents.  We need

20 some green space.  We have no parks.

21       And only thing you're all looking at is finance here,

22 finance there, but these developments are not conducive to

23 our living conditions.  Only thing you're doing is

24 warehousing people and packing these people in on top of us.

Page 81
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Mr. Brockenbrough.  We

 2 appreciate the comments and I need to move on to the next

 3 commenter.

 4       The next one we have is Andrew Zeygel.

 5       MR. ZEYGEL:  Hi, hello.  Can you hear me?

 6       CHAIR FADULLON:  Yes.  Go ahead, please.

 7       MR. ZEYGEL:  Yes.  Hi.  So we were actually the GC

 8 Group that submitted the letter to the Board prior to this

 9 meeting, and so couple of things.  We're absolutely in

10 support of any affordable housing program that's happening

11 in the community, any redevelopment, Turn the Key or any

12 other program that's there that can make the neighborhoods

13 better, safer, cleaner.  They can provide housing for the

14 municipal workers, obviously police department, teachers,

15 doctors, anyone that works for the city.

16       But then at the same time, we kind of lost in

17 transactions here, because if you look at the sub-areas, the

18 size of the lots are completely different and they're very

19 different.

20       For example, if you look in the sub-area number one,

21 and I'll just give one example, on Percy Street, the size of

22 the lots are 14 by 44.  If you look in the sub-area, let's

23 say number three, which is the Marshall Street, you have

24 lots at a size of 17 by 75.  That's a much larger piece of

Page 82
 1 land.  The question is, how can this be an equality for a

 2 homeowner who's going to have a single-family house on a 14

 3 by 44 size lot and the same homeowner who's going to have

 4 the same single-family on a 17 by 75?

 5       That's another issue that we wanted to bring to your

 6 attention.  Now, obviously, we would like to support

 7 Civetta, but we want to support them only in partial to this

 8 RFP.  We think that the RFP should be reviewed and as was

 9 mentioned originally, the developer doesn't have to take all

10 the sub-areas.  They can take particular sub-areas.

11       So what we're suggesting in our letter that maybe the

12 sub-area one and the sub-area five, which are more smaller

13 sizes, more appropriate for single-family dwellings, those

14 should be given to the developer.  Those are almost 26

15 single-family homes.  They're not spread out to all the

16 blocks.  They actually spread out between actually two

17 blocks, because Ingley (phonetic) and Percy are right next

18 to each other and so is the Susquehanna 900 block.

19       So that being said, the other sub-areas we believe

20 should be given back to the other developers and the

21 opportunity to develop maybe duplexes, because you can build

22 duplexes, and as we understand after consulting with the

23 Philadelphia Land Bank, duplexes are considered to be as

24 part of the affordable housing units, as condos.  Again,

Board of Directors Meeting 22 (79 - 82) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 41 of 179



Page 83
 1 this is information that has been provided to us from the

 2 city.

 3       And one final note that we wanted to make on this is

 4 that we are for redevelopment of this neighborhood.  We have

 5 invested a lot of money, a lot of time.  We also have a lot

 6 of projects that are happening in that area.  The last thing

 7 we want is for that neighborhood to stay dirty.  The last

 8 thing we want, for that neighborhood to stay high in crime.

 9 The last thing we want for that neighborhood, to stay, you

10 know, in the past.  We want the neighborhood to move

11 forward, but in order --

12       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Mr. Zeygel.  I need you to

13 wrap up your comments, please.

14       MR. ZEYGEL:  That's it.  Thank you to the Board.  We

15 hope you can understand our concern, that again, like we

16 said, you know, we would like to support Civetta but not an

17 entire package, only on the particular lots that are

18 appropriate for single-family dwellings.

19       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  Thank you.  Next we have

20 PrrellJerae.

21       MS. SIMMONS:  Yes.  Good afternoon.  I just wanted to

22 speak to the Board first about the neighborhood being

23 surveyed with the intention to own property.  First and

24 foremost, no one contacted anyone from this neighborhood to

Page 84
 1 give us any warning or make us aware that this project was

 2 taking place.

 3       But to remove a lot of the gates before this list was

 4 created, that's a big confusion that we're all having that's

 5 from the neighborhood in the first place.

 6       And I have a question for Mr. Angel Rodriguez.  Which

 7 elected Council members are helping you make these

 8 decisions?  Because we're trying to figure out who's helping

 9 make these decisions.

10       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Well, this development is in the Fifth

11 District so we work with that Council office.  The other

12 developments that have been presented to the Board have been

13 in the Second, First, I believe we've done the Fourth, and

14 we've always been in contact with Council office prior to

15 issuance of a request for proposal.

16       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Ms. Simmons.  Next we have

17 Charles Dyches.

18       MR. DYCHES:  Good afternoon.  My question is for you,

19 Mr. Rodriguez.  Darrell Clarke hasn't been in this

20 neighborhood unless it's election time.  He don't know what

21 the hell is going on down here, who owned what, who took

22 care of what, who cleaned what.  But for him to make

23 decisions without talking to us is, it's not right.

24       It's not right for you all to just sell things

Page 85
 1 underneath us that we've been taking care of for 30-plus

 2 years, and who's going to pay us for our work and our tools

 3 and everything else?

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Mr. Dyches.

 5       And next we have Adam Butler.

 6       MR. BUTLER:  Hi.  Thank you for taking my comment.

 7 I'll try to be really quick.  What I see in that package is

 8 a ton of properties that have been used for a long time, and

 9 it's a familiar thing for me to look at a Board package and

10 see a bunch of properties that have occupied side yards

11 being set up in an RFP for development, and no one has

12 obviously consulted with the people who are using those

13 properties.  And the Board shouldn't approve this package

14 until everyone has been engaged with.  Thank you.

15       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Mr. Butler.

16       All right.  That concludes public comment on this

17 item.  If there's no other comments or questions from the

18 Board, I would entertain a motion.  Go ahead, Mr. Sauer.

19       MR. SAUER:  Yeah, just one question.  Given the

20 extensive comment from the community, I'd be curious to hear

21 from the developer whether the proposed project has been

22 modified in any way to respond to the community's concerns.

23       CHAIR FADULLON:  Can we un-mute Ms. Tomasetti, please?

24       MS. TOMASETTI:  Hi.  Brennan Tomasetti.  Sorry,

Page 86
 1 question one more time, Rick?  Have we made any

 2 modifications to the project?

 3       MR. SAUER:  Yeah.  Based on the feedback from the

 4 community, whether it's from the RCO meetings or all the

 5 other comments we've heard from the community, how has the

 6 project been modified to respond to those concerns?

 7       MS. TOMASETTI:  So a few of the things I heard with

 8 regard to side gardens, etcetera, all I can say is that we

 9 have green space planned, right, we have outdoor space

10 planned for each of these homes.

11       We are working with the Philadelphia Horticultural

12 Society to implement trees to help with the greenery in the

13 neighborhood.  We've modified each of the sites.  There were

14 some questions brought up about the lot size.  Yes, we

15 understand many of the lot sizes vary.

16       We adjust the homes accordingly, and for the site and

17 for the landscape on the street, so if it's a two-story, you

18 know, friendly block, we go with two-story.  If it's a

19 three-story friendly block, we fit the cityscape, and so we

20 make adjustments in that way to conform to the neighborhood

21 design.

22       We believe strongly in the need for affordable housing

23 in the City of Philadelphia and we're grateful for the

24 opportunity to help bring it.

Board of Directors Meeting 23 (83 - 86) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 42 of 179



Page 87
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you.  Rick, do you have any

 2 other question before I go to Maria?

 3       (No response.)

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  Maria?

 5       MS. GONZALEZ:  Thank you.  I just wanted to ask a

 6 question related to the marketing of the units that are

 7 developed for land that has been donated by the Land Bank

 8 and sold at a minimum amount.

 9       I think it's great that we're giving preference to

10 city employees to be able to buy the units first, but I

11 think that places other groups at a disadvantage, lower

12 income households that are in competition for limited

13 housing stock in the city.

14       So I think that's something that perhaps we can take

15 up later on and for the Board to discuss, because I think

16 that there can be a better way to be able to provide a

17 fairer process for marketing and also providing pathways for

18 lower income households to be able to buy the limited

19 housing stock that is available.

20       CHAIR FADULLON:  I would just say to that that

21 preference has been legislated by City Council, so that is

22 not something that can be changed by the Land Bank Board or

23 the policy committee.  It would actually have to be changed

24 in City Council.

Page 88
 1       Go ahead, Angel.

 2       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  I just want, for the Board's

 3 edification, just to give you an idea of what we're talking

 4 about, DC33 who we've been marketing heavily, if you look at

 5 their salary range, they go from $29,000 to $59,000 on the

 6 union rate at the high end.

 7       So they are definitely like 80 percent and below, and

 8 this is who we're working with, trying to get them in

 9 houses.  And also, again, when you think about DC33, we're

10 talking Trash, you know, Streets, everybody that's

11 responsible for the infrastructure in the city.

12       So I don't want it to be like this thing where, oh,

13 everybody's got like these large salaries.  We're not

14 talking about that.  We're talking about 80 percent and

15 below in many of these unions that we're working with.

16       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you.  Andrew Goodman?

17       MR. GOODMAN:  Thanks.  I just want to add voice to a

18 couple things that have come up along the way, because

19 there's been a lot of discussion.

20       So, one, on information, informationally, Jessie, I

21 don't think it's -- I don't think, there isn't an aggregated

22 kind of summary sheet related to this RFP on the web site,

23 which is why I asked the question.  There are for other RFPs

24 but not for others.  Maybe there is and I just missed it.

Page 89
 1       MR. LAWRENCE:  That is posted once we award it.

 2 You'll see that goes hand in hand upon receiving the award.

 3 If we don't -- not the award, but Board approval.  Should

 4 this be approved, that will go up.

 5       MR. GOODMAN:  Okay.  So there's no further detail

 6 provided on the number of qualified applicants until after

 7 the Board meeting?

 8       MR. LAWRENCE:  That's correct.

 9       MR. GOODMAN:  And that's after an item is approved at

10 the Board level?

11       MR. LAWRENCE:  Right.

12       MR. GOODMAN:  Okay.  That's why talking about it at

13 these Board meetings is so important.  And also, in the

14 packet, purchase price is listed as $7,000, but I've heard

15 it described a couple different ways.  I read it as $7,000

16 for the whole disposition, not per parcels, so I just want

17 to clarify that, because I heard, you know, some of the

18 public commenters said it a couple different ways, so I just

19 want to, you know, make sure that that's accurate into the

20 record because, for the whole disposition versus per parcel

21 is obviously a very different proposition.  I just wanted to

22 put that out there.

23       And then as it relates to transparency, I just want

24 to, you know, kind of hit on a couple things.  I do want to,

Page 90
 1 you know, express gratitude to the staff because there

 2 didn't used to be RCO meeting requirements for these sorts

 3 of dispositions, right, and so this is a good thing,

 4 because, yeah, there used to not be this sort of thing,

 5 notification requirements in place for these types of

 6 dispositions.

 7       And I do think a lot of the questions that came up in

 8 the letter as well as in the public comment call up the need

 9 for even more, because the interconnectedness between the

10 RFPs and the Turn the Key program and just the details of

11 Turn the Key and what it entails and doesn't entail, these

12 are all incredibly complicated and incredibly important.

13       And I so I just want to note that we are, you know,

14 making progress but still having kind of relevant folks from

15 PHDC being, you know, more present and available to answer

16 some of these questions could go a long way even before they

17 get to the Board meetings.  So I just want to hit on that.

18 Thank you.

19       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any other questions or comments from

20 the Board?

21       (No response.)

22       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  Hearing none, I'll entertain a

23 motion.

24       (Pause.)

Board of Directors Meeting 24 (87 - 90) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 43 of 179



Page 91
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay, Board.  You're on the Board for

 2 a reason.  You've got to make a motion.  I know that this

 3 is, we've heard a lot.  There's a lot to consider on this

 4 one, but I do need a motion.

 5       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  I make a motion to approve the

 6 disposition.

 7       MR. DeMARCO:  I'll second.

 8       CHAIR FADULLON:  Motion has been made and properly

 9 seconded to approve the disposition of these properties for

10 the development of affordable housing.  All in favor?

11       (Chorus of ayes.)

12       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any opposed?

13       MR. GOODMAN:  Nay.

14       MR. SAUER:  Nay.

15       MS. GONZALEZ:  Nay.

16       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  We've got three nays.  Hold

17 on.  I've got to do a count now.  Okay.  With three nays,

18 that means there's only five years, so this item gets tabled

19 until -- because per the enabling legislation, there needs

20 to be six Board members that would vote in approval to

21 dispose of any properties that are valued at over $50,000.

22       I would make a request as Chair to have the Board, to

23 have staff maybe work again with the Council office and take

24 a look at, should any of these properties remain as

Page 92
 1 community gardens or not.  I know it's different from what

 2 was in the RFP, and I know that there's already been

 3 conversations, but based on what we've heard, it sounds like

 4 maybe another conversation along that lines would make

 5 sense.  Go ahead, Angel.

 6       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Could I ask, I mean, yeah, we will

 7 talk with Council office, but is that the reason why the

 8 Board members are saying nay?  So if we have that

 9 conversation and we bring it back up, are we still going to

10 get a nay?  That's the question I have.

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  I would say, I mean, the Board

12 members who said nay can provide that if they want to.

13 They're not required to say why they said nay, I don't

14 think, but if they want to provide more information about

15 why they said nay, they are certainly able to do that.

16       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Okay.

17       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  So just to clarify, the item

18 is tabled and it will come back at a future agenda item,

19 future agenda.

20       All right.  That brings us to Item V.B, which is

21 another development disposition for or open space.

22       MR. LAWRENCE:  Thank you again, Madam Chair.  Item

23 V.B.1, today we're asking the Board to authorize the

24 disposition of properties in North Philadelphia,

Page 93
 1 specifically those west of Broad, to Sanctuary Farm, a non-

 2 profit, for stabilization of a community garden at 1901

 3 North Ringgold Street and 1910 North 24th Street.

 4       The non-profit maintains the adjacent lots and wants

 5 to continue to use the lots and these as requested as a

 6 community garden.  The properties will be fenced.  Garden

 7 beds, a shed, a honey house and beehives will be installed

 8 at 1910 North 24th Street.  Vegetables grown on the lot will

 9 be for the neighborhood itself, and fruit trees will also be

10 planted on 1901 North Ringgold Street.

11       Sanctuary Farm is purchasing the property for nominal

12 subject to a 30-year mortgage and note.  The applicant is

13 compliant and in good standing with the City of

14 Philadelphia, will not be subject to an economic opportunity

15 plan and also the property will be subject, again, to use

16 restrictions as a community garden.

17       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Jessie.  Any questions or

18 comments from the Board on this item?

19       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Angel --

20       (Pause.)

21       CHAIR FADULLON:  Go ahead.

22       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  -- (inaudible) -- previous meetings

23 that we've got, at least two of these side yards are in

24 desirable neighborhoods that would benefit from affordable

Page 94
 1 housing and have lots that are very expensive being marketed

 2 near them.

 3       CHAIR FADULLON:  This is Item --

 4       MR. LAWRENCE:  This is the gardens for Item V.B.1.

 5       CHAIR FADULLON:  -- V.B, the garden open space.

 6       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  Oh, I'm sorry.

 7       CHAIR FADULLON:  We're not on side yards yet.  Is that

 8 okay?  I just wanted to make sure that I was --

 9       MS. LOPEZ KRISS:  I just really, really want to make

10 this point.  I apologize.

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  We'll let you make it again in

12 a couple minutes.  All right.

13       So just to clarify, this is about a garden at 1901

14 North Ringgold Street and 1910 North 24th Street for a

15 community garden, Sanctuary Farm Philadelphia.

16       Any other questions or comments from the Board?  Go

17 ahead, Andrea.

18       MS. SAAH:  I just wanted to also add to this that the

19 Board had approved the disposition of 2106 North 24th Street

20 to this same garden, so this is just an expansion of the

21 garden.  The other thing is, I did not receive any public

22 comment with respect to this particular disposition.

23       MR. LAWRENCE:  Andrea, I think you might have said

24 2100 block, but it's the 1900 block.

Board of Directors Meeting 25 (91 - 94) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 44 of 179



Page 95
 1       MS. SAAH:  I'm sorry, 1900, yes.  Thank you for that

 2 correction.

 3       MR. LAWRENCE:  No problem.

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any other questions, comments from

 5 the Board?

 6       (No response.)

 7       CHAIR FADULLON:  Do we have any members of the public

 8 that wish to speak to this item?  I see one hand up, Ruth

 9 Birchett.

10       (Pause.)

11       CHAIR FADULLON:  Go ahead, Ms. Birchett.  You should

12 be able to un-mute and speak to the Board.  There you go.

13       MS. BIRCHETT:  If Andrea could mention again the

14 address that's already been approved?  Because I am aware

15 that there is a Sanctuary Farm active garden directly across

16 the street from this location, and also on two corners of

17 22nd and Cecil B. Moore Avenue.

18       MS. SAAH:  Yes.  So we conveyed 1906 North 24th Street

19 to Sanctuary Farm Phila.  That was back in, I'm not sure,

20 maybe, yeah, middle of last year, May of last year.  They

21 already own 1908 North 24th Street, and now they're

22 requesting 1910 North 24th Street and 1901 North Ringgold

23 Street which is a corner property of North Ringgold and West

24 Berks and close to the existing garden.

Page 96
 1       MS. BIRCHETT:  And I am a homeowner in the 1900 block

 2 of Arias (phonetic) Street, and so my question is, is the

 3 Land Bank or do you even ask any questions about how the

 4 entities dispense of the food that is prepared on these

 5 locations, whether it's for sale, whether it's for free to

 6 the community?

 7       MS. SAAH:  I'll let Jessie or Angel --

 8       MR. LAWRENCE:  I'm sorry, could she repeat the

 9 question?  She went in and out, but what I understood was,

10 if in fact there is a component of our evaluation that asks

11 if in fact the community would be brought in at any aspect

12 of it.  Did I hear that right?

13       MS. BIRCHETT:  Well, no.  That's not my question.  My

14 question is, early on, I participated as a volunteer on the

15 one at 24th and Berks Street, for example, and I do recall

16 that there was a -- the community wasn't happy about the

17 prospect of having to purchase, you know, some of the food.

18       So my question is, is, with so many, with this entity

19 acquiring so many vast open spaces in the community and

20 obviously they have the financial wherewithal to not only

21 acquire the land but also develop it into these food spaces,

22 is -- do you have any sense of whether they are providing

23 this food for free or for sale?

24       MR. LAWRENCE:  That type of thing is disclosed in the

Page 97
 1 application, but there are some prohibitions.  I'll let

 2 Angel speak to that.

 3       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Yeah.  It really does depend.  Revenue

 4 has a limit as to when you have to, like if you're a

 5 business, you have to register as a business, and also how

 6 you apply.  So if a group wants to apply as an urban farm

 7 and an ongoing business, that's part of what they'll talk

 8 about, how they're going to use the property.

 9       Typically garden groups, really it's about a community

10 benefiting use and, you know, in terms of that.  I believe

11 Andrea wanted to --

12       CHAIR FADULLON:  Right.  I think we have a member of

13 Sanctuary Farms on.  Can we un-mute Andrea Vittori who can

14 maybe respond to some of these questions?  Thank you.

15       MS. VITTORI:  Hi.  Thanks.  Yeah, this is Andrea

16 Vittori.  I'm the executive director.  So we give away

17 everything that we grow on all of our lots for free.  We do

18 that through directly at a produce stand that we run twice a

19 week, and then we give food away through different programs

20 that we run as well.  We've never sold anything.  So all of

21 the food has been free since day one, and will continue to

22 be free.

23       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Ms. Vittori.

24       MS. BIRCHETT:  So what I would like the Land Bank to

Page 98
 1 do, and I am aware as I stated, already stated, and I know

 2 you're pressed for time, but I already stated the issue

 3 around sales, so perhaps that was resolved, and I'm happy to

 4 hear that.

 5       My point to the Land Bank is, if an entity has a plan

 6 for multiple locations and to acquire multiple locations,

 7 then that should be something that the community, the

 8 homeowners should have an opportunity to weigh in on, that

 9 this is intentional.

10       As a homeowner, I am only aware of this because your,

11 I'm attending your meeting and I'm grateful for the public

12 comment opportunity.  And also as the founder of a 33-year

13 old community development corporation, I also understand the

14 obligations of entities coming into the community and making

15 plans, whether that be for open spaces, whether that be for

16 affordable housing or whether that be to help address the

17 issue of food insecurity.

18       It still is an obligation of that, or should be,

19 rather, the culture of that organization to have a community

20 planning process through which we can weigh in on it.  And

21 I'll rest my comments.

22       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Ms. Birchett.  All right.

23 I don't see any other hands raised from the public, so I'm

24 going to call the question on this item, which is again,

Board of Directors Meeting 26 (95 - 98) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 45 of 179



Page 99
 1 disposition for a garden open space at 1901 North Ringgold

 2 Street and 1910 North 24th Street.  Can I get a motion from

 3 the Board?

 4       MS. GONZALEZ:  I make a motion for approval.

 5       MR. KOONCE:  Motion seconded.

 6       MR. DeMARCO:  Second.

 7       CHAIR FADULLON:  Motion has been made and properly

 8 seconded to approve disposition of 1901 North Ringgold

 9 Street and 1910 North 24th Street for use as a community

10 garden.  All in favor?

11       (Chorus of ayes.)

12       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any opposed?

13       (No response.)

14       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  That motion carries, and

15 we are on to Item C.1, which are disposition of side yards.

16 And I know that one of our Board members has a general

17 comment about side yards, but Jessie, why don't you read all

18 three of them together and then we will consider them

19 separately.

20       MR. LAWRENCE:  Sure thing.  Item V.C, collectively

21 regarding the side yards.  Today we're asking the Board to

22 authorize the disposition of the following properties as

23 sideyards.  Item V.C.1 is in regard to 1217 Pennock Street.

24 It's in the Fifth District, specifically for Jonathan D'Alba

Page 100
 1 and Leanne Earley.  Item V.C.2 is in the Seventh District,

 2 2032 East Boston Street, to Charles J. Keller and Colleen

 3 Foster.  And Item V.C.3 is a pair of properties at 2410 and

 4 2412 North Orianna Street in the Seventh District.  The

 5 applicant in that particular case is collectively Daniel

 6 McShane and Victoria Noll.

 7       All the applicants are compliant and in good standing

 8 with the City of Philadelphia.  These properties will not be

 9 subject to an economic opportunity plan.  Each of the

10 properties will be subject to a 30-year mortgage and use

11 restrictions for sideyard use only.  Thank you.

12       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you.  Are there any questions

13 or comments about these sideyards as a body from the Board?

14       (No response.)

15       CHAIR FADULLON:  Are there questions or comments

16 related to 1217 Pennock Street?  Go ahead, Andrea.

17       MS. SAAH:  Yes.  We did receive a comment regarding

18 1217 Pennock Street, and that was from the owner, from one

19 of the adjacent -- the owner on the other side of the lot

20 who requested assurances that she would be able to get

21 access to the side of her home for maintenance purposes,

22 maintenance and repair purposes.

23       CHAIR FADULLON:  Right.  And it's my understanding

24 that there's already a Code provision on the books within

Page 101
 1 the City Code that grants the authority for any adjacent

 2 property owner to get access to make repairs to their home.

 3 Is that accurate?

 4       MS. SAAH:  I believe that is accurate.  This has come

 5 up before and that's what we've found.  The homeowner would

 6 have to enforce -- if the actual lot owner refused to give

 7 access, the other homeowner would have to seek legal

 8 enforcement.

 9       CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  Thank you.  It looks like we

10 do have one hand raised on this, so can we un-mute

11 Jacqueline Wiggins?  Go ahead, Ms. Wiggins.  You should be

12 able to un-mute yourself.

13       (No response.)

14       CHAIR FADULLON:  Ms. Wiggins, can you un-mute

15 yourself?

16       (No response.)

17       CHAIR FADULLON:  Ms. Wiggins?  Unfortunately --

18       MS. WIGGINS:  Hello?

19       CHAIR FADULLON:  There we go.  Okay, great.

20       MS. WIGGINS:  I'm sorry, I got up for a moment.

21       CHAIR FADULLON:  That's okay.  No problem.

22       MS. WIGGINS:  But I may be going back in time because

23 I'm coming in as I'm coming in, but with respect to Land

24 Bank policies, I really have some real concerns about

Page 102
 1 policies and how they become reality when it comes to those

 2 leases and when it comes to the gardens, because the gardens

 3 and farms are being used to feed the people.

 4       Food is medicine, as we know.  So those policies, you

 5 know, matter with respect to the concerns of the people, and

 6 they just cannot be ignored.  So as I listen, and this is

 7 maybe my first or second time with the Land Bank, is there a

 8 booklet that you have that would let the people know what

 9 you do and what we need to know?

10       And I know our City Council people are part of this as

11 well, because they let us down when they don't inform us.

12 So I just want to make that clear.  Thank you.

13       CHAIR FADULLON:  Yeah.  Ms. Wiggins, there is, if you

14 go to the web site, the PHDC web site and Land, all the

15 policies and everything are on the web site.

16       MS. WIGGINS:  Okay.  Thank you.

17       CHAIR FADULLON:  Sure.  Sure.

18       Okay.  Are there any other questions or comments from

19 the Board on any of these side yards?

20       (No response.)

21       CHAIR FADULLON:  Andrea, I'm assuming the only one we

22 received a comment on was the 1217 Pennock Street which

23 we've already addressed.  Are there any members of the

24 public that wish to comment on any of these sideyards?

Board of Directors Meeting 27 (99 - 102) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 46 of 179



Page 103
 1 (No response.)

 2 CHAIR FADULLON:  Seeing none, can I get a motion from

 3 the Board?

 4 MR. SAUER:  I'll make a motion to dispose of the three

 5 sideyards to the adjacent property owners.

 6 MS. GONZALEZ:  I second.

 7 CHAIR FADULLON:  Motion has been made and properly

 8 seconded to approve the disposition of the sideyards as

 9 stated in the agenda.  All in favor?

10 (Chorus of ayes.)

11 CHAIR FADULLON:  Any opposed?

12 (No response.)

13 CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Motion carries.

14 We would now normally go to any new business or old

15 business, and I know that we have a number of folks that

16 provided comment about Land Bank policy around mortgages on

17 community gardens.  I'll just say we are two and a half

18 hours into this, and I've already missed a couple meetings

19 that I'm supposed to be at, and I think we're probably about

20 to lose a bunch of our members because this meeting has gone

21 on so long.

22 I don't want to ignore that issue, so I'm going to

23 request that the folks that are concerned about that issue

24 reach out to staff, and staff, if you could maybe schedule a

Page 104
 1 meeting with the Land Bank policy committee to have

 2 representatives of the gardeners attend a policy committee

 3 meeting and maybe present their issues, and then have

 4 another meeting where the policy committee considers, and

 5 then maybe brings back some recommendations around that to

 6 the Board based on the concerns that we heard regarding that

 7 issue.

 8 MR. GOODMAN:  Madam Chair, I mean, this is not new,

 9 right.  I think it was first raised by the Neighborhood

10 Gardens Trust quite some time ago.  We've discussed it at

11 the policy committee kind of in broad strokes going back

12 maybe even a year now, I think.

13 At that point, the staff said that they would be kind

14 of seeking an independent, I think, financial analysis or

15 assessment, might be the wrong word here.  I don't know if

16 that has been completed, but either way, I think that it's

17 probably enough to actually make this a Board agenda item.

18 I would ask maybe we just skip the policy committee

19 step and go straight to April Board agenda item, because

20 it's been out there for a while, and coming from many

21 organizations that are otherwise, you know, frequent and

22 prolific collaborators with the Land Bank and the city.  So

23 in the interest of not belaboring it any longer, I would

24 suggest there be some -- and my understanding that the

Page 105
 1 disposition policy is that, you know, we do have

 2 jurisdiction because it's not legislated by the Code.  So I

 3 would suggest that we, you know, skip the steps and try to

 4 speed it up.

 5 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  If I could clarify, the financial

 6 piece was on long-term leases, I mean garden leases which we

 7 did address.  I think also there was the issue of the impact

 8 on what a self-amortizing mortgage would have on a non-

 9 profit.  But I also would state that it's not just the

10 ordinance or disposition but also the executive order that

11 we have to comply with.

12 CHAIR FADULLON:  So I'm happy to have this as an

13 agenda item if people feel like that's where we're at.  I

14 want to recognize a couple Board members and then I will

15 take some comment from the public on this item.  Go ahead,

16 Rick.

17 MR. SAUER:  I would certainly support bringing this

18 before the Board for discussion and decision.  I do know, I

19 think there's some dispositions or issues pending right now

20 that have a time constraint.

21 I think, at least in reading some of the comment

22 letters, I thought there was a March 31st deadline, so if

23 we're deferring this to the April Board meeting, I don't

24 know if there's a way to move back that deadline so that it

Page 106
 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

won't negatively impact dispositions currently under 

consideration.

MR. RODRIGUEZ: So the Board should understand that 

those issues are related to the PRA, and it is the PRA's 

Board that has to address that issue.  So what was raised 

were PRA dispositions, not Land Bank dispositions.

And also, if the Land Bank Board is going to do 

something different, doesn't necessarily mean it would have 

to be presented to the PRA Board.

MR. GOODMAN:  So did this come up at the most recent 

PRA Board meeting then, on the same topic?

MR. RODRIGUEZ:  This is an ongoing disposition, over a 

year, that has been going on, negotiations between PRA and 

Neighborhood Gardens Trust.

CHAIR FADULLON:  So it sounds like there's a specific 

issue, disposition that's PRA Board, but something that the 

Land Bank Board needs to consider is this item probably as 

well.  Go ahead, Maria.

MS. GONZALEZ:  Yes.  I'm okay with moving the item to 

a future agenda.  I just want, you know, because I'm part of 

the policy committee, but I haven't been allowed to attend 

meetings I would say for the last seven months, so if 

there's a summary, just to reeducate, I think, all of us on 

what the issues are, then I think we will be better

Board of Directors Meeting 28 (103 - 106) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 47 of 179



Page 107
 1 prepared.  The meeting can go smoother.

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

CHAIR FADULLON:  We're going to need that for the 

Board anyway, for the Board to understand the different 

issues around this item.

MR. GOODMAN:  That will be part of the package.  But I 

know we've been at this for more than three hours.  There 

are kind of dozens and dozens of people that are here.  Is 

there any way they can do some abridged comment?

CHAIR FADULLON:  Yes.  I said I was going to take some 

public comment.

MR. GOODMAN:  Thank you.

CHAIR FADULLON:  So we have a hand up by Elizabeth 

Waring.  Go ahead, Ms. Waring.

MS. WARING:  Good afternoon.  May name is Elizabeth 

Waring and I am a member of West Powellton and West Powellton 

Saunders Park Registered Community Organization as well as 

the overseer of the Holly Street Neighbors Community Garden, 

and also a board member of the NGT.

So I just want some clarity, because I don't 

understand the need or the purpose for the 30 year 

amortization for the garden and green space.  And also, in 

the long run, I don't know what will happen in the 30 years, 

but who will benefit from this?

24 CHAIR FADULLON:  So staff, can you provide a quick

Page 108
 1 response to that, please?

 2 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  The 30 year self-amortizing mortgage

 3 is a tool to keep the property from being flipped.  In the

 4 past, prior to the change in disposition policies, there had

 5 been a number of situations where properties have been

 6 leveraged and lost or have been sold several times.  This is

 7 partly due to the fact that title companies do not recognize

 8 or not noticing, as they should, with our Declarations of

 9 Restrictive Covenants and also with our deed restrictions.

10 So the mortgage actually shows up and they actually know

11 they can't convey without a mortgage, so that was the first

12 issue.  It's to prevent flipping, and also to provide

13 recourse should, you know, the item not or the property is

14 not being maintained in good order moving forward.

15 MS. WARING:  I don't think the maintenance of the

16 properties are a problem, but the flipping, who would be

17 doing the flipping?  I just need --

18 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  (Inaudible) --

19 MS. WARING:  -- to understand --

20 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  -- (inaudible) -- organization.

21 MS. WARING:  Okay.  Well, I agree with --

22 CHAIR FADULLON:  And there was -- I'm sorry, Ms.

23 Waring, but I know you also had a question of, what happens

24 after the 30 years, so if we can have staff respond to that

Page 109
 1 as well, please.

 2 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Certainly.  It would be a 30-year

 3 amortizing mortgage, so therefore it would just basically

 4 sunset.  There wouldn't be a mortgage after 30 years.  And

 5 also, the amount due just goes down every year on an annual

 6 basis.

 7 So think of it this way.  The value of the land is

 8 going to go up.  The amount of the mortgage is going to go

 9 down.  So the non-profit ends up with more equity in the

10 land.

11 CHAIR FADULLON:  Right.  But at the end of that 30

12 years, it's, the garden owns it free and clear.

13 MR. RODRIGUEZ:  Free and clear.

14 MS. WARING:  Okay.

15 CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Thank you, Ms. Waring.

16 And next we have Mimi McKenzie.

17 MS. McKENZIE:  I was going to say good morning,

18 everyone, but I guess it's good afternoon.  I'm Mimi

19 McKenzie.  I'm the legal director at the Public Interest Law

20 Center.  Thank you for the opportunity to speak.  I'll keep

21 it very brief.

22 I hope this Board is aware that prior to this Board

23 meeting, the Law Center along with 29 gardens, non-profits,

24 and allies submitted a letter to the Board asking that the

Page 110
 1 Board discontinue the 30-year mortgage and note on gardens

 2 and open space.

 3 I appreciate the Board agreeing to make it an agenda

 4 item going forward.  I can't urge you enough to please make

 5 that happen at the April Board meeting.  Frankly, I think

 6 there are a couple dozen people on this Board meeting who

 7 sat through multiple hours waiting to speak, so you know, we

 8 are disappointed, but you know, at least I can say for the

 9 Law Center, we will be back in April and we really hope that

10 the Board will take seriously the fact that this 30-year

11 mortgage and note is a barrier for many of the organizations

12 best suited to preserve community gardens from being able to

13 do that.  And we will certainly be back in force in April.

14 CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  And we'll make sure you're

15 early on the agenda, too, so that we can get the focus that

16 we need.  Go ahead, Ms. Saah.

17 MS. SAAH:  Yes.  I just wanted to point out that the

18 Board would not have been able to reach a decision or take a

19 vote on this policy request at this meeting anyhow because

20 we are subject to the Sunshine Act, and that requires that

21 we post any agenda items or decisions ten days prior, at

22 least ten days prior to the meeting and included in the

23 Board package.

24 CHAIR FADULLON:  Right, which is why it's important

Board of Directors Meeting 29 (107 - 110) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 48 of 179



Page 111
 1 that this be on the actual agenda so that we can have the

 2 conversation that needs to be had with all the public

 3 participation and hear all sides of the story.  And as Board

 4 member Goodman referred to, this has been going on for a

 5 long time, so hopefully we can finally get some resolution

 6 on this.  Next we have Joshua Warner.

 7       MR. WARNER:  Good afternoon, everyone.  Can you hear

 8 me?

 9       CHAIR FADULLON:  Yes, we can.  Go ahead, please.

10       MR. WARNER:  Good afternoon.  My name is Joshua

11 Warner.  I am co-executive director of Urban Creators.  We

12 run Life to Grow Farm on North 11th Street.  We are about

13 two blocks from Civetta property, the matter that was tabled

14 today.

15       Just very succinctly, I'm encouraged by the Board's

16 decision to hold a public meeting.  I feel, we feel, and the

17 gardens and farms of Philadelphia, that this 30-year

18 mortgage practice is not necessary.  We look forward to

19 talking about that in our earliest convenience.

20       To Andrew Goodman's point earlier and also to back up

21 Mr. Kevin Brockenbrough of North Eighth Street, also a

22 neighbor of ours, I feel, we feel that the Land Bank, PHDC

23 needs to create a dedicated staff position that can be an

24 actual liaison for us open spaces and our gardens.

Page 112
 1       Furthermore, the Board of Directors for the Land Bank

 2 should also consider, strongly consider exploring a

 3 subcommittee that is dedicated only to gardens and open

 4 spaces.  I notice that Mr. Rodriguez's executive report at

 5 the top of this meeting had wonderful things to say about

 6 affordable housing starts, RFPs completed, nothing to day

 7 about gardens and open spaces except for the two that we saw

 8 today on the agenda.

 9       I'd like to know how the Land Bank is doing in terms

10 of its strategic plan goals for open spaces and gardens, and

11 perhaps if this, as we are all saying, if this 30-year

12 mortgage is a true barrier and impediment.

13       I feel that this as a tool to prevent flipping is

14 frankly kind of a tired excuse.  There are other nominal

15 disposition means in the Land Bank's tool box, and the fact

16 that, you know, quote, the value of our gardens and open

17 space goes up while the mortgage goes down, that I feel is

18 false.  If we're attaching perpetual open space like deed

19 restrictions on this land, no, the value of the land doesn't

20 go up, yet we carry the debt at the market price for the

21 land across 30 years.  That is patently unfair.

22       Thank you for your time.  Thank you all for your

23 dedication.  This is not an easy job.  I look forward to

24 speaking to you in April.

Page 113
 1       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Mr. Warner.  And next we

 2 have Jenny Greenberg.

 3       (Pause.)

 4       CHAIR FADULLON:  Ms. Greenberg, you should be able to

 5 un-mute yourself.

 6       MS. GREENBERG:  Hi.  Thanks.  Sorry.  Good afternoon.

 7 I'm Jenny Greenberg, executive director of Neighborhood

 8 Gardens Trust, Philadelphia's land trust for the protection

 9 of community gardens and green spaces.

10       And I'm really pleased to hear that we'll be delving

11 further into this issue of the 30-year mortgage at the April

12 meeting.  This has become quite time sensitive for NGT, so I

13 am going to share some of our concerns right now.

14       Since 1986, we've been able to preserve 51 gardens,

15 many in partnership with the city, and are working to secure

16 an additional 25 gardens that have been secure land tenured.

17 And between 2015 and '19, we acquired 44 parcels and 15

18 gardens through a nominal fee disposition with the city.

19       They were deed restricted for open space.  There was a

20 restrictive covenant.  The land would revert to the city if

21 the garden became inactive, and those restrictions make

22 sense to us.

23       But since 2020, our work on city land has been at a

24 standstill.  We have ten ending garden acquisitions.  We're

Page 114
 1 eager to go to settlement but we can't move forward because

 2 of the terms of the mortgage that the Land Bank and

 3 Redevelopment Authority are requiring, although they're not

 4 required by the disposition policy.

 5       So despite our best efforts to engage PHDC on the

 6 substantive issues, on February 17th we were told we must

 7 either accept the mortgage terms or forgo acquiring three

 8 large fruit producing gardens that will add more than $5

 9 million in liabilities to our books, and we have until March

10 31st to decide.

11       In addition to the onerous financial and accounting

12 implications, from the perspective of our Land Trust, a

13 green space with a mortgage that allows the city to

14 foreclose is not truly protected.

15       I don't know how I can tell gardeners who care for a

16 property for 40 years that if a city inspector decides it's

17 not clean and free of debris, that they can take it back.

18 Gardens receive large soil deliveries.  They spread salt

19 hay.  They grow tall, stalky pollenators, and they lay

20 dormant in the winter.  Clean and free of debris is not an

21 acceptable threshold.

22       The premise of the mortgage is discounting decades of

23 hard work invested by thousands of residents to maintain

24 lots when the city failed to do so, and it overlooks

Board of Directors Meeting 30 (111 - 114) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 49 of 179



Page 115
 1 millions of dollars invested by community, government and

 2 philanthropy, and it conveys distrust and disrespect, which

 3 is unwarranted.

 4       So we really look forward to working with you to

 5 figure out how to achieve the Land Bank's goals without

 6 harming the groups that are doing this critical work to make

 7 our city safer, healthier and more just.

 8       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Ms. Greenberg.

 9       Next we have Madeline Ahola.

10       MS. AHOLA:  Hi, everyone.  My name is Madeline Ahola,

11 and I am speaking on behalf of The People's Kitchen, which

12 is a free restaurant located in South Philly that began in

13 the midst of the pandemic in 2021.

14       Since then, we have provided over 250,000 free meals

15 to the community and we continue to do so every single day

16 outside as a kitchen.  Our organization has also converted

17 25 vacant lots in Southwest Philadelphia into free community

18 gardens that provide fresh produce to both the neighbors and

19 to our kitchen to provide these free meals.

20       These gardens have proven to be extremely valuable in

21 fostering social cohesion, in engaging neighbors in

22 sustainable gardening and harvesting skills, and in

23 increasing direct access to fresh food.

24       In order to continue the valuable work of these

Page 116
 1 gardens, we do need access to the land in a way that is fair

 2 and stable with full transparency in legal land tenure, with

 3 more clearly defined restrictive terms, and through ending

 4 the 30-year mortgage.

 5       Throughout the harvesting season, our gardens are full

 6 of fruits and vegetables and many other forms of reuse and

 7 compost of produce such as winterizing corn stalks which

 8 could be considered debris, given the ambiguous language of

 9 the policy.

10       We firmly believe that our neighbors deserve equal

11 access to fresh, nutritious produce, and these community

12 gardens are really a dependable way to ensure that this

13 access is easy and sustainable.  I appreciate you taking the

14 time to hear us out.

15       CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Ms. Ahola.  And next we

16 have Jeff Carpenter.

17       (Pause.)

18       CHAIR FADULLON:  Mr. Carpenter, you should be able to

19 un-mute yourself.

20       MR. CARPENTER:  Sorry.

21       CHAIR FADULLON:  That's okay.

22       MR. CARPENTER:  I just wanted to ask -- I'm the

23 president of Arcadia Commons.  We have three green spaces in

24 East Kensington.  I heard, I'm not sure if it was from Angel

Page 117
 1 Rodriguez, that the disposition policy comes from the PRA.

 2 Is that true?

 3       MR. RODRIGUEZ:  No.  It's an ordinance that was passed

 4 by the City Council in 2020, and then also enforced by the

 5 administration.  So that it's not -- they are two separate

 6 agencies that were in question.  So Arcadia Commons has

 7 received land from PRA in the past, and now you have an

 8 application to receive land from the Land Bank.  So there

 9 are two separate agencies.  They do follow the disposition

10 policy.  PRA has urban renewal law issues they have to

11 contend with, but you've received land from PRA and you're

12 also about to receive land from the Land Bank.

13       MR. CARPENTER:  Thanks for clearing that up for me.  I

14 look forward to next meeting.

15       CHAIR FADULLON:  Great.  Thank you, Mr. Carpenter.

16 And we have Amy Gottsegan.

17       MS. GOTTSEGAN:  Hi.  Can you hear me all right?

18       CHAIR FADULLON:  Yes, we can.  Go ahead, please.

19       MS. GOTTSEGAN:  Thank you.  My name is Amy Gottsegan.

20 I'm a volunteer with the Iglesias Gardens, so I appreciate

21 everyone's time today.  I am also taking off of work to be

22 present.  The Iglesias Gardens has been working for many

23 years to gain land security for our community space in North

24 Philly.  Our application to take ownership of our parcel

Page 118
 1 through Land Bank was approved by the Board and City Council

 2 two years ago.

 3       Now, after a very long wait with almost no engagement

 4 about the process, we were given disposition documents

 5 recently that contain many onerous conditions, most

 6 importantly the 30-year mortgage.

 7       This mortgage we see as a punitive policy, designed to

 8 uniquely put community spaces at risk.  NGT and PILC have

 9 already outlined in great detail the many concerns that we

10 share with this new policy.  Provisions that allow the city

11 to claw back land through broad and vague restrictive

12 covenants will give the city unique leverage to penalize

13 gardens in the future.

14       These restrictions are being put in place to address

15 numerous abuses of the system.  We understand that.  But the

16 most obvious abuses of the Land Bank policies have been by

17 developers and politicians, not by community gardens or

18 neighborhood organizations.

19       The input that we have received from our legal counsel

20 is that these provisions will put us at substantial future

21 risk and may impact our ability to fundraise and continue

22 our work organizing in the community.

23       We're asking for the Board to reverse this decision

24 and to ask the Land Bank management to properly engage with

Board of Directors Meeting 31 (115 - 118) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 50 of 179



Page 119
 1 community stakeholders to fix the problem.  Thank you.

 2 CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Ms. Gottsegan.  And next

 3 we have Sonia.

 4 SONIA:  Good afternoon.  Thank you for going beyond

 5 the time to hear from us.  I'm here on behalf of Soil

 6 Generation.  We are a black and brown collective of

 7 grassroots farmers and organizers in Philadelphia.  We were

 8 also co-authors of the first urban agriculture strategic

 9 plan co-authored with Interfaith Studios, commissioned by

10 the Department of Parks and Rec.

11 And I'd like to urge the Board to really take a look

12 at all of the amazing data that came from that project, as

13 well as policy recommendations, a process that the Land Bank

14 along with 17 other city agencies were a part of co-

15 creating.

16 And so I think there's a lot of really great data

17 that's in that plan that really backs up all of the

18 narratives that our communities have been saying for a long

19 time, including urban agriculture being more than a hobby.

20 I think our biggest challenge around political

21 advocacy has been narrative shift.  And so the plan is not

22 just about gardeners.  It's a comprehensive local food

23 system reimagination and understanding why supporting urban

24 agriculture, not just as a community resource but as a

Page 120
 1 source of being able to build economic wealth and stability

 2 in communities is so important.

 3 And so please take a look at that.  It's dense with a

 4 lot of richness and a lot of hard work that our gardeners

 5 participated in developing while their land is

 6 simultaneously secure.

 7 We were engaging with our community to build this

 8 plan, and it's heartbreaking that simultaneously those same

 9 gardeners are getting news about their land being

10 potentially sold and developed.  So thank you for your time,

11 and please take a look at that.  Thanks.

12 CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you.  And next we have

13 Elizabeth Way.

14 MS. WAY:  Yes.  Hi.  Good afternoon.  I'm Elizabeth

15 Way.  I represent the Hawthorn Community Garden.  We've been

16 a garden for the last seven years, took over a construction

17 dump and really over the years and hard work have converted

18 it to 23 raised boxes with many families of our immediate

19 neighborhood taking advantage of it.

20 We have been working with NGT for the last three, four

21 years to have the land be protected as a garden, and my

22 garden is actually one of the ones that is under this March

23 31st deadline.

24 And I just would like to urge you to reconsider some

Page 121
 1 of the terms of this 30-year mortgage lease as being just

 2 too onerous for communities to take on, and urge you to

 3 consider better terms to help preserve the green space.

 4 Thank you.

 5 CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Ms. Way.  I don't see any

 6 other hands up, but I do -- oh, Alexander Miller.

 7 MR. MILLER:  Hi.  Am I on mute?  No.  I'll go really

 8 fast because I'm not going to say anything too novel.  I'm

 9 speaking for a small community garden called the Farm on

10 Florence.  Like everyone else, we grow fruits, vegetables,

11 flowers, trees, and it's a place for community bonding.

12 It's a place for the kids.  It makes the area pretty.  We do

13 charitable donations of produce to local community,

14 propagate flora, all that stuff.

15 Yeah, I just want to be one more voice emphasizing

16 that, like the Farm on Florence is a life-sized feature for

17 many of our gardeners.  This is like where they socialize

18 with other humans.  This is where they get exercise.  This

19 is where they go out.  Like, it's not just a garden.

20 And we need, we exist because of the Land Bank,

21 because of NGT and our partners in the community, and we are

22 completely vulnerable to you, and it is -- it's not all

23 track -- like, the happiness and good that these places

24 produce, there's no real number you can point to.  It's not

Page 122
 1 a quantitative kind of thing.

 2 So, yeah, please -- yeah, we're very wary of the

 3 possibility of a garden being yanked at someone's

 4 discretion.  And yeah, I'll stop, because it's been three

 5 hours.   Thank you very much, everybody.

 6 CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Mr. Miller.  And we have

 7 Mel Oliver.  Go ahead, Mr. Oliver.

 8 (Pause.)

 9 CHAIR FADULLON:  You're un-muted.  You should be able

10 to speak and we should be able to hear you.

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

MR. OLIVER:  Hello?

CHAIR FADULLON:  Mr. Oliver?  There we go.  Hello?

MR. OLIVER:  Hello.

CHAIR FADULLON:  Yes, we can hear you.

MR. OLIVER:  Oh, okay.

(Pause.)

CHAIR FADULLON:  Mr. Oliver?

(No response.)

CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  Let's go to Jovian

20 Patterson, and hopefully Mr. Oliver can rectify his tech

21 issues.  Mr. Patterson, or Ms. Patterson, excuse me?  I'm

22 sorry.

23 MR. PATTERSON:  Yes, that's fine.  It's Jovian, from

24 Original American Foundation, a small non-profit in

Board of Directors Meeting 32 (119 - 122) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 51 of 179



Page 123
 1 Southwest Philadelphia.  We were fortunate enough to get a

 2 few land plots from you guys a couple of months ago.

 3 Just second the motions on the other community

 4 gardens, just putting in the word to please re-think the 30-

 5 year mortgage.  We're a small non-profit.  We get most of

 6 our funds from grants and things like that, and as far as

 7 exemptions is concerned, I think we have to be like flat-out

 8 owners to get some of the tax exemptions for the land to my

 9 knowledge, so that would be a really great thing to

10 concentrate on, using our funds for purposes to grow the

11 garden for the people.

12 And we do a lot of teaching and stuff like that, so it

13 definitely would be a good thing to have that looked at and

14 to get the 30-year mortgage re-thought.  So I yield there.

15 Thank you.

16 CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Mr. Patterson.  All right.

17 I don't see any other hands up, but we will be considering

18 this as an agenda item -- oh, no, we do.  Jeff Carpineta.

19 MR. CARPINETA:  Yeah, hello.  Can you hear me okay?

20 CHAIR FADULLON:  Yes, we can.  Go ahead, please.

21 MR. CARPINETA:  Thank you to all for going the extra

22 mile to try to give a chance for everybody to speak today

23 and for placing this on the agenda next month.  I am

24 involved in the Arcadia Common project -- (inaudible) --

Page 124
 1 project, but also was the original author of the green space

 2 protection plan in East Kensington next to Fishtown, so I'm

 3 a board member of the East Kensington Neighbors Association

 4 and I've been involved in many different spaces.

 5 And I think the heart of this conversation comes down

 6 to what Mr. Rodriguez expressed, was this deep concern that

 7 people would betray the trust and the intention of the

 8 conveyance and then, you know, flip these properties for

 9 gain.  And theoretically, that's a possibility.

10 But what I would ask everybody at this table to do

11 would be to really do an honest check on, what is the

12 history?  Where were the abuses?

13 And when you live in Philadelphia long enough, you

14 accumulate this sort of archive of bad things that have

15 happened around the city.  It's just part of what we know as

16 Philadelphians.  There's been different disasters.  There's

17 been different abuses.  There's been different corruptions

18 in City Hall.

19 And to my knowledge, and I haven't studied it, but

20 there's been a lot of abuse in funny handoffs to developers,

21 some abusing of the sideyard situation in terms of the

22 flipping and where greed came into play.

23 But if you look at the history of NGT and this long

24 list of gardeners, there's been so much investment, so much

Page 125
 1

 2

 3

 4

 5

 6

 7

 8

 9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

heart, so much integrity.  That's what I wish someone was 

saying here, is that this 30-year mortgage is so out of 

synch with what the truth is on the record, of how these 

folks have handled themselves in communities and the 

investment that they make.

You know, the idea that there's going to be a flip and 

the mortgage is going to be the way that -- there's like so 

-- it seems far-fetched to me at like three different 

junctures.  And I ask you to consider that like, it's 

theoretically possible, but for you to address that in this 

sort of hyper-vigilant way about what these gardeners might 

do, specifically NGT, is really putting a weight on 

everybody through history and through the decades.

It's just not reasonable, just not fair, and doesn't 

seem to properly show regard for what's been invested.  But 

anyway, I thank you for your work and look forward to 

talking about it more.  And in my view the most, where the 

carefulness needs to be is in an earnest review of the 

people that come before you looking for these opportunities.

And though no monthly payment required, to have these 

things on the books, you know, with these kinds of land 

values is really sort of crushing.

Final footnote.  A lot of the gardeners have been upon

the land long before it was of value, and they have been

Page 126
 1 putting their time in and their dollars and their commitment

 2 for, you know, their deep values.  And now that the land --

 3 you know, these administrative processes that the city has

 4 have been taking decades, right, but it was never about that

 5 really for most of us.  But anyway, thank you for your work,

 6 and look forward to a conversation.

 7 CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Mr. Carpineta.  Next we

 8 have Oranica Fields.  Go ahead, please.  You should be able

 9 to un-mute yourself.

10 (No response.)

11 CHAIR FADULLON:  Oranica Fields, you should be able to

12 un-mute yourself.

13 MS. FIELDS:  Hi.  Good afternoon.  Sorry for taking up

14 your time.  I would like to say that the More To Love Garden

15 doesn't have the capital to be able to be in a 30-year

16 mortgage.  We would love to own the ground, but right now we

17 don't have the capital to, and it's like unfeasible.

18 CHAIR FADULLON:  Thank you, Ms. Fields.

19 Next we have Elizabeth Waring.

20 MS. WARING:  I'm sorry.  I put my hand up by mistake.

21 I think everyone has covered what I wanted to say pretty

22 much.  It would only be redundant.

23 CHAIR FADULLON:  Okay.  No problem.  Thank you.

24 Okay.  I think we've heard from folks, and I think

Board of Directors Meeting 33 (123 - 126) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 52 of 179



Page 127
 1 we're good.  And just again, we'll be looking at this as an

 2 actual agenda item on the April agenda, and we look forward

 3 to continued robust discussion on that item.

 4       With that, I'm going to ask for a motion to adjourn.

 5       MR. SAUER:  I will gladly make a motion to adjourn.

 6       MR. KOONCE:  Second --

 7       MS. GONZALEZ:  I second that.

 8       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  All in favor?

 9       (Chorus of ayes.)

10       CHAIR FADULLON:  Any opposed?

11       (No response.)

12       CHAIR FADULLON:  All right.  I know this has been a

13 long meeting, but I do appreciate the members of the public

14 who hung in here and waited to testify, and I didn't mean by

15 saying that this was a long meeting to cut people off and

16 that we wouldn't take testimony, so I apologize for that.

17 We are always interested, but I do want to be respectful of

18 everybody's time as well.  So we look forward to continuing

19 the conversation next month.  I'm sure we'll have another

20 robust discussion.  Take care.  Be well, everybody.  Thank

21 you.

22       (Whereupon, at 1:10 p.m., the proceedings were

23 concluded.)

Page 128

 1                   C E R T I F I C A T I O N

 2       I hereby certify that the foregoing proceedings, the

 3 Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors Meeting, were

 4 reported by me on March 14, 2023, and that I, John A. Kelly,

 5 read this transcript and attest that this transcript is a

 6 true and accurate record of the proceedings.

 7                       By:

 8                                John A. Kelly

 9                                Court Reporter

Board of Directors Meeting 34 (127 - 128) 
3/14/2023 

LEXITAS  
215-504-4622

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 53 of 179



Exhibit B 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 50 of 120 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 54 of 179



Exhibit C 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 51 of 120 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 

Land Bank Board 
1234 Market St 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 

 
RE: HACE Agenda Items 
Meeting: 3.14.2023 

 

A. Termination of Declaration of Restrictive Covenant 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Given that the Land Bank does not wish to penalize 

the Buyer as a result of the Developer’s and GLT’s actions, and given that the imposition of 
the financial penalty would present a hardship for the Developer, the staff recommends 
that the Board approve the termination of the DORC with respect to the Premises, and 
that the Board agree to not impose the penalties for the default provided in the PDA. 

 

HACE is in agreement with the staff recommendation. The economic hardship to 
HACE, is further reason for the board to also approve our request to item C of the agenda. 

 
B. Issuance of Consent to Sell Letters 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The staff recommends that the Board approve this 
resolution to permit the issuance of Consent to Sell letters for the homes constructed on 
3022, 3024 and 3026 N. American Street and on 19, 21, 23, 25 and 27 E. Somerset Street 
and the issuance of a Certificate of Completion for the Project, subject to the Developer’s 
full compliance with the terms of the Agreement. 

 
HACE is in agreement with the recommendation from the staff and look forward to 

selling the units to low income families. These units were completed during a very 
challenging time at the height of the pandemic and were developed as modular housing 
which limited the amount of MBE and WBE opportunity. Per the agreement, HACE made 
best faith efforts to get MBE and WBE participation and was able to achieve 6% MBE and 
25% WBE. 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 55 of 179



Exhibit C 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 52 of 120 

 

In addition to the 6% participation, HACE hired Special Protection Security, a 
minority owned Security Company. We are currently partnering with the Enterprise Center 
in order to assist them in obtaining their MBE certification. 

 
C. Amendment, Assignment and Assumption of Developer Obligation under Purchase and 

Development Agreement, and Amendment of Declaration of Restrictive Covenants: 
STAFF RECOMMENDS: that the Board reject this request and maintain 

this project as originally approved, requiring the homes to be sold at a maximum price of 
$195,000 to purchasers at or below 80% of AMI, with the recorded Declaration of Restrictive 
Covenants governing the sale and resale of the homes and the affordability period 

 
It is imperative for the board of directors to approve HACE’s request to the 

Amendment, Assignment and Assumption of Developer Obligation under Purchase and 
Development Agreement, and Amendment of Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. 
Rejection of HACEs request will cause an economic hardship. In order to develop the 
donated parcels of land, HACE was awarded funding from the Philadelphia Foundation, the 
Federal Home Loan Bank, and state PHARE funding. The respective awards were 
$750,000 from the Federal Home Loan Bank, and $300,000 from PHARE. Funds awarded were 
designated for a Land Trust homeownership model. HACE adopted this model as it aims to 
assure home ownership units serve low income families into perpetuity. The funding received 
challenged HACE to find an innovative way to fight displacement and gentrification. Unit 
Development cost exceeds $300,000. The funding allowed HACE to offer these units for under 
$185,000. All home owners will be below the required 80% of AMI. If the board proceeds to 
honor Land Banks recommendation, HACE will forfeit the $1million in funding, which does not 
include other carrying costs covered by the organization. 

 
The very limited amount of Funding that is available to develop home ownership 

projects is competitive. Not only would forfeiting these funds have an impact on HACE, this 
economic hardship would then be extended to the communities of St. Hugh and Fairhill. The 
last home ownership project in our neighborhoods was almost 15 years ago. The rejection of 
this amendment will have future implications on HACEs ability to apply for additional funding 
to home ownership projects. We are respectfully requesting that Land Bank Board make a 
recommendation for approval of this amendment to the PDA to allow for the land to be 
transferred to the Good Lands Trust upon sale of each parcel listed herein. 

 
HACE has received the support from Councilwoman Quetcy Lozada to allow 

community land trusts in her district for the creation and preservation for long-term 
affordable homeownership housing as a tool to prevent displacement of low income 
families in her district. 

 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 56 of 179



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 53 of 120 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - 5 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE NON-IMPOSITION OF PENALTIES FOR AN 

INCURABLE DEFAULT UNDER THE PURCHASE AND DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT AND 

THE DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS GOVERNING 3028 N. AMERICAN 

STREET AND THE TERMINATION OF THE DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE 

COVENANTS WITH RESPECT TO 3028 N. AMERICAN STREET 

 

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved the 

disposition of 3028 N. American Street (the “Premises”) and eight (8) other properties to HACE 

Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Developer”) by Resolution 2021-17, adopted on April 13, 2021;  

 

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Land Bank (the “Land Bank”) and the Developer entered into a 

Purchase and Development Agreement dated July 9, 2021 (the “PDA”), requiring the development of the 

Premises for affordable homeownership and the sale of both the land and the improvements built thereon 

to an income-qualified purchaser; 

 

WHEREAS, the Land Bank conveyed the Premises to the Developer by Deed dated June 1, 2021 

and effective June 29, 2021;  

 

WHEREAS, the Developer recorded a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants dated July 29, 2021 

on November 20, 2021 in the Philadelphia Department of Records (the “DORC”), stating the 

requirements for the sale and resale of the Premises and the improvements erected thereon (the 

“Affordable Home”) and the qualifications to be met by the purchaser of said Affordable Home 

(“Qualified Purchaser”); 

WHEREAS, the Developer violated the provisions of the PDA and the DORC by (1) conveying 

the Premises and the improvements erected thereon to Good Lands Trust (“GLT”), a non-profit 

corporation wholly owned by the Developer, without adhering to the requirements of the PDA, and (2) 

permitting GLT to convey a fee simple interest in the improvements erected on the Premises and a 

leasehold interest in the Premises to a purchaser, without adhering to the requirements of the PDA and the 

DORC; 

WHEREAS, said violations resulted in an incurable default under the PDA and the DORC;  

WHEREAS, the penalties for an unauthorized conveyance or sale of the Premises under the PDA 

is the payment to the Land Bank of half of the consideration received by the Developer or a related party 

for said conveyance or sale, without any set-offs or deductions, as well as a reversion of title to the 

Premises to the Land Bank (collectively, the “Penalties”); 

WHEREAS, the imposition of the Penalties would present a financial hardship for the Developer 

and GLT and jeopardize the purchaser’s fee simple interest in the improvements and leasehold interest in 

the Premises;   

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 57 of 179



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 54 of 120 

WHEREAS, the provisions of GLT’s sale and lease documents conflict with the provisions of the 

recorded DORC, creating the possibility of future litigation regarding the purchaser’s interest in the 

Premises and the improvements erected thereon; 

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Board of Directors has determined that it is in the best interest of the 

Land Bank (1) to not impose the penalties under the PDA for the Developer’s and GLT’s incurable 

default under the PDA and the DORC, and (2) to terminate the DORC with respect to the Premises and 

the improvements erected thereon;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that, subject to the terms and conditions of this Resolution: 

 

1. The Land Bank hereby authorizes (1) the non-imposition of the Penalties for the Developer’s 

and GLT’s incurable default under the Purchase and Development Agreement and the 

Declaration of Restrictive Covenants, and (2) the termination of the Declaration of Restrictive 

Covenants as it pertains to the Premises and the improvements erected thereon.    

2. The Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby authorized, in the name of and on 

behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform any and all agreements, 

deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to effectuate the purposes and 

intents of this Resolution in accordance with the terms of this Resolution (collectively, the 

“Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and 

modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The 

Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and modifications thereto shall 

contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem 

necessary or appropriate, subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so executed and 

delivered by the Land Bank, shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land 

Bank. 

3. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may 

be necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or 

Senior Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board 

meeting following the date of such modifications. 

4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on March 14, 2023. 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 58 of 179



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 55 of 120 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 - 6 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF CONSENT TO SELL LETTERS AND A 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION FOR THE HOMES LOCATED AT 19, 21, 23, 25 AND 27 E. 

SOMERSET STREET AND 3022, 3024 AND 3026 N. AMERICAN STREET, SUBJECT TO THE 

DEVELOPER’S COMPLIANCE WITH ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE PURCHASE AND 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

 

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors (the “Board”) approved the 

disposition of 19, 21, 23, 25 and 27 E. Somerset Street and 3022, 3024, 3026 and 3028 N. American Street 

(collectively, the “Properties”) to HACE Affordable Housing Corporation (the “Developer”) by Resolution 

2021-17, adopted on April 13, 2021, for the development of affordable homes to be sold to income-

qualified purchasers (the “Affordable Homes”);  

 

WHEREAS, the Philadelphia Land Bank (the “Land Bank”) and the Developer entered into a 

Purchase and Development Agreement dated July 9, 2021 and recorded November 20, 2021 in the 

Philadelphia Department of Records (the “PDA”), stating, among other obligations and requirements, the 

Developer’s obligations thereunder pertaining to the Economic Opportunity Plan (“EOP”) and the 

requirements for the sale of the Affordable Homes, including inspection and marketing requirements and 

income certification requirements for prospective purchasers, which are necessary preconditions to the 

Land Bank’s issuance of Consent to Sell letters and a final Certificate of Completion for the project; 

 

WHEREAS, the Land Bank conveyed the Properties to the Developer by Deed dated June 1, 

2021, effective June 29, 2021, and recorded November 2021 in the Philadelphia Department of Records;  

 

WHEREAS, the Developer is only partially compliant with its obligations under the EOP, with the 

project nearing completion;  

 

WHEREAS, the Developer sold the Affordable Home at 3028 N. American Street on October 11, 

2022 without complying with any of the requirements under the PDA with respect to said sale;  

 

WHEREAS, given the Developer’s partial compliance with the EOP obligations and lack of 

compliance with any of the PDA’s requirements for the sale of 3028 N. American Street, Board approval is 

required for the issuance of Consent to Sell letters for the sale of the remaining Affordable Homes at 19, 

21, 23, 25 and 27 E. Somerset Street and at 3022, 3024 and 3026 N. American Street and for the issuance 

of a Certificate of Completion following completion of the project; 

 

WHEREAS, the Land Bank Board of Directors has determined that it is in the best interest of the 

Land Bank to issue Consent to Sell letters for the Affordable Homes at 19, 21, 23, 25 and 27 E. Somerset 

Street and at 3022, 3024 and 3026 N. American Street and to issue a Certificate of Completion upon the 

Developer’s completion of the project, subject to the Developer’s full and unconditional compliance with 

its obligations under the PDA as determined by the Land Bank in its sole discretion;   

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 59 of 179



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 56 of 120 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that, subject to the terms and conditions of this Resolution: 

 

1. The Land Bank authorizes the issuance of Consent to Sell letters for the Affordable Homes 

located at 19, 21, 23, 25 and 27 E. Somerset Street and at 3022, 3024 and 3026 N. American 

Street and the issuance of a Certificate of Completion upon the Developer’s completion of the 

project, subject to the Developer’s full and unconditional compliance with its obligations under 

the Purchase and Development Agreement governing the project as determined by the Land 

Bank in its sole discretion. 

 

2. The Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby authorized, in the name of and on 

behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform any and all agreements, 

deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to effectuate the purposes and 

intents of this Resolution in accordance with the terms of this Resolution (collectively, the 

“Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and 

modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The 

Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and modifications thereto shall 

contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior Counsel shall deem 

necessary or appropriate, subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so executed and 

delivered by the Land Bank, shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Land 

Bank. 

 

3. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may 

be necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or 

Senior Counsel will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board 

meeting following the date of such modifications. 

 

4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on March 14, 2023. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 60 of 179



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 57 of 120 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 61 of 179



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 58 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 62 of 179



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 59 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 63 of 179



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 60 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 64 of 179



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 61 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 65 of 179



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 62 of 120 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 66 of 179



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 63 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 67 of 179



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 64 of 120 

 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 68 of 179



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 65 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 69 of 179



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 66 of 120 

  

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 70 of 179



Exhibit G 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 67 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 71 of 179



Exhibit G 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 68 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 72 of 179



Exhibit G 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 69 of 120 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 73 of 179



Exhibit G 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 70 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 74 of 179



Exhibit G 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 71 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 75 of 179



Exhibit G 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 72 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 76 of 179



Exhibit G 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 73 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 77 of 179



Exhibit G 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 74 of 120 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 78 of 179



Exhibit H 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 75 of 120 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 – 7 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  

1901 NORTH RINGGOLD STREET AND 1910 NORTH 24TH STREET  

TO SANCTUARY FARM PHILA 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of 

the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interest of 

the Land Bank to convey 1901 North Ringgold Street and 1910 North 24th Street (collectively, the 

“Property”) to Sanctuary Farm Phila (the “Purchaser”). 

  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Two and 00/100 Dollars ($2.00) and a thirty (30) 

year mortgage for Seventy-Four Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-Eight and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($74,998.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council.  

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate 

the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time 

and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may 

be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and 

modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior 

Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so 

executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the 

Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on March 14, 2023. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 79 of 179

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400


Exhibit I 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 76 of 120 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 – 8 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  

1217 PENNOCK STREET  

TO JONATHAN D’ALBA AND LIANNE EARLEY 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank (the 

“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of 

the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests of 

the Land Bank to convey 1217 Pennock Street (the “Property”) to Jonathan D’Alba and Lianne Earley 

(the “Purchasers”). 

  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchasers for One and 00/100 U.S. Dollar ($1.00) and a thirty 

(30) year mortgage for Thirty-Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-Nine and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($39,999.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council.  

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate 

the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time 

and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may 

be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and 

modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior 

Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so 

executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the 

Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on March 14, 2023. 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 80 of 179

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400


Exhibit I 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 77 of 120 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 – 9 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  

2032 EAST BOSTON STREET  

TO CHARLES J. KESSLER AND COLLEEN FOSTER 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank (the 

“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of 

the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests of 

the Land Bank to convey 2032 East Boston Street (the “Property”) to Charles J. Kessler and Colleen 

Foster (the “Purchasers”). 

  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchasers for One and 00/100 U.S. Dollar ($1.00) and a thirty 

(30) year mortgage for Forty-Four Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-Nine and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($44,999.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council.  

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate 

the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time 

and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may 

be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and 

modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior 

Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so 

executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the 

Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on March 14, 2023. 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 81 of 179

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400


Exhibit I 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 78 of 120 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023 – 10 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  

2410 AND 2412 NORTH ORIANNA STREET  

TO DANIEL MCSHANE AND VICTORIA NOLL 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank (the 

“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of 

the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 

subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 

conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests of 

the Land Bank to convey 2410 and 2412 North Orianna Street (collectively, the “Property”) to Daniel 

McShane and Victoria Noll (the “Purchasers”). 

  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that: 

 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchasers for Two and 00/100 U.S. Dollars ($2.00) and a thirty 

(30) year mortgage for Sixty-Nine Thousand Nine Hundred Ninety-Eight and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($69,998.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 

resolution of Philadelphia City Council.  

 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 

any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate 

the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time 

and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may 

be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and 

modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior 

Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so 

executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the 

Land Bank. 

 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 

will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 

date of such modifications. 

 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on March 14, 2023. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 82 of 179

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400


Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 79 of 120 

  

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 83 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 80 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 84 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 81 of 120 

     

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 85 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 82 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 86 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 83 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 87 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 84 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 88 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 85 of 120 

     

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 89 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 86 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 90 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 87 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 91 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 88 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 92 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 89 of 120 

Linda Soffer, Garden Coordinator 
Spooky Garden, An NGT property 
thespookygarden@gmail.com 
215-908-9035 

 
Spooky Garden has been in existence since 1983, when a group of neighbors joined together to clear debris from 

4 adjoining parcels of land in the Northern Liberties neighborhood, and planted trees, shrubs, flowers and 

vegetables. The land has been maintained as a garden since then, and many of the original plants continue to thrive. 

Upon learning that the land was owned by the City, a formal preservation effort began in 2005. After 

considerable work by neighbors, two of the parcels were preserved by NGT with the support of Council President 

Darrell Clarke, and the two remaining parcels were joined into one and identified for future preservation. In 2016, 

the Philadelphia City Council passed an ordinance that approved NGT’s acquisition of the remaining parcel 

(1118 N 4th St), but the final transfer has been prevented by the 30 year mortgage requirement. 

 

Spooky Garden is a neighborhood treasure that is enjoyed year round by residents of Northern Liberties and the 

surrounding neighborhoods. Our annual, free Halloween event has welcomed over 10,000 visitors since its 

inception in 2002 and has become a holiday tradition enjoyed by 2 generations of Philadelphia residents. The 

current membership supports 20 surrounding households and provides these families with fresh culinary 

herbs, fruits, vegetables and flowers that are grown and harvested in a communal manner. Several times a 

year we donate fresh vegetables to the local community refrigerator, and we regularly share fresh flower 

bouquets with the office staff of Bodine High School, one of our near neighbors. The garden also provides open 

green space to nearby families, and amenities that include a cookout area with a grill, table & chairs, a community 

composter to recycle food scraps, a hammock for relaxing in the shade, and a multi-purpose area for gatherings and 

lawn games. Members have held barbecues, birthday parties, family reunions and weddings under our majestic elm 

tree.  

 

The fact that half of the garden is unpreserved is a highly problematic situation that presents unsafe 

conditions, and has prevented the garden from realizing its full potential to serve the community. This parcel 

of land is badly in need of regrading, and contains trees that are in desperate need of proper maintenance to 

remove dangerous limbs that are a structural encroachment over an adjacent residence. The rubble from a 

pre-existing structure that has never been properly removed invites infestation from rats, posing a public 

health hazard. While neighbors have made every effort to keep this portion as safe and clean as possible, 

without acquisition by NGT it cannot be properly maintained. This fact has prevented the garden from being 

able to expand our food growing space and provide educational programs to local residents. We have also 

had to decline requests for service opportunities from volunteer groups as well as from faculty and students 

from neighboring Bodine HS due to unsafe conditions.  

 

Both NGT and the surrounding neighbors have every intention to preserve the land that the garden occupies as 

safe & permanent open green space, as it has been maintained for the past 40 years. To imply otherwise is an 

insult to the Philadelphia residents who have spent countless hours caring for this land, cultivating the trees, shrubs 

and flowers and growing nutritious food.  The benefits of community connection that the garden provides far 

surpass any monetary value that can be assigned to the land. For our members and the surrounding 

community, it is priceless. 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 93 of 179

mailto:thespookygarden@gmail.com


Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 90 of 120 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 94 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 91 of 120 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Good morning  name is Jethro Heiko and I’m a resident of Philadelphia. I’m also a father of two Philadelphia children, ages 12 and 14.  I am 

currently the Reparative  Reforesting Fellow for reparationWorks, a Philadelphia-based organization and consultancy working to support repair 

and healing of our city through various reparation strategies collaboratively created with a variety of partnering organizations and institutions. 

In recent years I founded Oak Lane Maple, a Philadelphia based community maple syrup program which through a university partnership 

attracted a half million dollar USDA grant in 2021 to bring my model to South Jersey and expand the model in our city.  

 

I’m here to offer support for community gardeners, urban farmers and the communities that these food producers and community builders 

support. 18 years ago, I was the founder of Neighbors Allied for the Best Riverfront, an organization that successfully helped the City of 

Philadelphia recognize the need for a master plan for the Delaware river front when the city was threatened by the states’s imposition of 

casinos on the Delaware. That work has led to tens of millions of dollars, soon hundreds of millions of dollars in public projects that tie 

Philadelphians to the river and the critical watershed we are a part of. The importance of community gardens, urban farms, and other urban 

agricultural activities in the city cannot be understated. But for some reason, like 20 years ago with the Delaware Riverfront, these emerald 

jewels in our city are not often recognized and all too often destroyed due to shortsightedness and arcane policies and a lack of will.  

 

These places and the communities and leadership that make them possible are critical infrastructure for our neighborhoods that deserve public 

protection and public resources to not only be saved but significantly expanded. The benefits of these places, communities and activities 

intersect with every single priority we have in this city. Institutions, for example, in our city that study and research and provide services 

around mental health, healthcare, and anti violence have shown the critical benefits the community programs connected to urban agricultural 

spaces and programs provide. These benefits pre-date the pandemic, but it is clear to most that these spaces, organizations and programs are 

more important than ever. 

 

Further, in cities around the world, including those with far larger populations than our own, protection and expansion of spaces used for 

agricultural production is a far greater priority than we have made them. making Philadelphia less resilient and less resilient than our peers. 

Tokyo, Japan, for example, which has a population nearly ten times our own, provides a variety of tax benefits, funding, and other incentives in 

support of urban farms, and community gardens.  

 

I’ve had the pleasure of partnering with, and visiting a number of urban farms and community gardens in Philadelphia, including the currently 

threatened Urban Creators’ Life Do Grow Farm, and consider these resources critical assets in our city, as we work for food, racial and 

environmental justice, while preparing for increased threats that come with climate change, supply chain disruptions and increasing energy and 

food delivery costs.   

 

Our urban farms and community garden sector needs significant protection and support to expand and grow in order to support the health and 

growth of Philadelphia. I call on the Board of the Land Bank to do everything in its power, to simplify the systems and processes and policies, 

in support of existing and future urban farms and community gardens in our city and to guarantee the long term protection of all existing 

community farms and gardens. If I can be of any support in such efforts I’d appreciate that opportunity as well. Thank you.  

 

Jethro Heiko, 1016 70th Ave.  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 95 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 92 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 96 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 93 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 97 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 94 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 98 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 95 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 99 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 96 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 100 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 97 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 101 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 98 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 102 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 99 of 120 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
TO: Philadelphia Land Bank Board March 13, 2023 1234 Market Streer, 17th Floor 

Philadelphia, PA 19107 

RE: The impact of the 30-year mortgage requirement on community garden dispositions Dear Ms. Fadullon, Board Chair, and the 

Land Bank Board of Directors, 

We are writing to urge the Land Bank to reconsider its relatively recent practice of placing a 30-year self-amortizing mortgage and note on 

nominal land dispositions for community gardens like ours. For the last decade, Brewerytown Garden has made a positive impact on our 

community through providing space for neighbors to grow food, establishing Brewerytown’s only farmer’s market, and organizing weekly no-

cost community programming throughout the summer. We are a thriving and vibrant neighborhood hub, but the precarity of some of the land 

we steward inhibits our ability to fully serve our community. 

We have invested significant funds, volunteer labor, and love into Brewerytown Garden. Our half acre garden is home to raised bed plots for 

over 75 Brewerytown households, a greenhouse, an open area for public events and workshops, honeybees, a compost system, and a 

meditation garden– along with a wait list of over 90 neighbors eager to garden once space opens up. Each summer, our gardeners manage 

and staff our farmer’s market where neighbors can purchase local produce, including crops grown right here at our garden, at below-market 

cost. We offer weekly programming for children, families, and seniors that has included artmaking, nutrition and botany classes, yoga for 

children, senior health and wellness fairs, dance lessons, and movie nights under the stars. During the early days of Covid, we demonstrated 

our nimbleness to meet the moment, pivoting from our usual activities to partner with the USDA and the Common Market to operate a weekly 

distribution site for free produce boxes, and swiftly secured grant funds that allowed us to supplement produce with eggs and bread. 

We are very proud of the work we do, the bonds we form with our neighbors, and the relationship Brewerytown Garden has built with our 

community. To have some of the land we steward in limbo in the Land Bank is unfortunately an impediment to our growth and ability to 

function. For example, two Brewerytown Garden parcels held by the Land Bank have very dilapidated sidewalks that we wish to replace in 

order to make our block more beautiful and accessible. The sidewalk in question sits at our garden entrance, and we have a plan and the 

funds to repair it – but are unable to move this project forward while the parcels remain under city ownership. 

Community gardens like ours are beneficial to Philadelphians’ mental and physical health and the environment, break down healthful food 

access barriers, and engender community care. We know that gardens and greenspaces are vital components of a thriving neighborhood, 

and believe strongly in the work that land trusts like Neighborhood Gardens Trust do to secure these spaces for years to come. We urge the 

Board members of the Land Bank to reconsider agreement terms so that land preservation of gardens and greenspace is not prohibitive. 

Sincerely, 

The Gardeners at Brewerytown Garden 

2634–44 West Master Street | Philadelphia PA | 19121 
brewerytown.garden@gmail.com 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 103 of 179

mailto:brewerytown.garden@gmail.com


Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 100 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 104 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 101 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 105 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 102 of 120 

    

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 106 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 103 of 120 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 107 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 104 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 108 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 105 of 120 

 

   

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 109 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 106 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 110 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 107 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 111 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 108 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 112 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 109 of 120 

 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 113 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 110 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 114 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 111 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 115 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 112 of 120 

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 116 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 113 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 117 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 114 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 118 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 115 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 119 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 116 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 120 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 117 of 120 

    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 121 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 118 of 120 

   

   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 122 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 119 of 120 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 123 of 179



Exhibit J 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for March 14, 2023 Page 120 of 120 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for April 11, 2023 Page 124 of 179


	Board of Directors Meeting-CT.pdf
	Printable Word Index

	Board of Directors Meeting-CT corrected by AS, without index.pdf
	Printable Word Index




